NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET

Tuesday, 11th September, 2018, 6.30 pm - Civic Centre, High Road,
Wood Green, N22 8LE

Members: Councillors Joseph Ejiofor (Chair), Emine Ibrahim (Vice-Chair),
Charles Adje, Peray Ahmet, Patrick Berryman, Mark Blake, Zena Brabazon,
Kirsten Hearn, Noah Tucker and Elin Weston

Quorum: 4

1.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or
reported on.

By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings.

The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business.
(Late items of Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item

where they appear. New items of Urgent Business will be dealt with under
Item 19 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at Item 23

below).
Haringey



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE, ANY
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED AND THE RESPONSE TO ANY SUCH
REPRESENTATIONS

On occasions part of the Cabinet meeting will be held in private and will not
be open to the public if an item is being considered that is likely to lead to the
disclosure of exempt or confidential information. In accordance with the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 (the “Regulations”), members of the public can
make representations about why that part of the meeting should be open to
the public.

This agenda contains exempt items as set out at Item [20] : Exclusion of the
Press and Public. No representations with regard to these have been
received.

This is the formal 5 clear day notice under the Regulations to confirm that this
Cabinet meeting will be partly held in private for the reasons set out in this

Agenda.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is
considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A Member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

There are currently no Overview and Scrutiny Committee matters for
consideration.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 20)



10.

1.

12.

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 14™ August
2018 as a correct record.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS
To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders.
BUDGET MONITORING (PAGES 21 - 34)

[Report of the Interim Director for Finance. To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Finance.]

Monitoring report on forecast spend against budget and consideration of any
proposed budget virements as at the end of quarter 1.

REVIEW OF PLANS TO ESTABLISH A YOUTH ZONE IN HARINGEY
(PAGES 35 - 40)

[ Report of the Director for Children’s Services. To be introduced by the
Cabinet Member for Communities, Safety and Engagement]

Further to a report to Cabinet in March 2018 setting out proposals for the
establishment of a Youth Zone in the borough, this report will recommend a
revised approach, following a review of these proposals.

CREATION OF A SINGLE HOMELESSNESS HUB (PAGES 41 - 68)

[Report of the Assistant Director for Commissioning. To be introduced by the
Cabinet Member for Housing and Estate Renewal and the Cabinet Member
for Adults and Health]

Cabinet will be asked to approve a lease arrangement in respect of 332 High
Road, Tottenham. to create a single homelessness hub for the borough. The
provision will create a bespoke single homelessness hub, providing both
advice, support and information on a range of health, wellbeing and housing
services and dedicated accommodation units for single homeless (and at risk
of) people and rough sleepers.

DESIGNATION OF FINSBURY PARK AND STROUD GREEN
NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA AND FORUM (PAGES 69 - 236)

[Report of the Assistant Director for Planning. To be introduced by the Leader
of the Council.]

This report seeks Cabinet's approval of officer recommendations on the
decision to formally designate the proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Forum, for the purpose of preparing a neighbourhood
development plan.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

HORNSEY LIBRARY REFURBISHMENT AND ESSENTIAL
MAINTENANCE (PAGES 237 - 244)

[Report of the Director for Customers, Transformation and Resources. To be
introduced by the Cabinet Member for Civic Services.]

Agreement for corporate landlord capital funds to be allocated to the Hornsey
Library project over the next two years to allow essential maintenance works
and building fabric improvements to be carried out. Approval is already in
place for the internal modifications at Hornsey Library.

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA) 2000: USE
WITHIN THE COUNCIL 2018/19 AND UPDATES TO THE COUNCIL'S
POLICY (PAGES 245 - 260)

[Report of the Assistant Director for Corporate Governance. To be introduced
by the Leader of the Council.]

The report will set out the issues relevant to the use the regulation of
investigatory powers and provide an updated policy for approval.

WATER, WASTEWATER & ANCILLARY SERVICES FOR HARINGEY
BUILDINGS CONSISTING OF THE CORPORATE, HOUSING AND
SCHOOLS ESTATES (PAGES 261 - 276)

[Report of the Director for Housing and Growth. To be introduced by the
Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources and Insourcing.]

Approval to enter into a contract for the provision of Water, Wastewater &
Ancillary Services for 4 years from April 2018 to March 2022 following a
collaborative procurement exercise conducted by the LEP (London Energy
Project) in accordance with the Councils Contract Standing Orders.
WOODSIDE AVENUE (PAGES 277 - 280)

Report of the Director for Housing and Growth. To be introduced by the
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing and Estate Renewal.]

Acquisition of property at Woodside Avenue.

MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES

None

SIGNIFICANT AND DELEGATED ACTIONS (PAGES 281 - 288)

To note the significant and delegated actions taken by directors in August.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS



20.

21.

22,

23.

To consider any items admitted at Item 3 above.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Note from the Acting Democratic Services &Scrutiny Manager

Item 21 & 22 and 23, allow for the consideration of exempt information in
relation to items 16 & 3.

TO RESOLVE

That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as
the items below contain exempt information, as defined under paragraph, 3
and 5, Part 1, schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

WOODSIDE AVENUE (PAGES 289 - 314)

To consider exempt information pertaining to item 16

EXEMPT MINUTES (PAGES 315 - 316)

To agree the exempt minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on the 14" of
August 2018.

NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at Item 3 above.

Ayshe Simsek, Acting Democratic Services & Scrutiny Manager
Tel — 020 8489 2929

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk

Bernie Ryan
Assistant Director — Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ

Monday, 03 September 2018



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 7

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON
TUESDAY, 14TH AUGUST, 2018, 6.30pm

PRESENT:

Councillors: Joseph Ejiofor (Chair), Emine Ibrahim (Vice-Chair),
Charles Adje, Patrick Berryman, Mark Blake, Zena Brabazon, Noah Tucker
and Elin Weston

Also Present Councillors: Demir and Dennison

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

The Leader referred to agenda item 1, as shown on the agenda in respect of filming at
the meeting and Members noted this information.

APOLOGIES

There were apologies for absence from ClIr Hearn and Clir Ahmet.

URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest put forward.

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE, ANY
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED AND THE RESPONSE TO ANY SUCH
REPRESENTATIONS

There were no representations received at the agenda publication stage in relation to
the exempt items on the agenda.

MINUTES

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources and Insourcing queried page 3,
paragraph 8 of the minutes, which set out the response from Mr Labbad to a question
on asset transfer. The Cabinet Member queried whether this should indicate the 100%
transfer of commercial assets to the HDV rather than Lendlease. Cabinet agreed this
change to the minutes subject to review of the recording.

The remainder of the minutes were agreed as an accurate record of the meeting.

Haringey



49.

50.

Page 2

MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

There were no Overview and Scrutiny matters for consideration by the Cabinet.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS

A deputation had been received from Mr Paul Nicolson, representing Tottenham
Residents, in relation to item 9 of the Agenda - Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

Mr Nicolson spoke as the representative of Tottenham Residents and firstly welcomed
the implementation of the new Council Tax policy, as per item 9 of the Agenda. Mr
Nicolson remarked that it was unfortunate this change would not take effect until
2019/2020 although he recognised that half of the 6000 families with children claiming
working tax benefits would be relieved not to get a Council Tax bill in April 2019.
However, many would still have Council Tax arrears from previous years. Additionally,
it was queried whether the 4000 working adults claiming benefits would still have to
pay Council Tax from 2020.

Mr Nicolson continued to raise the following:

e The changes were a vital start to tackling the results of austerity. It would be
used by campaigning organisations as an example to other Councils of what
can and ought to be done.

e The national campaign against the Council Tax was continuing as there were
289 out of 326 Councils in England yet to be persuaded.

e Regarding single-adult job seekers allowance, noted that it was valued at
£73.10 a week, and equated to the incoming Universal Credit of £317 a month
which Mr Nicolson stated had been losing value since 1979 and had been
frozen since 2011. In Mr Nicolson’s view, the value of single-adult job seekers
allowance was not enough to pay for a healthy diet, water, fuel, clothes and
transport or other necessities. Furthermore, since April 2013, the Job Seekers
allowance had been paying a proportion of rent and Council Tax (plus
enforcement costs) whereas, before April 2013, it was supported by 100%
Council Tax and housing benefits. Mr Nicolson advised that this benefit can be
stopped for one or three months with a benefit sanction by the Jobcentres and
can be at the same time as the Council sending out the baliliffs to collect Council
tax arrears, from a claimant with no income. This situation reflected that the
benefit system was not supporting residents in most need.

Mr Nicolson advised that in 2013/14, the Council sent out the bailiffs 12,484 times
adding to the arrears, (a) £125 court costs a time payable to the Council, and then (b)
£75 a time payable to the bailiffs. A total of £200 a time had added to the arrears
which added a total of £2.5 million to the cost of Council tax to Haringey Residents. Mr



Page 3

Nicolson referred to the Treasury Select Committee of MPs report “Household
finances: income, saving and debt” published on the 26™ July which stated that people
become over-indebted through arrears on bills, including those owed to central and
local government, such as Council Tax. This report advised that public authorities
often pursue debts over-zealously, uncompromisingly, and with routine recourse to
bailiffs, which risks driving the most financially vulnerable people into further difficulty.

In conclusion Mr Nicolson emphasised the negative impact on individuals who found
themselves in arrears, specifically to their health and the wellbeing of their families,
and requested that Cabinet to institute a thorough overhaul of its Council Tax
enforcement practice. Although he acknowledged that half will now not be taxed, but
will be in arrears.

The Leader thanked Mr Nicolson and then invited Cabinet Members to comment
and/or ask questions.

e Following a question by ClIr Blake, Mr Nicolson commented on his support to
residents, and noted that the following rules and legislation were used to help
dispute the unfair Council Tax related situations being dealt with: Wednesbury
rules and national guidance for bailiffs that deals with vulnerable residents.
Also where small amounts are owed, it was noted that Local authorities had the
power to reduce the amount of Council Tax residents owed to nil as set out
under section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and reintroduced
in 2012.

e Mr Nicolson acknowledged that the CTRS, proposed at Agenda Item 9, was a
positive step in the right direction but that the Council Tax enforcement would
need to be addressed to see how this was dealt with. Mr Nicolson found there
to be a positive public reaction to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
proposed.

Clir Berryman, Cabinet Member for Finance, also thanked Mr Nicholson for his efforts
on behalf of Haringey residents and looked forward to seeing him on the Fairness
Commission as one of the commissioners. The Cabinet Member responded as follows
to the issues raised:

e The Council Tax Reduction Scheme was the first step to achieving the Labour
administration’s manifesto commitment to providing 100% support for those
most in need within the borough. Residents used to receive such support but
this was removed following the Conservative/Liberal Democrat government
coalition which allowed Councils to impose minimum tariffs on the most in need
people most in need.

e The Council Tax Reduction Scheme was aiming to assist those most in need
and would help 6,000 households with children, a majority of which were single
parent families.



51.

Page 4

e Regarding the Council Tax enforcement, the Cabinet Member noted that the
report was about reducing what was due from those most in need within the
borough but that it was still important to collect what was owed. The Cabinet
Member assured Mr Nicolson that the Council would ensure that this was
conducted in an ethical way, in line with the administration’s manifesto
commitment, and that enforcement officers were all members of the Civil
Enforcement Association, which aimed to provide higher industry standards.

e Acknowledged that the Council Tax system was complicated and the Council
would be working hard to help residents who most needed its support.

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

Following the deputation, the Cabinet Member for Finance formally introduced the
report which set out the process and content of proposed potential changes to the
2019/20 Council Tax Reduction Scheme. The report set out a series of options to
amend the current scheme, with a preferred option highlighted as being a combination
of increasing the maximum level of Council Tax Reduction from 80.2% to 100% for
working age claimants with children and updating the CTRS to align with some
national welfare changes.

The Cabinet Member emphasised the Labour administration’s manifesto commitment
to ensuring fairness for all. Costs were continuing to rise but the Council was not able
to respond with fair increases to collect what was needed to carry on delivering vital
services. The Cabinet Member acknowledged that old commitments by previous local
government administrations were sometimes not deliverable but the focus was to
deliver key services for residents and to recognise the problems they faced. The
Cabinet Member concluded his presentation by commending the report to the Cabinet
for approval.

Following questions from ClIr Dennison, the subsequent points were noted:

e For working age claimants, the Council Tax Reduction Scheme had not been
updated since 2013 but the new scheme would bring this up to date. The
complexities involved in updating such figures under this scheme (going out to
consultation) and working through quite prescriptive government guidance
meant that this exercise was completed periodically.

¢ Whilst almost all of those affected by the Council Tax Reduction Scheme would
be better off as a result of the preferred proposals, there was a small number of
residents identified that would not be financially better off. For those identified,
it was estimated that this would result in no more than a 95p increase a week
and, although it was not possible to identify how many would be affected
negatively, for most residents it was clear that they would gain from the
revision.

e The Council Tax Reduction Scheme was aimed at helping the 6,000 most in
need working age claimants, rather than all 10,000 working age claimants,
because it was anticipated that this was as much as could be done within



Page 5

2019/2020 budget. Nonetheless, this was an important step in delivering on a
key manifesto commitment and a positive step in the right direction.

With regards to funding the proposed changes to the scheme, this would be
part of budget discussions that would take place later in the year.

In relation to individual’s eligibility under Universal Credit being used as the
basis for their entitlement for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, it was
acknowledged that there was a number of ways in which to deliver the Council
Tax Reduction Scheme. This option was considered but was not a preferred
method as Haringey Council was at an early stage of implementing Universal
Credit. It was therefore decided that, at this time, it would not be appropriate to
use this as the basis of any new Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

RESOLVED

1. To agree to go out to consultation on the following preferred option to replace the
existing CTRS. This option is a combination of:

2.

a) Increasing the maximum level of Council Tax Reduction from 80.2% to
100% for working age claimants with children.

b) Updating the CTRS to align with some national welfare changes. The
maximum level of Council Tax Reduction would continue to be 100% for
pensioners and working age claimants in receipt of disability related
benefits, as it is under the existing CTRS.

To note that, following consultation with the Greater London Authority (“GLA”)
and having considered the GLA’s response:

i) A draft CTRS will be published;

i) A consultation on that draft CTRS will be carried out with persons likely
to have an interest in its operation;

i) An initial Equality Impact Assessment will be published, which will
assess the proposals for consultation; and

iv) The findings of the consultation and an Equality Impact Assessment will
inform the final CTRS, which will be put to Members to consider at full
Council in January 2019.

Reasons for decision

The stated ambition of the current administration is to:

a) Ensure the greatest weight is placed on the broadest shoulders by consulting

on options that make Council tax and our policies for charging for Council
services fairer; and

b) Extend the level of Council tax relief for our least well-off residents to 100%.

Councils have limited powers to effect change to Council Tax without primary
legislation. However, the CTRS offers a vehicle through which the Council can



Page 6

redistribute the burden on Council Tax payers and provide additional financial support
to those in receipt of Council Tax Reduction.

Since 2013, the existing CTRS has capped the maximum amount of Council

Tax Reduction at 80.2% for working age claimants who were not in receipt of disability
related benefits. It is recognised that some residents have increasingly struggled to
pay contributions towards their Council Tax. Therefore, there is a desire to provide
additional financial support to residents who are the least well-off.

The proposal to increase the maximum level of Council Tax Reduction for working age
claimants who have children is thought better to balance affordability with the need to
provide more financial assistance to a group in particular need.

It is also proposed to update the scheme to bring it in line with some national welfare
changes that have taken place since 2013. For pensioners, the CTRS automatically
updates each year to align with national welfare changes. For working age claimants,
the CTRS has not been updated since 2013. Therefore, it is proposed to update the
scheme to ensure it is up to date, easier to understand and reflects inflationary
changes. As a result of these changes, most working age claimants would have an
increased level of Council Tax Reduction (i.e. would be financially better off) whether
or not they have children.

The proposal to align with some national welfare changes is considered to balance the
benefit of making the CTRS up to date and easier to understand by reflecting the
national welfare scheme, reflecting inflationary changes since 2013, and the desire to
provide additional financial support to a group who are in particular need. It is not
proposed to align the CTRS with all national welfare changes. For example, it is not
proposed to align with the two child limit for child allowances. This is because it would
decrease the level of Council Tax Reduction a claimant would be entitled to (i.e. make
them financially worse off). It is considered that aligning the CTRS with all national
welfare changes would worsen the financial position of groups who are in particular
need.

The Council is obliged to consider whether to revise or replace its CTRS each year.
However, it is not obliged actually to revise or replace it. If any revision or replacement
is to be made, the Council must follow the consultation process set out in the
legislation and changes must be made by 11 March, to take effect from 1 April. The
decision has to be made by Full Council. In order to give the Council sufficient time to
implement any changes, Full Council should formally agree the proposals in January.

Therefore, the proposal is made now to ensure that any additional financial support for
residents can take effect as soon as possible, from 1 April 2019.

Alternative options considered

The number of possible changes to the CTRS are virtually infinite. Councils have a
wide discretion to tailor support based on factors such as:

a) Income;
b) Capital;



Page 7

¢) Number of dependants;
d) Whether the person has made an application for a reduction.

Bearing in mind the Council’s draft policy position referred to above, the following
other options in particular have been considered in detail, but are not being included in
the consultation process:

e No change to the existing CTRS;

e Increasing the maximum level of Council Tax Reduction from 80.2% to 100%
for all working age claimants;

e Limiting the amount of Council Tax Reduction received in higher value
properties to the amount provided in a designated band; and

e Altering the capital savings limit.

It should be noted that the Council could also reduce the maximum level of Council
Tax Reduction from the existing rate (80.2%). However, this would not be consistent
with the Council’s stated purpose to provide increased support to those residents most
in need and so is not put forward as an option here.

No change to the existing CTRS

This is not recommended because the Council has indicated a commitment to
providing additional financial support to residents in receipt of Council Tax Reduction
to alleviate the financial burden for the least well-off.

Increasing the maximum level of Council Tax Reduction from 80.2% to
100% for all working age claimants

This is not recommended because it would mean a significant additional cost
(£843,000) to the Council’s budget that would increase the additional cost of the
scheme from an estimated £1.6m, of the preferred option, to £2.44m in 2019/20. The
preferred option, which relates principally to a particular group of working age
claimants considered to be in particular need, is thought to strike a balance between
providing additional support to a group in need and the financial impact on the Council
and its services.

Limiting the amount of Council Tax Reduction received in higher value
Properties to the amount provided in a designated band

The Council could “cap” the level of support based on the Council Tax liability of a
designated Band. For instance, if the limit was set at Band D, the maximum support a
claimant could receive would be no more than they would get if they lived in a Band D
property, even if they lived in a higher Band property.

This is not recommended because it would significantly increase Council Tax bills for
residents who are affected by the cap (i.e. those in bands above the limit). It is
recognised that claimants in receipt of Council Tax Reduction are financially burdened
and need support.

Altering the capital savings limit



52.

Page 8

Currently, if a resident has more than £10,000 in capital they do not qualify for support
under the CTRS.

Changing the capital savings limit is not recommended because it is considered that
the £10,000 limit strikes the right balance between recognising residents have a need
to save and develop sustainable long-term financial plans, and ensuring the scheme
reaches the most vulnerable residents.

AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR BROADWATER FARM ESTATE DISTRICT
HEATING SYSTEM

The Cabinet Member for Housing & Estate Renewal introduced the report which
related to the medium-rise blocks on the estate that had failed a test relating to blocks
with piped gas. It was noted that the only way to fully mitigate this risk was to remove
piped gas to the blocks entirely. Homes for Haringey had already started the work to
achieve this, and this report recommended the approval of a contract to carry out the
next stages of the work.

Following questions from ClIr Dennison the subsequent points were noted:

e Regarding the discrepancy between 1.4 and 6.12 of the report, the latter
paragraph was intending to indicate the lead in time from January 2018 to
October 2018 for fitting temporary boilers.

e The Council would be providing financial assistance to residents who found
their heating bills were higher as a result of the use of temporary boilers (as
temporary boilers were oil fired which was more expensive than gas). It was the
Council’s intention to make sure that residents were not worse off during the
period of the temporary boilers. By phase 3, when gas boilers would be
replaced by a district system, the Council would be acquiring gas at block
prices and this would decrease the prices for residents.

Following consideration of exempt information:

RESOLVED

1. To approve the direct award of the works contract at an estimated value of
£12.6m to Engie LTD (formerly Keepmoat LTD) through the LHC framework
(N7 — workstream three) for the works required to install and commission a
temporary heating system across Broadwater Farm and latterly install and
commission the full energy system.

2. To approve as required by Section 1 — Financial Regulations paragraph 5.23
(b) the virement of £3.210m from the HRW leaseholder acquisition budget to
the Broadwater Farm heating scheme.

3. To approve as required by Section 1 — Financial Regulations paragraph 5.23
(b) the virement of £4.008m from the Building Regulations Review budget to
the Broadwater Farm heating scheme.



Page 9

4. To agree the budget of £13.0m for the Broadwater Farm heating scheme.

5. To agree not to seek to recharge leaseholders their proportion of the cost of
these capital works linked to the provision of temporary heating systems and
the full energy centre upgrade.

6. To note that unrecovered leaseholder charges will be no greater than £2m.
Reason for decision

The nine medium-rise blocks on Broadwater Farm (Croydon, Debden, Hawkinge,
Hornchurch, Lympne, Manston, Martlesham, Rochford, and Stapleton) have failed
structural tests for Large Panel System buildings with piped gas. A gas leak and
explosion in one of these blocks could lead to progressive collapse of the building and
significant loss of life.

The following steps have been taken to mitigate the risks arising from the findings of
the structural test

e The replacement of gas cookers with electric cookers in 464 flats in nine
medium rise blocks (the remaining flats already had electric cookers)

e The installation of gas interrupter valves in all the 728 flats in nine medium-rise
blocks which will switch off the gas if a leak is detected

To mitigate the risk more fully, piped gas must be removed from the blocks entirely.
Heat and hot water will be supplied to the medium-rise blocks initially through
temporary boilers installed at the foot of each block. These blocks will then be
connected to a renewed estate-wide district heating system. The temporary boilers
need to be commissioned before the end of October 2018, as this is the date the gas
provider has said that it will switch off gas to the blocks.

Although a tenth block, Kenley, does not have piped gas and is served by a district
heating system, the system at Kenley will also be upgraded as the works to the
medium rise blocks will require the disconnection of the Kenley pipework.

In April 2018 a design and enabling contract was let to progress design of the new
heating systems and essential enabling works, such as the erection of scaffold, the
removal of redundant pipework and the forward order of Heat Interface Units.

The design is now sufficiently progressed to award the works contract. A direct award
is being made as there is insufficient time to run a mini-competition. A direct award is
permissible under the terms of framework selected. The proposed contractor - Engie —
is ranked 2nd on the framework. The contractor ranked 1st has been approached and
they have formally declined the offer to undertake the work.

Legal Services has advised as to recoverability of the costs of these works from
leaseholders through the service charge provisions in their leases. Although the level
of leaseholder charges depends on individual calculations for each leasehold
property, it is likely that this will lead to approximately £2m of leasehold charges being
unrecovered.



53.

Page 10

Alternative options considered

It is not an option to do nothing, as the blocks do not currently meet building
regulations and the works are therefore essential to more fully mitigate the risks
identified. The works also need to be completed by the October deadline that the
energy suppliers have set for the removal for the gas supply to the blocks. If the work
is not completed before the end of October, then alternative accommodation may
need to be provided for the 728 households living in the medium-rise blocks.

Homes for Haringey could have run a full procurement process instead of using the
LHC framework. This was discounted as there was not enough time to undertake a full
procurement exercise to meet the end of October deadline for completing temporary
works.

Homes for Haringey could have run a mini-competition using the LHC framework. This
option was discounted as there is not enough time to run a mini-competition to meet
the end of October deadline for completing temporary works.

Homes for Haringey could have delivered the project in-house, but Homes for
Haringey do not have the necessary skills in-house to make this option viable.

AUTHORITY TO DELEGATE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PROVISION OF A
SINGLE WIDE AREA NETWORK SERVICE

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Insourcing introduced the report,
which sought approval to delegate an award of contract for provision of a singlewide
area network service.

The Cabinet Member explained that the Council relied on a wide area network to
connect computers and other electronic devices across Council sites to allow the
Council to perform its daily duties. The network also allowed the Council to establish
connections with other third parties to carry out the daily requirements of the
organisation. A third party provider was required to provide the service.

Following the Cabinet decision in July, the Shared digital model with Camden and
Islington had reduced in scale and scope and so there would be some IT and digital
functions that that the Council would take forward directly and under its own control.
The shared digital model still allowed the three boroughs, the financial advantage, in a
procurement process, of being in a better negotiating position and driving a better
deal.

With this in mind, the report was seeking authority for Camden to negotiate and
purchase a Wide Area Network system from a single provider but with the Council still
able to subsequently manage its own network, depending on the degree of control
required. This decision was connected to achieving efficiency and value for money
and allowing Council to do its job well.

RESOLVED



Page 11

To delegate to the Executive of the London Borough of Camden, authority to award a
contract for the provision of network services to a single supplier on behalf of all three
Councils.

Reasons for decision

The delivery of this procurement exercise was delayed whilst decisions were made
over the future shape and focus of ICT services across the three Councils.

At the Cabinet meeting on 17 July, the Council approved the new model for delivery of
local and Shared Digital services and the SDJC has been disbanded. Under the
previous terms of reference for the SDJC, the decision to award the contract for the
Wide Area Network service would have been taken by the SDJC. This decision-
making authority has been reserved for Cabinet until the new services agreement and
TUPE transfer process completes in October 2018.

This report seeks permission to delegate the award of contract to the Executive of the
London Borough of Camden ensuring that the contract can be awarded as soon as
practical.

This decision will not affect the future delivery of networks services at a local level as
the services can be delivered and managed as a sovereign service for each Council,
but continuing the procurement jointly will generate savings and enable future
transformation work to be completed.

For Haringey any further delay in undertaking the procurement could place delivery of
the programme at risk as the refresh and move to a new service will take a significant
time, perhaps as long as 18 months.

Alternative options considered

There are two options available currently: delegate the decision or retain individual
Council approvals:

i) Delegate award of contract to the Executive of the London Borough of
Camden — recommended

In the same way that other services have been contracted with a single supplier, there
is an opportunity for the three Councils to enter into a strategic relationship with the
successful bidder, which would have the advantage of aggregating the Councils’
influence on the supplier to deliver a high quality service and drive competitive pricing
through economies of scale. By delegating the contract award decision to the
Executive of the London Borough of Camden, this would increase the pace at which
the procurement activity can be completed, enabling transition to the service more
quickly.

The Councils can choose at a later stage to either enter into a single contract with the
successful bidder or call off individual contracts.



54.

Page 12

i) Retain individual approval of contract award — not recommended

It is recognised that each Council will want to be able to influence the decision on
what technology is used to delivery network services and also who the successful
supplier would be. All three Councils approved the procurement strategy for the
services; and, by having an evaluation panel made up of representatives across all
three Councils this requirement can be met. The project, which is running against a
deadline to refresh the existing services, has already been significantly delayed.
Further delays whilst the three Councils complete contract award governance would
place effective delivery of the programme at risk.

AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ADULTS ADVOCACY SERVICE

The Leader introduced the report which concerned the provision of advocacy under
the Mental Capacity Act and the Mental Health Act, work which has been led by
Haringey in partnership with Barnet and Enfield in light of our shared mental health
provider the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust. Provision of advocacy
under these Acts was statutory and required specialist arrangements to be in place
given the vulnerability and the particular circumstances of the people affected.

The Leader confirmed that the two organisations named in the recommendations were
London Living Wage employers.

In response to questions from ClIr Dennison, the following was noted.

e Assurance was provided that the Council would continue to monitor the
efficiency of the services to ensure the required outcomes for concerned
residents was being achieved. There was a Quality Assurance team in the
Commissioning team that undertook outreach work that fulfilled this role and
regularly monitored the quality of existing and new contracts.

e With regard to the withdrawal of the first ranked provider, considerable efforts
were made to discuss their withdrawal, including face-to-face contact.

e In relation to the differences in scoring, this information was contained in the
exempt part of the report and could not be divulged in the open part of the
meeting.

Following consideration of the exempt information:

RESOLVED

1.1. That cabinet approves the award of contracts in respect of the provision of Joint
Advocacy Services for the London Boroughs of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey to
Bidder B and Bidder C for an initial period of 3 years with an option to extend
for a further period of one plus one year.



55.

Page 13

1.2. Subject to approval being granted the London Borough of Haringey will enter
into contractual agreements jointly with the London Boroughs of Barnet and
Enfield, and award contracts to the successful bidders.

Reasons for decision

The current contracts for IMHA / IMCA and Care Act expire on 30th September
2018.

A full tender process was carried out for the services and the award of contract
approved by Cabinet in February 2018. Following the Cabinet decision, award
notifications were issued and the process for establishing contracts with the 1st
ranked tenderer was commenced to ensure the start of contracts in July 2018.

This provider withdrew from the tender in May 2018 and as such officers have
extended our current contracts for IMHA/IMCA and Care Act Advocacy services until
30th September 2018 with a view to ensuring enough time for effective transition
arrangements to be put in place with the incumbent providers and incoming providers.

Cabinet is asked to agree to award to the 2nd ranked tenderers following the
withdrawal of the winning tenderer.

Alternative options considered
Haringey to commission advocacy services independently:

This option was considered but it was deemed more beneficial to jointly commission
the services with neighbouring boroughs in order to benefit from economies of scale
associated with collaborative procurements.

Haringey, Enfield and Barnet to re-commission IMHA, IMCA and Care Act
Advocacy services again via a new procurement process, extending our
existing contracts until 2019.

The option of undertaking a 2nd procurement exercise for these services following the
withdrawal of the 1stranked bidder has been explored with the boroughs of Barnet and
Enfield but discounted because officers believe the market in these services is such
that the outcome from any subsequent tender exercise is unlikely to be markedly
different. Officers do not expect additional providers beyond those who engaged in the
procurement to partake in a tender exercise. Officers are also concerned that interim
arrangements do not provide the necessary certainty for operational staff and indeed
residents who access advocacy services as services can be required over a long
period of time (12 months plus). To ensure continuity of advocate is available to
residents the sooner long-term contracts can be established the better.

Do nothing
This is not an option as these are statutory services

OUT OF HOME 'STREET FURNITURE' ADVERTISING



Page 14

The Leader introduced the report, outlining that the Council had a duty to
communicate and engage with all Haringey residents. Part of that duty involved
ensuring that residents are aware of services that are available, activity and events
that were taking place in the borough and any key messages the Council and partners
needed to convey.

One channel used for this communication activity was on-street sites such as poster
sites. The existing contract, which had run for over 20 years and included 29 static
single and double-sided poster sites, which did not offer best value for the Council or
residents. It currently incurred cost for the Council to utilise these sites and was an
outdated method of communication. Therefore, it had been decided to review the
current contract and set out an invitation to tender (ITT) and procurement process to
deliver not only a more current method of communication but also engage in a
contract that could deliver a commercial return. The report set out the result of the
procurement process.

In response to questions from Councillor Dennison, the following was noted.

e In relation to the potential £2.5m income over 3 years, this was a guaranteed
potential income based on the sites that have been identified. This was at a
minimum level, depending on success rate.

¢ Noted that the conditions of the new contract allowed the Council to review the
contract implementation, once sites set out in report were implemented, and
then take a view, based on assessment of delivery against the contract, on
whether to increase the threshold for income.

e In relation to the collection of information from the beacons and forward facing
cameras, the Assistant director for Strategy and Communications would
provide a written response.

e The digital screens would be placed on existing Poster sites so there was no
conservation assessment required. The successful bidder would be working
with Highways Team to ensure installations were well implemented.

Further to considering the exempt information:

RESOLVED

To approve the request for the Council to enter into a contract with Supplier A for the
Provision of Digital Street Advertising in accordance with CSO 9.01.1 (Tender
Process) as permitted under CSO 9.07.1(d) (Award Process) for a period of 10 years
from | October 2018 — September 2028 for a contract income value of £2.05 million.
There is an option to extend for a further 5 years for a total contract income value of
£3 million.

Reasons for decision



Page 15

The current contract will soon expire and there is a requirement for the Council to
use all possible channels to communicate with residents.

The Council is increasingly seeking opportunities to generate income and therefore
contribute towards achieving the savings targets set in the medium term financial
strategy.

The appointment of the Supplier (Supplier A) will allow the Council to achieve the
aims set in 4.1 and 4.2.

Through the new contractual arrangement, the Council will receive an expected
income of £3 million over a 15-year period. This is in contrast to the current contract,
which costs the Council £13,600 per annum in business rates and £495 for each
campaign or use of the poster sites.

The current contract allows for 29 double-sided paper panels (58 screens in total).
These panels will initially be replaced with 15 double-sided digital screens (30 screens
in total). The advantage of digital screens over paper screens is that they can
significantly increase the volume of commercial advertising. Smaller, local retailers will
be able to buy digital screen space time for their own advertising (currently this is not
the case) and corporate messages can be displayed for up to 15% of the assets’
inventory.

As a result of 4.5, the Council will be meeting its objective of decluttering its
pavements of unnecessary street furniture. The reduced number of screens will
actually generate a sizeable income stream for the Council. This is a good example of
the Council achieving its “more for less” initiative.

In order to ensure compliance with EU procurement legislation and to ensure value for
money, Strategic Procurement led an Open Tender exercise in accordance with CSO
9.01.1. The tender was advertised in the Official Journal of the European Union
(OJEU) and Contract Finder. The Competition was based on:

Price 50%
Quality 50%

The above evaluation weighting was applied to ensure the Council’s requirement for
high quality, sensitive, accurate and critical data was met by the winning supplier.

Responses
Two bids were received following the Open Tender Process.
Suppliers

The following is the summary of the outcome of the tender evaluation and clarification
process for all Suppliers that tendered.

| Supplier | Price Score | Quality Score | Final Score | Quality Score |




56.

Page 16

Supplier B 23 40 63 2nd

Supplier A 50 47 97 1st

Alternative options considered

Do nothing

This was not an option as the income (£3 million) generated by this contract would
contribute to the Council’s aim of increasing income where possible and appropriate.

Use of Frameworks as an alternative to an Open Tender process

This was not considered as an option as there was no existence of any Framework
Agreements that accommodated this provision.

UNOCCUPIED AND UNFURNISHED PROPERTY DISCOUNTS

The Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the report, which summarised the
proposed cessation of two of the Council’s discretionary Council Tax discounts related
to (i) unoccupied and unfurnished properties, and (ii) vacant properties requiring or
undergoing major repair or structural alteration.

The Cabinet Member for Finance continued to outline the manifesto commitment to
redistribution of the Council Tax burden. This included exploring discretionary relief
and targeting support for residents in particular need. Over the last 4 years the
Council had managed to maintain a balanced budget in a difficult financial context and
these financial pressures were likely to continue. The cessation of two of the Council’s
discretionary Council Tax discounts would also mean that the Council joined the pool
of neighbouring boroughs that had already abolished this discount.

In taking forward this decision, Cabinet were aware that Council services need to be
run and properties in the borough benefit from these services, including those that
were vacant. The cessation of these discounts would enable the Council to raise
money to mitigate the cost in supporting families most in need.

The following information was provided to questions from the Leader and ClIr
Dennison:

e The cost of not abolishing these discounts sooner was more than £1m to the
taxpayer over the last 3 years.

e In relation to homeowners of vacant properties which were undergoing major
repair and restructure being deterred from bringing their home back into use,
due to additional expense of the Council Tax payment, the Cabinet Member
contended that the property would still benefit from Council Services and house
price rises and therefore this was a fair charge.



Page 17

e With regards to a Housing Association being deterred from updating properties
or bringing them back into use by these discounts, the Cabinet Member
responded and advised that Housing Associations had their own business
model and would likely be able to take account of these additional charges.

e With regards to getting more empty properties back into use, and the
suggestion to increase the liability of the home owner on a month-by-month
basis, this would be considered going forward.

e Noted that there was a high degree of description, contained within government
guidance, on what the Council could do with discounts and the report was
seeking to operate within these descriptions, whilst seeking to bring properties
back into market as soon as they can be included.

RESOLVED

To recommend to Full Council to cease two of the Council’s discretionary Council Tax
discounts from 1 April 2019, namely for:

e Unoccupied and substantially unfurnished properties; and

e Vacant properties that either require or are undergoing major repair work to
render them habitable; that have undergone such work in the past six months;
or that are undergoing structural alteration.

Reasons for decision

The two Council Tax discounts are at the Council’s discretion. The administration has
indicated a desire to appraise the existing fleet of discretionary powers given the
continuing need to make savings to the wider budget.

Abolishing the two Council Tax discounts would generate an estimated saving of
£462,800 per year, which would support the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy and help mitigate its funding pressures.

Under the current arrangements, an unoccupied and furnished property receives no
Council Tax discount, while an unoccupied and unfurnished property receives the
discount. The Council seeks to address the imbalance and bring the arrangements in
line with those for unoccupied and furnished properties.

Some of the Council’s neighbouring boroughs, such as LB Enfield, LB Islington and
LB Barnet have abolished both Council Tax discounts. Therefore, the proposal would
bring Haringey in line with its neighbouring boroughs.

It is recognised that Council Tax payers who currently claim these discounts are
unlikely to be making full use of Council services whilst the property is unoccupied.
However, Council Tax is not charged on the basis that every payer will use every
service and Council services do not stop or reduce in cost when a property becomes
empty.



S7.

58.

59.

Page 18

There are a number of means of reducing or eliminating Council Tax liability available
and that would not be affected by the recommendation. For example, the exemption
following the death of the occupant, the single person discount and disregards for
students or those detained in hospital.

Alternative options considered

No Change

The Council could choose not to abolish its Council Tax discount for either (i)
unoccupied and unfurnished properties, or (ii) vacant properties requiring or
undergoing major repair or structural alteration.

This is not proposed because the Council is under significant financial pressure to
deliver a sustainable Medium Term Financial Strategy. Abolishing the
Council Tax discounts would generate substantial savings to the Council.

Remove only one of the discounts

Removing only the discount for unoccupied and unfurnished properties would
generate an estimated saving of £341,300 per year. Removing only the discount for
vacant properties requiring or undergoing major repair or structural alteration would
generate an estimated saving of £121,500 per year.

This is not proposed because the Council is under significant financial pressure to
deliver a sustainable Medium Term Financial Strategy. Abolishing both Council Tax
discounts would generate substantial savings to the Council.

Extend the scope of the Discounts

This is not proposed as it would increase the level of funding pressures already
SIGNIFICANT AND DELEGATED ACTIONS
RESOLVED

To note the significant and delegated decisions taken by Directors in July.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as the items

below contain exempt information, as defined under paragraph, 3 and 5, Part 1,
schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



Page 19

60. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR BROADWATER FARM ESTATE DISTRICT
HEATING SYSTEM

As per item 52.
61. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ADULTS ADVOCACY SERVICE
As per item 54.
62. OUT OF HOME 'STREET FURNITURE' ADVERTISING
As per item 56.
63. EXEMPT MINUTES
RESOLVED
To agree the exempt minutes of the meeting held on the 17" of July 2018.
64. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

None

CHAIR: Councillor Joseph Ejiofor

Signed by Chair ...



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21 Agenda Item 9

Report for: Cabinet — 11 September 2018

Title: Quarter 1 (Period 3) Budget Monitoring for 2018/19

Report

authorised by: Jon Warlow — Interim Chief Finance Officer & Section 151 Officer
Lead Officer: Frances Palopoli — Head of Finance Operations extn 3896

Ward(s) affected: n/a

Report for key/
Non Key Decision Key

1.
11

2.2

2.3

3.1.

Introduction

This budget monitoring report covers the position at Quarter one (period 3) of the
2018/19 financial year including Revenue, Capital, Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
and Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) budgets. The report focuses on significant budget
variances including those arising as a result of the forecast non-achievement of Cabinet
approved MTFS savings.

Cabinet Member Introduction

Haringey, like others, continues to face significant challenges in delivering agreed
outcomes within restricted budget parameters. We have an agreed medium term
financial strategy (MTFS) that we are currently working on refreshing and | am very
much alive to the impact on this of the forecasts in our regular in year monitoring.

The year-end revenue forecasts at Qtrl, outlined in this report, are indicating an
overspend close to £6m a significant amount of which is related to forecast non-delivery
of agreed savings. This is the position after applying mitigation which was built into the
budget as part of the current MTFS in recognition of the challenges in delivering
savings at the level and pace required. Clearly this figure must be a matter of concern
at this time and | will be looking to ensure that we are actively addressing this position.

In response to the Qtrl forecast, | have instigated a budget delivery board, chaired by
myself, which will help to highlight and challenge the current approach to the key
financial issues as well as collectively focussing on real solutions. A review is also
underway of the current framework in place to monitor and track delivery of savings.
Both of these | believe will ensure we are best placed to deliver our priorities as well as
our statutory duties. | look forward to providing a more detailed update on progress with
savings in the Qtr2 report.

Recommendations
Cabinet is recommended to:

Note the forecast revenue outturn for the General Fund (GF), including corporate items,
of £5.9m overspend post mitigations of £7.5m and consider what remedial actions



3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

6.2.

Page 22

need to be implemented to bring closer to the approved budget (Section 6, Table 1, and
Appendix 1).

Note that the final 2017/18 general fund outturn, post completion of the external audit,
was an increased overspend of £0.404m compared to the £0.019m reported in the
outturn which has been offset against the GF reserve. The 2018/19 brought forward
GF reserve balance is now £15.5m still in line with the level proposed in the budget
paper approved by Full Council in February 2018.

Note the net HRA forecast of £0.2m overspend. (Section 6, Table 2, and Appendix 2).

Note the net DSG forecast of £2.59m overspend, the actions being taken to seek to
address this and the potential implications for the GF. (Section 7 and Table 3).

Note the latest MTFS savings position in 2018/19 which indicates that only 33%
(E5.2m) will be achieved. To consider what remedial action is required to improve this
position. (Section 8, Table 4).

Note the latest capital forecast expenditure of £192.8m in 2018/19 which equates to
84% of the approved budget. To also consider & approve the proposed changes to the
approved budget (Section 9, and Table 5).

Endorse the measures in place to reduce overspend in service areas; and
To approve the budget virements as set out in Appendix 3.

Reason for Decision

A strong financial management framework, including oversight by Members and senior
management, is an essential part of delivering the council’s priorities and statutory
duties.

Alternative Options Considered

The report of the management of the Council’s financial resources is a duty of the
Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer), helping members to exercise their role
and no other options have therefore been considered.

Revenue Outturn

. As at 30th June 2018, the Council’s quarter 1 finance position (including HRA) is a

projected overspend of £8.8m for the year ending 2018/19, the General Fund element
being £5.9m. This is after applying mitigations of £7.5m mainly from the application of
the budget resilience reserve built into the budget to smooth delays in delivering agreed
savings.

Regarding the proposed use of the Budget Resilience Reserve (BRR). The 2018/19
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (2018/19-2022/23) report approved by
Council recognised that there were risks around the delivery of 100% of planned
savings in the MTFS particularly as a number of proposals had been identified in the
original 2015-18 MTFS. It was agreed that the BRR be established which could be used
to offset non-delivery of these savings. As well as the budgeted movements of £8m to
this reserve in 2018/19, the closedown of accounts for 2017/18 allowed a further £5m to



6.3.

6.4.

Page 23

be put into this fund. Having further reviewed the expected delivery of budget savings
and established a first picture on the in-year budget pressures, a part utilisation of the
BRR is proposed here, rather than later in the year or at year end. The resultant net
General Fund pressure of £5.9m still represents a substantial challenge to the Council’s
in-year financial management and considerable attention must be applied to identify
mitigations to tackle this.

It should be noted that the future years’ budgetary implications of ongoing non-
deliverability of some existing planned savings is being addressed in the preparatory
work underway for the 2019/24 Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Table 1 below sets out financial performance at priority level. A detailed analysis at
directorate level is attached in Appendix 1. The forecasts in the appendix are shown
before the application of mitigation.

Table 1 — Revenue Budget Monitoring Forecast for Quarter 1 2018/19

6.5.

6.6.

P3

Non- Forecast

Revised| Delivery Base P3 to

2018/19| of| Budget InYear| Outturn| Budget

Priority Budget| Savings| Pressure| Mitigation| Forecast| Variance
£'000| £'000| £'000| £'000| £'000| £'000

PR1 Childrens 62,301 4,524 354 (2,000)] 65,179 2,878
PR2 Adults 102,189 3,490 877 (2,000)] 104,556 2,367
PR3 Safe & Sustainable Places 29,696 90 906 0] 30,692 996
PR4 Growth & Employment 7,733 0 (20) 7,713 (20)
PR5 Homes & Communities 15,823 0 316 (316)] 15,823 0
PRX Enabling 32,369 2,688 200 (3,180)] 32,077 (293)
General Revenue Total 250111 10,792] 2633 (7.496)] 256,040 5929
DSG 0 0 2,592 2,592 2,592
PR5 Homes & Communities(HRA) 0 231 231 231
Haringey Total 250,111 ] 10,792 5,456 -7,496 ] 258,863 8,752

A summary of the forecast outturn position for Priorities showing significant
variances is outlined below. These variances include the impact of the non-delivery
of MTFES savings which are further discussed in section 8.

PRIORITY 1 Overspend £2.9m

Priority 1 is forecasting to spend £65.2m against an approved budget of £62.3m
resulting in a projected overspend of £2.9m at P3. It should be noted that this figure
assumes the release of £2m from the budget resilience reserve to offset the impact of
slower than planned delivery of savings. The Director is focussing on producing a
coherent programme which will deliver the planned savings albeit over a revised
timeframe. Officers will continue to look for alternative in year mitigations.

The areas with material variances are detailed below.

Children’s Placements ( £2.6m overspend)




6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

Page 24

e Young Adults Placements (E771k overspend): this is due to non-delivery of 17/18 &
18/19 savings. Possible mitigation is a more detailed review of step-down against
current pathways to be conducted for P4 monitoring although this will need to be
assessed against the change in legislation resulting in increasing new cases for 21-25
year olds.

e LAC External Placements (£2,261k) overspend): The underlying driver is the
volume of placements. Whilst similar in number to last year, there has been an
increase in high cost placements, now standing at 40, coupled with an increase in the
weekly cost for these placements. In mitigation the service are developing a new
market contract with West London Alliance as well as a continual review of the top 20
high cost placements. Work is still on going to develop a viable plan to deliver the new
2018/19 savings.

e Internal Fostering Placements (£361k underspend): this is due to the lack of
availability of in house foster carers.

Other Children’s Social Care (£1.01m overspend)

The overspend is all within the First Response Service. £644k is staffing related,;
£376k the impact of reliance on agency staff and £268k from an unfunded, additional
assessment team brought in previously to deal with higher demand / backlog of cases.
To mitigate this pressure, the service will continue to review recruitment policy to
improve the position whilst looking to disband the additional team later in the year.

The remaining £353k arises from our statutory requirement to continue to support
clients with No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF). This is in line with the final 17/18
figure.

Children & Young People with Additional Needs (£1.04m overspend)
£592k is within SEND and is due to the statutory duty to provide transport for over 19
years old as part of the SEND Reform coupled with an underlying deficit against the
income target. The remainder is £283k in Family Support & a shortfall in income of
£165kK in the Inclusion Service.

PRIORITY 2 Overspend £2.4m

Priority 2 is forecasting to spend £104.5m against an approved budget of £102.2m
resulting in a projected overspend of £2.4m at P3. This figure currently assumes the
release of £2m from the budget resilience reserve to offset the proposed re-profiling of
the brought forward 2017/18 savings. It is presently assumed that one fifth of this will be
delivered this year and further detail of future years’ delivery will be provided in the next
update of the MTFS report. Officers will continue to look for further in year mitigation to
reduce the need to draw down against the contingency.

The areas with material variances are detailed below.

6.10. Osborne Grove Nursing Home (£0.7m overspend). Whilst no new clients have been

placed in the home, the management & staffing costs to run the service for those who
remain, plus loss of client contributions & loss of health funding for purchased beds,
contributes to this cost pressure.

6.11.Care packages (E3.5m overspend). This remains at the same level as the carried

forward pressure from 2017/18. The pressure is spread across all the key client groups



Page 25

of older clients with physical support needs, clients with learning disabilities, and clients
with mental health needs.

PRIORITY 3 Overspend £0.99m

6.12. The service is forecasting a £0.99m overspend at Quarter 1. The main variances are
detailed below including the mitigating strategies that management already have in
place to address these.
e Waste Services - £553k overspend. £213k arises from contract inflation pressure
within the Veolia contract which management are currently investigating. £340k from a
dispute with HfH over charges for waste provision services, management are in
negotiation with HfH to resolve.
e Operations - £241k arising from salary pressure and vehicle cost overspends in
Parks and £150k arising from unachievable income and inflation shortfall against the
Ringway contract both within Highways.
e Commissioning — disputes of £200k with Amey. Management are looking to resolve
this via arbitration or adjudication.

PRIORITY 4 Break Even
6.13. There are no issues to report in this priority.
PRIORITY 5 (General Fund) Break Even

6.14. The temporary accommodation (TA) budget is currently under pressure primarily due to
the volume of clients but also the forecast level of compensation payment costs.
Currently it is assumed that this can be offset by unbudgeted income from TA lodges
hostels and reduced expenditure in some other areas along with the use of the flexible
homelessness grant.

6.15. As acknowledged in the June 2018 Cabinet report on the Broadwater Farm estate, the
impact of temporarily re-housing tenants is forecast to create a pressure of c. £202k on
the TA budgets in 2018/19. These costs have yet to materialise but will need to be
covered. Further clarity will be available for the quarter two report.

PRIORITY 5 (HRA) Overspend £0.23m

6.16. The HRA budget is projecting overspend of £0.2m for the year ending March 2019. The
HRA outturn summary is set out in Table 2 below.

Table 2 — HRA Budget Forecast (Quarter 1)

HRA Budget (2017/18) 2018/19 Q3
Revised Budget | Forecast Q3
Outturn Forecast to

Budget
Variance
£'000 £'000 £'000
Managed Services Income (107,554) (107,178) 375
Managed Services Expenditure 14,025 13,854 (170)
Retained Services Expenditure 93,529 93,555 26




6.17.

6.18.

6.19.

6.20.

Page 26

(Surplus)/ Deficit | 0 231 231

The main drivers of the variance are the under recovery of dwelling income as
properties are being held back from letting due to the need to rehouse residents from
the Tangmere block on Broadwater Farm, and a higher than anticipated number of
garage voids which is impacting on income streams. HfH have undertaken a review of
garages so work is underway to resolve the latter pressure. The income shortfall is
being offset by a number of small underspends on the managed services expenditure.

PRIORITY X Underspend £0.293m

Priority X consists of Corporate budgets (NSR) and service budgets.

Non Service Revenue (NSR).

These are corporate budgets and the corporate council-wide savings have been
allocated here (Voluntary severance £1.2m; Procurement £0.7m; Bad debt provision
£0.5m; Alexander House decant £0.25). Since the budget was set in February, the
level of budget pressures and other savings challenges in service budgets has become
more apparent and it is now felt that an apportionment of these corporate savings could
not reasonably be expected to be delivered by the services without further exacerbating
their already reported budgetary difficulties. It is therefore proposed to offset £2m of
this pressure against the budget resilience reserve with the remainder being mitigated
by underspends on debt financing costs.

Priority X Service Budgets

The services are forecasting delivery of 91% of agreed savings and are broadly in line
with agreed budget. The main area of concern is the Schools Traded Service, within
the Shared Service Centre which continues to forecast a shortfall in income (£200k). A
paper is currently being prepared to outline options for this service moving forward.

Ward Budgets

In July 2015 a decision was taken to create a budget of £10k per ward (total £190Kk).
As this was a new approach to community engagement, it was agreed that it be
subsequently reviewed. Consequently, it is confirmed that the 2018/19+ Council
budget contain on-going provision for £10k per ward.

The 2018/19 scheme will be commenced in September 2018 but for this year it will be
top sliced by £9.5k (£500/ward). This budget will part fund the activities for Black
History month (£4,750) and the Gender Equality month (£4,750). The balance (£9.5k)
of this one-off funding for these 2 corporate events will come from corporate budgets.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Overspend £1.17m

. The DSG estimated overspend is primarily due to a £1.5m reduction in the high needs

block funding announced in the revised July allocations plus additional pressure in top
up funding due to an increased growth in high needs population. In the schools block
the forecast underspend on the growth fund is mainly driven by the changes in planned
admissions numbers (PAN) numbers during the year.

Table 3 — DSG Position Quarter 1



8.2.

9.

Page 27

In year position at PO3

Forecast Closing

Blocks Opening DSG at 01/04/18 (18/19) DSG 18/19 - P03
Schools block (1,267) (270) (1,537)
Central block 0 2 0
Early years block (1,653) 6 (1,647)
High needs block 1,500 2,854 4,355
Total (1,419) 2,592 1,171

n.b. Officers are planning a meeting with the DfE to challenge the revised funding

allocations for the High Needs block.

MTFS Savings 2018/19
. The MTFS savings target for 2018/19 (including brought forward unachieved savings
from 2017/18) is £16.031m. As at Quarter 1 of the financial yeatr, it is projected that only
£5.239m (33%) of the target will be achieved. Table 4 below summarises the current
savings position at priority level.

Table 4 — Summary — 2018/19 MTFS Savings by Priority

Further work is underway to challenge the forecasts and more detailed information will
be provided for the Quarter 2 report. However, based on the position currently received
it is likely that a substantial level of savings will not be deliverable as originally planned.
This will clearly have implications for future years’ forecasts and this will be taken into
account as part of the MTFS refresh which is currently underway.

MTFS Savings 2018/19

2017/18 Pre- New Total Savings Savings | % Achieved
B/Fwd Agreed MTFS Projected | Shortfall
MTFS MTFS 2018/19 to be
2018/19 Achieved
2018/19
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Priority 1 3,173 1,748 - 4,921 397 4,524 8%
Priority 2 2,900 - 2,390 5,290 1,800 3,490 34%
Priority 3 75 1,660 - 1,735 1,645 90 95%
Priority 4 250 - 50 300 300 - 100%
Priority 5 - - 50 50 50 - 100%
Priority X 218 301 - 519 471 48 91%
corporate 2,966 | 250 | 3216 576 | 2,640 18%
Savings
Total 9,582 3,959 2,490 16,031 5,239 10,792 33%

Capital Expenditure Forecast at Quarter 1
9.1. The agreed (February 2018) General Fund capital programme for 2018/19 of
£136.687m included an assumed carry forward of £80.088m budget from 2017/18. At




9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

Page 28

closedown, the carry forward figure was updated to £96.545m. The 2018/19 budgets
included in this report therefore include this additional carry forward of £16.457m.

In addition to this, the table below reflects the 18/19 adjustments proposed in
paragraphs 9.3 — 9.14 below.

Table 5 — Capital Expenditure (Quarter 1)

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 Movement
Priority Revised | P3 Forecast P3 Forecast | in Forecast
Budget Outturn Variance Variance
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Priority 1 - Children's 11,410 5,853 (5,556) 0
Priority 2 - Adults 4,387 3,887 (500) 0
Priority 3 - Safe & Sustainable Places 20,100 19,403 (697) 0
Priority 4 - Growth & Employment 69,080 58,096 (10,984) 0
Priority 5 - Homes & Communities 34,225 34,224 1) 0
Priority X - Enabling 20,689 6,810 (13,879) 0
General Fund Total 159,890 128,273 (31,618) 0
HRA Priority 5 - Homes &
Communities 68,254 64,557 (3,697) 0
Total 228,144 192,830 (35,314) 0

At quarter 1, the capital programme is forecasting an under spend of £35.3m. The
current actual spend is low, due in part to the existence of accruals that have yet to be
matched. Services are projecting an outturn position as follows:

Priority 1 is undertaking extensive surveys of the condition and suitability of the school
estate. The early surveys have indicated that there are some early, urgent works, which
need to be completed. It is possible that the projected outturn will be improved upon.
There are no proposed budget changes this period.

Priority 2 is projecting a minor underspend on the supported living budget and there
are no proposed budget changes this period. In addition, a review of revenue
expenditure within the Community Alarm Service has highlighted £177k of expenditure
that is capital expenditure. It is proposed to include this scheme within capital
programme and fund this through an allocation from the approved contingency.

Priority 3 is projecting an underspend of £0.7m, which is in line with the current capital
spend allocation so far within the Corporate Landlord budget line. It is possible that this
outturn projection may change, if additional projects are undertaken.

In Priority 3, five adjustments are proposed. As part of the closing of accounts process,
a review of revenue expenditure was undertaken. This found that the revenue budget
was incurring street lighting and borough roads costs that were capital costs. The



9.8.

9.9.

Page 29

expenditure was capitalised and as this is a permanent adjustment, there is a need to
increase the capital budget for Street Lighting by £0.225m and Borough Roads by
£0.385m. There has been a corresponding reduction in revenue budgets.

The historic developer s106/s278 budget is being reviewed and, whilst the review is
ongoing, its early conclusion is that the current level of estimated resources (and hence
spend), both this year and in future years, is too high. The change is primarily driven by
the assumptions used in setting the budget some years ago being overly optimistic and
not taking into account the increasing application of the community infrastructure levy to
fund developer related infrastructure. It is proposed to reduce the 2018/19 budget to
£0.75m and the budget for future years will be reset as part of the 2019/20 budget
process.

A new scheme to fund the development of dynamic purchasing systems is
recommended for inclusion with a budget of £0.917m. These schemes are part of the
invest to save strategy.

9.10. The Council has been awarded a Crime and Disorder grant from MOPAC spread over

two years. The 18/19 capital allocation is £121k. It is proposed to add this scheme to
the capital programme.

9.11.Priority 4 is projecting an underspend of £11m. The Priority 4 budget contains a large

number of schemes that are closely tied to the activities of partners and/or the granting
of planning permissions. As such, there is the possibility of a lower outturn figure than
currently projected. A much clearer picture should emerge as the year progresses.

eIn Priority 4, the Hornsey Town Hall scheme (£0.413m) has completed with the
disposal to the developer. As the Council does not own the asset, it cannot capitalise
any of the residual costs (mainly outstanding consultant’s fees). It is proposed to delete
this scheme, with any further costs being met from the proceeds of disposal, no transfer
to contingency is proposed.

e The decision of Cabinet on the 17" July to withdraw from the competitive dialogue
procedure and therefore not award a contract in relation to the Haringey Development
Vehicle means that these schemes can be removed from the agreed -capital
programme:

Northumberland Park (2018/19 budget £0.369m));

Re-provision of schools in the North Tottenham area (2018/19 budget £0.5m);
Wood Green HQ, Library & Customer Service Centre (2018/19 budget £0.25m); and
HDV Acquisitions & Receipts (2018/19 budget £1.639m).

e The removal of the HDV Acquisitions & Receipts budget does not generate any
additional spending capacity, as the budget is there to fund acquisitions that were then
to be reimbursed by the HDV to the council. It is proposed to transfer the budgeted
resources from the other HDV schemes to the approved -capital programme
contingency for 2018/19. The planned expenditure on these schemes for future years
will be reviewed as part of the capital programme refresh.

e The Council has been awarded Good Growth Funding from the GLA. A budget of
£0.65m needs to be established.



9.12.

9.13.

9.14.

10.
10.1

11.

111

11.2

11.3

114

11.5

11.6

Page 30

Priority 5 (GF) is projecting to be fully spent. The establishment of the community
benefit society (CBS) at the July Cabinet will enable expenditure to speed up. The
council has entered into a funding agreement with Newlon Housing Association for the
provision of 54 units of social housing to be funded through retained RTB receipts. This
scheme needs to be incorporated into the capital programme at a value of £6.5m.

Priority 5 (HRA) is projecting an underspend of £3.7m with the majority of the
underspend being attributable to the costs of leaseholder acquisitions on the Love Lane
Estate being met from the general fund. In addition a virement of £1.098m is requested
to establish a budget for aids and adaptations to people’s homes to make them more
accessible.

Priority 6 is projecting an underspend of £13.9m. The changes to the shared digital
service means that this budget will need to be reviewed and the spend levels are likely
to be below budget. The forecast outturn assumes that there is no spend on the
responsiveness fund, which is approximately a quarter of the forecast underspend. In
relation to the Hornsey Library, the scheme is going to tender in September and the
delay is due to the significant additional works that are now required to complete the
project.

Contributions to strategic outcomes
Adherence to strong and effective financial management will enable the Council deliver
it's stated objectives and priorities.

Statutory Officers Comments

Finance

This is a report of the Int. Director of Finance and therefore all finance implications have
been highlighted in the body of the report.

Procurement
Strategic Procurement notes the contents of this report and will continue to work with
services to enable cost reductions.

Leqgal
The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted on this report.

Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 imposes a statutory duty on the Council
to monitor during the financial year its expenditure and income against the budget
calculations. If the monitoring establishes that the budgetary situation has deteriorated,
the Council must take such action as it considers necessary to deal with the situation.
This could include, as set out in the report, action to reduce spending in the rest of the
year.

The Council must act reasonably and in accordance with its statutory duties and
responsibilities when taking the necessary action to reduce the over spend.

The Cabinet is responsible for approving virements in excess of certain limits as laid
down in the Financial Regulations at Part 4 Section |, and within the Executive’s
functions at Part 3 Section C, of the Constitution.



11.7

11.8

11.9

12.

13.

13.1.

Page 31

Equalities
The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equalities Act (2010) to have

due regard to:

e Tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the characteristics
protected under S4 of the Act. These include the characteristics of age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex (formerly gender) and sexual orientation;

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected
characteristics and people who do not; and

e Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and people
who do not.

The report provides an update on the Council’s financial position in relation to planned
MTFS savings and mitigating actions to address current budget overspends. Given the
impact on services of savings targets, all MTFS savings were subject to equality impact
assessments as report to Full Council on 27 February 2017.

Any planned mitigating actions that may have an impact beyond that identified within
the MTFS impact assessment process should be subject to new equality impact
assessment.

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 — Directorate Level Forecast (Quarter 1)
Appendix 2 — HRA Forecast (Quarter 1)

Appendix 3 - Virements

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
For access to the background papers or any further information, please contact Frances
Palopoli — Head of Finance Operations.



Page 32

Directorate Level Forecast (Q1) Appendix 1
2018/19
Revised Quarter 1 Variance
Forecast
Budget

PRIORITY_1.PR Priority 1 62,300,816 67,179,143 4,878,327
PR1_CY.PR Childrens 49,906,627 54,728,255 4,821,628
PR1_COMSIN.PR Commissioning 3,391,800 3,390,400 -1,400
PR1_PH.PR  Public Health 5,911,070 5,911,070 0
PR1_SL.PR Schools & Learning 3,091,319 3,149,418 58,099
PRIORITY_2.PR Priority 2 102,189,494 106,555,554 4,366,060
PR2_AS.PR  Adults 80,757,946 84,978,410 4,220,464
PR2_COMSIN.PR Commissioning 9,545,468 9,691,064 145,596
PR2_PH.PR  Public Health 11,886,080 11,886,080 0
PRIORITY_3.PR Priority 3 29,695,602 30,692,239 996,637
PR3_COM.PR Commercial & Operations 27,085,492 28,080,129 994,637
PR3_PH.PR  Public Health 0 0 0
PR3_COMSIN.PR Commissioning (Culture Museum & Archives) 709,910 709,910 0
PR3_CFO.PR Chief Finance Officer (Alexandra Palace) 1,900,200 1,902,200 2,000
PRIORITY_4.PR Priority 4 7,732,810 7,713,394 -19,416
PR4_PRD.PR Regeneration, Planning & Development 284,225 284,225 0
PR4_HSEGWT.PR Housing & Growth 1,773,050 1,753,634 -19,416
PR4_PLAN.PR Planning 2,147,785 2,147,785 0
PR4_PCP.PR Property & Capital Projects 202,150 202,150 0
PR4_REGEN.PR Regeneration 3,325,600 3,325,600 0
PRIORITY_5.PR Priority 5 15,823,185 16,139,588 316,403
AHO03.PR Housing Demand 10,906,303 11,222,706 316,403
AHO5.PR  Housing Commissioned Services 4,916,882 4,916,882 0
PRIORITY_X.PR Priority X 32,368,865 35,257,089 2,888,224
PRX_CFO.PR  Chief Finance Officer 17,168,325 19,301,229 2,132,904
PRX_CG.PR Corporate Gowernance 2,630,300 2,735,600 105,300
PRX_CSL.PR Customer Service and Libraries 4,746,000 4,914,822 168,822
PRX_DCE.PR Deputy Chief Executive 225,900 225,900 0
PRX_LCEO.PR Leader and Chief Executive Office 552,448 282,625 -269,823
PRX_SSC.PR Shared Service Centre 6,821,234 7,275,460 454,226
PRX_TR.PR  Transformation & Resources 224,658 521,453 296,795
TOTAL 250,110,772 263,537,007 13,426,235




Page 33

HRA Revenue Forecast (Q1) Appendix 2
201&.3/19 Quarter 1 Quarter 1 .
Revised Variance
Actual Spend Forecast
Budget
£000's £000's £000's £000's
_UEO721 Managed Services Income
H39001 Rent - Dwellings (81,071) (18,832) (80,884) 187
H39101 Rent - Garages (858) a77) (746) 112
H39102 Rent - Commercial (138) (1,065) (138)
H39201 Income - Heating (288) (71) (291) (3)
H39202 Income - Light and Power (1,095) (255) (1,092) 3
H39301 Service Charge Income - Leasehold (8,124) (6,592) (8,124)
H39401 ServChglinc SuppHousg (1,495) (354) (1,522) (27)
H39402 Service Charge Income - Concierge (1,562) (359) (1,539) 24
H39405 Grounds Maintenance (2,307) (523) (2,250) 58
H39406 Caretaking (1,845) (418) (1,797) 48
H39407 Street Sweeping (1,891) (438) (1,879) 11
H40102 Water Rates Receivable (7,090) (1,444) (7,128) (38)
H40404 Bad Debt Provision - Leaseholders 210 210
UEO721 Managed Services Income TOTAL (107,554) (30,528) (107,178) 375
UEQ0722 Managed Services Expenditure
H31300 Housing Management WG 23 3 23
H32300 Housing Management NT 28 7 28
H33400 TA Hostels 252 15 252
H34300 Housing Management ST 9 3 9
H35300 Housing Management BWF 11 11
H37210 Under Occupation 128 43 128
H39002 Rent - Hostels (1,920) (464) (1,991) (71)
H39404 Service Charge Income - Hostels (330) (80) (344) (15)
H40001 Repairs - Central Recharges 2 (7) (20) (22)
H40004 Responsive Repairs - Hostels 342 0 342
H40101 Water Rates Payable 6,024 (20) 6,059 35
H40104 HousMgmntRechg Central 107 (107)
H40111 Other RentCollection 162 22 162
H40206 HousMgmntRechg Energ 1,609 26 1,609
H40208 Special Services Cleaning 2,734 (602) 2,734
H40209 Special Services Ground Maint 1,802 38 1,802
H40212 HRA Pest Control 284 38 284
H40213 Estate Controlled Parking 20 1 20
H40303 Supporting People Payments 1,856 423 1,865 10
H40309 Commercial Property - Expenditure 2
H40401 Bad Debt Provision - Dwellings 664 664
H40405 BAd Debt Provision - Commercial
H40406 Bad Debt Provisions - Hostels 68 68
H40801 HRA- Council Tax 150 14 150
S14520 Supported Housing 3
UEO722 Managed Services Expenditure TOTAL 14,025 (628) 13,854 (170)
UEO731 Retained Services Expenditure
H38002 Anti Social Behaviour Service 581 143 581
H39601 Interest Receivable (76) (76)
H40112 Corporate democratic Core 765 572 (193)
H40301 Leasehold Payments (139) (139)
H40305 Landlords Insurance - Tenanted 312 1,395 318 6
H40306 Landlords - NNDR 132 50 (82)
H40308 Landlords Insurance - Leasehold 1,500 1,395 (105)
H40501 Capital Financing Costs 10,000 672 10,000
H40601 Depreciation - Dwellings 20,068 20,068
H40805 ALMO HRA Management Fee 40,139 40,539 400
H49000 Housing Revenue Account 16,152 16,152 0]
H60002 GF to HRA Recharges 2,952 46 2,952
H60003 Estate Renewal 339
H60004 HIERS/ Regeneration Team 867 18 867
S11100 Emergency Response Management
S14400 Supported Housing Central 278 278
UEO731 Retained Services Expenditure TOTAL 93,529 2,614 93,555 26
(Surplus) for the year on HRA Services (28,543) 232 231




Virements for Cabinet Approval

Transfers from Reserves (2018/19) - for noting

Page 34

Appendix 3

Period | Priority Service/AD Area Rev/ Cap In year Next year Reason for budget Description
changes
4 1 Children's Revenue 488,000 Transfer from Reserves Transfer from DSG Reserve to High Needs Block per
Schools Forum agreement to address spend pressures
Total 2017/18 488,000 -
Virements for Approval (2018/19)
Period | Priority |Service/AD Area Rev/ Cap Inyear [ Next year ?ﬁ::::sfor budget Description
3 1 Children's Revenue 739,000 Grant Allocation AIIocatu_)n of 2018/19 Troubled Families Grant income and
expenditure budgets
3 3 Enylronment & Revenue 1,652,900 | 1,652,900 |Budget Realignment Reprpﬂlmg of Parking income to better reflect parking
Neighbourhood activity and trends
4 3 Enylronment & Revenue 449,000 Grant Allocation Allocatpn of 2018/19 MOPAC Grant income and
Neighbourhood expenditure budgets
Realignment of Traded transport team recharge income
4 1 Children's Revenue 608,920 608,920 |Budget Realignment and expenditure budgets to better reflect current activity
levels
4 1 Children's Revenue 390,000 390,000 |Staffing Restructure Merg".‘g of Language and Autism Support team budgets
following a staffing restructure
Growith & Development Transfer of Commercial properties income and
4 45 & Housing Revenue 1,664,000 | 1,664,000 |Budget Transfer expenditure budgets from HRA to General Fund.
2 X Policy & Strategy Revenue 692,690 Grant Allocation Allocation of_ 2018/19 Controlling Migration Grant income
and expenditure budgets
Reduction in High Needs Block income and expenditure
4 1 Children's Revenue 1,086,495 | 1,086,495 |Grant Funding Adjustment |budgets to reflect a DSG funding reduction per EFA
schedule July 18
4 1 Children's Revenue 306,000 306,000 |Grant Allocation Allocation of DSG funding to Schools Growth Fund
5 3 Enylronment & Revenue 1,224.261 | 1,224,261 |Budget Realignment Reprpﬂle of Operation budgets in line with operational
Neighbourhood activity and trends
5 3 Enylronment & Revenue 1,732,749 | 1,732,749 |Budget Realignment Realignment of Parks budget to match operational
Neighbourhood structure
5 3 Enylronment & Revenue 623,846 623,846 |Budget Realignment Realignment of Public Realm budget to match operational
Neighbourhood structure
5 3 Enylronment & Revenue 491,947 491,047 |Budget Realignment Reahg.nment of Client & Commissioning budget to match
Neighbourhood operational structure
5 3 Enylronment & Revenue 532,100 Budget Allocation Allocatpn of 2018/19 TFL LIP Grant (revenue) income and
Neighbourhood expenditure budgets
5 3 Enylronment & Capital 432,000 Budget Allocation Budget allocation in relation to additional 2018/19 TFL LIP
Neighbourhood funding.
Housing, Regeneration . . Budget allocation in relation to Newlon (HA) Monument
5 5 & Planning Capital 6,500,000 Budget Allocation Way (Scheme No: 511).
Housing, Regeneration . . Budget allocation in relation to GLA funding re:Wood
5 4 & Planning Capital 650,000 Budget Allocation Green - Good Growth Fund.
5 3 Enylronment & Capital 917,500 Budget Allocation Budget allocation in relation to LBH Dynamic Purchasing
Neighbourhood System.
5 3 Enylronment & Capital 610,000 Budget Allocation Budget allocation in relation to increased Highways
Neighbourhood budget.
5 4 Housmgl, Regeneration Capital |- 412,856 Budget deletion Deletlgn of' the budget provision for Hornsey Town Hall,
& Planning following disposal of the asset.
5 4 Housmg., Regeneration Capital |- 1,639,090 Budget deletion Deletl_on of the budget provision for HDV acquisitions &
& Planning Receipts.
Total 2018/19 19,251,462 | 9,781,118




Page 35 Agenda Item 10

Report for: Cabinet September 2018

Title: Decision on the development of a Youth Zone in Haringey
Report

authorised by : Ann Graham, Director of Children’s Services

Lead Officer: Charlotte Pomery, Assistant Director Commissioning

Ward(s) affected: All

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Enabling all children and young people to have the best start in life is a key
priority of the Corporate Plan, Building a Stronger Haringey Together, 2015 —
2018. Whilst the Council continues to face a challenging financial climate over
the coming years due to reducing funding, increasing need and growing
demand, the approach continues to be ambitious focusing on improving
outcomes for all children, young people and families.

1.2 In March 2017, Cabinet agreed a partnership in principle between the Council
and OnSide to develop a Youth Zone for Haringey. In March 2018, Cabinet
agreed to take forward this partnership following the selection of a site at
Woodside High School as a possible location of a Youth Zone. In the Cabinet
report, a number of next steps were identified which have, however, not been
taken forward by officers at this stage.

1.3  Following the local election in May 2018 and work to develop a new and as yet
emerging strategic approach by the Council and partners to addressing the
needs of young people at risk, it is felt that the landscape in which a Youth Zone
would be operating in the borough is not yet clear.

1.4  Through this paper, Cabinet will be asked to review the previous decision to
proceed with a Youth Zone in the borough and to halt any steps to developing
the partnership with OnSide in Haringey.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 As the Lead Member for Communities, | am committed to improving the
experiences and outcomes for all residents of Haringey. | have been saddened
by the trend of increasing violence particularly affecting young people and their
families in the borough but it has strengthened my resolve to address the range
of factors which contribute to such incidents occurring.

2.2  The recommendations in this report will enable us to focus on developing both a
sound evidence base and our future approach through needs analysis and
engagement with local young people, families, communities and partners. |
believe that the emerging community-focused and locally-based approach will

Haringey



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 36

build and sustain the assets and resources that we need to address the deep-
seated issues we face.

Recommendations
Cabinet is asked to:

Rescind all previous decisions made relating to a Youth Zone in Haringey, in
particular, its establishment, location, funding and the partnership with OnSide
and to dissolve any arrangements made for a Youth Zone.

Delegate to the Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with the Lead
Member for Communities, to take any further steps necessary to dissolve the
arrangements made for a Youth Zone.

Agree that Officers continues with the task of shaping the landscape of youth
provision in Haringey as set out below in Paragraph 6.3.2.

Reasons for decision

The overall strategic approach of the Council and partners to addressing the
needs of young people at risk and tackling serious youth violence has not yet
been developed or agreed. Work is underway to ensure that this approach is
grounded in the views and contributions of local communities and of young
people directly affected, as well as of a range of professionals with experience
and expertise in this area. An in-depth needs analysis has been prepared which
will allow targeting of resources through a better understanding of what may
have most impact in Haringey and a range of interventions are being explored
to consider whether they would work well together to address need in Haringey.
The implications of such analysis and engagement for youth provision have not
yet been worked through which means that the landscape in which a Youth
Zone would be operating in the borough is not yet clear.

The engagement so far with community members, young people and other
stakeholders to develop the strategic approach outlined above has confirmed
that a community based response resonates widely and is emerging as a strong
plank of any future developments. Members are keen to optimise the
opportunity to work directly with local communities, recognising and building on
their strengths and assets in developing and implementing the overall strategic
approach.

In light of the work to develop a sustainable and strategic approach to
addressing young people at risk, questions have been raised about whether a
single base for youth provision, rather than a network of community settings
acting as bases for provision across Haringey, is a preferable approach. Again,
it is considered too soon to be in effect shaping future provision around a single
offer when the overall priorities and outcomes for young people at risk have not
yet been developed or agreed more widely.

A further factor contributing to the decision being placed before Cabinet,
regards the location and site of the proposed Youth Zone, which was planned to
be developed on premises at Woodside High School. Such provision would

Haringey



4.5

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.2.1

Page 37

enhance the youth offer in Wood Green, the infrastructure for which is
recognised to be underdeveloped. However, the potential premises identified
are land designated as Metropolitan Open Land, an important consideration for
any development. Members are keen to explore options which do not
compromise the amount or quality of such land in the borough.

It is fully recognised that working in partnership with OnSide would bring
considerable additional investment into the borough for youth provision.
However, such a partnership also requires a significant proportion of the
Council spend on existing youth services to be diverted to supporting a Youth
Zone. Given the fragility of funding for youth provision and the need for a strong
evidence base for future investment, and for the reasons outlined above,
Members do not consider it desirable to make such a commitment at this point
in time.

Alternative options considered

The option to continue to develop a Youth Zone for Haringey on the site of the
Woodside High School in partnership with OnSide was considered but
discarded for the reasons set out above.

The option to pause development of a Youth Zone for Haringey in partnership
with OnSide in light of issues with the site as set out above and to pursue other
sites was considered but discarded for the reasons set out above.

Background information

A decision to enter into partnership with OnSide to deliver a Youth Zone for
Haringey was made in principle by Cabinet in March 2017. This was followed in
March 2018 with an agreement for the Council to work with OnSide to establish
a Youth Zone on a site on the premises of the Woodside High School, the
freeholder for which is the Council. This decision was made subject to a number
of issues being resolved including the ability to use Metropolitan Open Land
(MOL) for a Youth Zone, any detailed contractual or lease arrangements being
developed and engagement with young people and families on what should be
delivered on the ground. The development of such arrangements and actions,
as identified in the Cabinet paper, has not taken place and no application to the
GLA in respect of the MOL has been made.

As highlighted in the emerging Borough Plan, Haringey is a very diverse place —
with strong, connected communities, opportunities for learning and in a world
city offering its residents great potential. All Haringey schools are
good/outstanding and Progress 8 scores at GCSE are above the London
average. However, this profile masks stark inequalities — with some children
and young people experiencing multiple risk factors, being vulnerable to harm
and not achieving their full potential. Recent needs analysis, still being
developed, highlights some key factors which the borough needs to address to
improve outcomes consistently for all children and young people.

Recent events vividly and tragically highlight the impact of not responding to
children and young people’s vulnerabilities: more than 80 young people were
killed or injured by knives in Haringey in the year to February 2018; 1 in 8

Haringey



Page 38

firearm discharges across London occurred in the borough during this period.
Other key indicators include:

e Sixth highest rate of 17 year olds cautioned/sentenced of all London
Boroughs

e 335 victims of Serious Youth Violence (SYV) in the 12 months to December
2017, an increase of 4% compared to the previous period

e Age profile of SYV suspects shows most offenders aged 15 to 18

e Only 55% of Haringey residents agree the police do a good job, compared
to a London average of 68%, the second lowest level in London.

e Our in-depth audit of the 20 most prolific young offenders known to our YOS
shows that most have experienced loss/separation from one parent, the
average first age of exclusion is 10-11 and 65% had themselves been a
victim of crime by the age of 18.

6.2.2 Overall, needs analysis underpins our approach: to build effective, sustainable
and community based support, addressing needs early and ensuring young
people have positive choices in all areas of their lives, targeting those at most
risk. This is being developed through a Young People at Risk Strategy which
will have links with a range of current and forthcoming strategies and is being
co-designed with young people, local residents and other stakeholders in order
to ensure that it is rich both in its analysis and in its solutions.

6.3  Alongside the needs analysis, key highlights of which are set out above, current
youth provision has been mapped by the Bridge Renewal Trust and Godwin
Lawson Foundation (BRT and GLF). This mapping, and gapping, shows that
whilst there is a significant amount of activity in the borough there are
insufficient interventions at the prevention and early intervention side of the
spectrum.

6.3.1 This analysis has been complemented by the views of community groups,
young people and parents sought during a period of engagement.

6.3.2 Bearing in mind the above, the Council remains in the early stages of shaping
the landscape of youth provision in Haringey, with a need for a clear evidence
base for both existing and new provision as part of the emerging Young People
at Risk Strategy.

6.4 In summary therefore, taking into account the in-depth needs analysis, the
effective and sustained dialogue with communities, the detailed provision
mapping and long-term strategy development underway currently, it is argued
that there is insufficient clarity and agreement to develop a Youth Zone
currently and that the key priority is to continue this wider work before
committing to a specific model of intervention and support.

Haringey



Page 39

6.5 Key partners in the Youth Zone project, notably OnSide and Woodside High
School, have been informed of the recommendations set out in this report.
Detailed conversations to determine how these partners can continue to
support the Council’s emerging strategic objectives in this area are being held.
The development of Youth Zones in other London Boroughs (e.g. Barking &
Dagenham and Croydon) is noted and the Council will continue to take an
interest in considering the outcomes from these initiatives.

6.6 As noted above, no binding agreements or commitments have been developed
or entered into, as envisaged in the March 2018 Cabinet paper setting out the
proposal for a Youth Zone on the Woodside High School site.

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes

7.1 The Corporate Plan, Building a Stronger Haringey Together, sets out the vision
and priorities for the Council. It's underpinning principles of empowering
communities so that people can do more for themselves and enabling all
children and young people to have the best start in life align well with the
proposals to strengthen the strategic approach to supporting young people in
Haringey as set out in this paper.

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

8.1 Finance

8.1.1 At present there is no financial impact for the Council arising from the project at
this stage. However, once this stage has been concluded, a financial
assessment of resources based on future proposals can be calculated. The
£26k already paid to OnSide for preparatory works to support the application to
the GLA must be treated as a sunk, non-recoverable cost.

8.2 Procurement

8.2.1 In the absence of a formal agreement between the Council and OnSide, there
are no procurement comments on the proposals contained in this paper.

8.3 Legal

8.3.1 There are no formal agreements preventing the Council from dissolving the
arrangements for a Youth Zone. Also, there are no financial liabilities to the
Council arising from the proposed decision.

8.4 Equality

8.4.1 The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act
(2010)to have due regard to:

a. tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil

Haringey



Page 40

partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
(formerly gender) and sexual orientation;

b. advance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not;

c. foster good relations between people who share those characteristics
and people who do not.

8.4.2 The Youth Zone proposal aimed to increase the range of and outreach of
activities for young people across the borough. This included activities
accessible to and targeted at young people who share protected characteristics,
including those with disabilities, young women and different ethnicities and
religions. A full equality impact assessment was to be undertaken when a
confirmed site had been identified for the new Youth Zone. This has not been
taken forward for the reasons set out above.

9. Use of Appendices

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Haringey



Page 41 Agenda Iltem 11

Report for: Cabinet 11" September 2018
Title: The Creation of a Single Homelessness Hub
Report
authorised by: Charlotte Pomery, Assistant Director Commissioning
Steve Carr, Interim Assistant Director Economic Development and

Growth

Lead Officer: Gill Taylor, Strategic Lead - Single Homelessness and Vulnerable
Adults

Ward(s) affected: All

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Key decision

1. DESCRIBE THE ISSUE UNDER CONSIDERATION

1.1  This report seeks authority for the Council to take a lease on a property known
as 332-334 High Road, Tottenham (“Property”) for use as a co-located
Assessment Centre and Hub for single homeless people and those at risk of
homelessness.

1.2 The current service, which offers 24-hour support and accommodation to 23
newly homeless people or who have been rough sleeping, is provided by St
Mungo’s Community Housing Association at Dial House on Tottenham High
Road. Dial House has been sold to Tottenham Hotspurs Football Club and
vacant possession of the property is required, the Council needs to source a
property in which to provide the short-stay Assessment Centre service for single
adults experiencing homelessness, from April 1st 2019 onwards.

1.3 Alongside this key driver, a number of recent events, reviews and legislative
changes have demonstrated the need to rethink the way the Council and
partners respond to homelessness triggers, rough sleeping and complex need
for single homeless people, and those at risk of homelessness. This work has
culminated in the intention to develop a Single Homeless Hub: a physical base
for a range of specialist services and staff working in a person-centred way both
to prevent and relieve homelessness and to address the health and wellbeing of
those with the most complex and interrelated needs in the borough.

1.4 Implementation of the proposed Hub will support the delivery of the Council’s
new responsibilities towards single people under the Homelessness Reduction
Act (2017) and of the commitments set out in the Council’s Homelessness and
Rough Sleeping Strategies (2018). It will also facilitate the delivery of the

Haringey



Page 42

Making Every Adult Matter approach, endorsed at the July meeting of the
Health and Wellbeing Board, to addressing complex and multiple need within
the homeless population.

2. CABINET MEMBER INTRODUCTION

2.1 We are delighted to present this report, which recommends to Cabinet
acquisition of a lease on a property that will both re-provide the supported
housing Assessment Centre and create a unique Assessment and Referral Hub
for Single Homeless People.

2.2  We know that rough sleepers and single homeless people experience some of
the worst outcomes of all our residents and are more likely to be unemployed,
unhealthy, unsafe and at risk of an early death. The proposals here aim to
change that outlook and to offer single homeless people and rough sleepers
chances to get the right, flexible and person-centred support and help they
need. By creating a safe and holistic environment for single homeless people in
the Hub, we will be better able to ensure their accommodation, care and
support needs can be met, to offer tools to rebuild valued lives and to reduce
the stigma that being homeless brings.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet agrees:

3.1 To the Council creating a new service ‘The Single Homelessness Hub’, which
will perform the statutory homelessness function for single homeless adults
aged 18 years and over, and offer a diverse range of wraparound services to
achieve improved outcomes for rough sleepers, homeless women and young
people, as well as others. The existing short-stay Assessment Centre service,
provided by St Mungo’s Community Housing Association, will be relocated to
the same building as the Hub.

3.2 To the Council taking two leases (of the ground and upper floors) of the
property known as 332-334 High Road, Tottenham at a rent of up to £225,000
per annum for both leases and subject to the Head of Terms, (currently in
negotiation) being agreed and subject to any planning permission for change of
use; and

3.3 To give delegated authority to the Assistant Director of Economic Development
and Growth after consultation with the Assistant Director Commissioning to
agree the heads of terms and the final terms of the lease;

3.4 To the Council to then sublet the upper floors of accommodation in the
Property to the commissioned Assessment Centre support provider, which at

Haringey



3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

5.1

Page 43

present and until January 2020 is St Mungo’s Community Housing Association
at a rent of not less than £176,000.00 and subject to the heads of terms being
agreed; and

To give delegated authority to the Assistant Director of Economic Development
and Growth and the Assistant Director Commissioning to agree the heads of
terms and the final terms of the sub lease and any management agreement.

To approve revenue funding of £240,000 per year to develop and deliver a
Single Homelessness Referral and Advice Hub, as a Council-led service, in the

two commercial units of the property.

REASONS FOR DECISION

The Council’s Assessment Centre for single homeless people will not be able to
operate from its current premises at Dial House after April 2019 due to sale by
its previous owner and plans for redevelopment by its current owner. New
premises, therefore, are required as a matter of urgency to accommodate this
service and 23 vulnerable adults for the future.

The property at 332-334 High Road provides both high quality accommodation
and space for a Hub service in one building. It offers the right number of
bedrooms to facilitate the commissioning of a resource efficient assessment
centre, and is well positioned in the borough to maximise accessibility. Securing
the premises at 332-334 High Road Tottenham for the relocated Assessment
Centre offers a unique opportunity to develop a Single Homelessness Hub. By
approving this proposal, there is an opportunity to offer an effective response to
prevent homelessness as well as to support those already experiencing
homelessness, thereby reducing costs for the Council and the wider public
sector in supporting a vulnerable and often complex cohort of individuals.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

There is a statutory requirement to provide housing for single homeless people
only where they are identified as vulnerable and in priority need under Section
189 of the Housing Act (1996 amended 2002). Haringey like all London
boroughs recognises the human, social and economic costs associated with
homelessness and the need to ensure that people are adequately supported to
recover from it and where possible prevent future instances. Therefore, whilst it
would be possible to end the contract for the Assessment Centre service when
the lease for the current building ceases and not identify an alternative, this
would be out of line with known demand for homelessness services in Haringey,
with the Council’s strategic objectives to ensure all adults lead healthy and
fulfilling lives and with the national approach to single homelessness. Therefore,

Haringey



5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

Page 44

continuing without agreeing a solution to the requirement to leave the current
building is not considered a viable approach.

It would also be possible to reject this proposal in favour of seeking another
building that could reprovide the Assessment Centre but not offer the
opportunity to create a referral and advice Hub. However, despite Haringey
having its own property portfolio, registered provider partners and established
links with landlords and developing organisations, sourcing a building with the
required number of accommodation units, which would be suitable for a cohort
of single homeless people and would be available on or before the date
required, had proved impossible until this opportunity presented itself.
Therefore, it is considered not only an excellent opportunity to develop an
innovative Hub service, but also a unique opportunity to secure a lease for an
appropriate building to reprovide the much-needed Assessment Centre service.

It would also be reasonable to suggest that the proposal be modified, in favour
of pursuing a lease on either the accommodation or the commercial element of
the building in isolation. However, negotiations with the landlord to date have
made it clear that this option is not being offered, due to the reduced likelihood
of leasing either part of the building separately with the proposed uses.
Therefore, it is considered that the only viable option is to lease both elements
of the building as part of one lease because there is not an option available to
lease only one element of the space.

The creation of a co-located single homelessness assessment centre and
referral and advice Hub is more than a response to the immediate need to
relocate the current service. It presents a unique opportunity to build on the
extensive strategy and analysis work as part of the Supported Housing Review
(2017), Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategies (2018), Single
Homelessness Pathway Review (2018) and the emerging work of the Making
Every Adult Matter Steering Group as well as others.

BACKGROUND

Haringey provides supported housing and rough sleeping support for
approximately 500 single homeless people every night, in services ranging from
short-stay high support hostels to street outreach services, to visiting support in
shared accommodation for those nearing independent living.

Homeless people and those at risk of homelessness face a combination of
problems that can trigger and prolong periods of homelessness or housing
difficulty including debt, relationship breakdown, substance abuse, contact with
the criminal justice system and mental ill health. Although many people might

Haringey



Page 45

face these issues and not experience homelessness as a result, there are
groups of people who are especially vulnerable because of social and economic
disadvantage, for example former care leavers, refugees and migrants, disabled
people and survivors of abuse. The largest cohort affected by homelessness is
white men aged 25-44 years old. However, although single women and people
from BAME communities represent a relatively small proportion of the
homelessness cohort overall, they are disproportionately affected by stark
socio-economic inequality, sexual and domestic abuse, prison release and
acute psychiatric hospital stays, which often means that homelessness has a
more profound and long-lasting effect.

Dial House Assessment Centre

6.3  Supported housing, rough sleeping and support services for single homeless
people are commissioned by the Housing-Related Support Team. The
Assessment Centre at Dial House is provided by St Mungo’'s Community
Housing Association and is commissioned from this budget. The contract for the
service will expire in January 2020, but evidence of demand for the service
makes it a cornerstone of supported housing provision in the borough, already
confirmed in future commissioning plans.

6.4 The Assessment Centre service offers newly homeless people with support
needs, and those leaving rough sleeping; a short-term high-intensity supported
housing service for up to three months. As the first stage in the borough’s
Homelessness Pathway, the service helps people stabilise after the initial crisis
of homelessness. The primary aim of the service is to assess a person’s
support needs, and work with them to determine what it will require to reach a
housing or supported housing solution. People usually move on from the
service into other supported housing, but it is recognised that there are
opportunities to divert people away from supported housing and into other types
of accommodation.

6.5 Dial House is in Northumberland Park ward and until June this year, was owned
by Metropolitan Housing Trust. It has since been purchased by Tottenham
Hotspur Football Club as part of their ongoing redevelopment of the White Hart
Lane ground. The Council, and the current service provider St Mungo’s, were
informed about the potential sale of the site and as such, attempts have been
made to identify an alternative property for relocation of the service by the end
of the current lease, April 2019. It has proven very difficult to identify a site with
20-25 units of accommodation and office space that would be suitable and is
available.

6.6 The building at 332-334 High Road Tottenham is in Tottenham Green ward. It
comprises nine flats with 21 rooms in total, a shared lounge, kitchen and
bathroom is available in each flat. The building is currently in the final stages of

Haringey



Page 46

development and will provide a suitable environment to facilitate positive peer
relationships, offer psychologically-informed support practice and build the
aspirations of service users towards more positive outcomes. An Assessment
Centre in the High Road property has good transport links making it accessible
for people from across the borough and is close to a range of relevant local
services, such as The Grove substance misuse service and Tynemouth Health
Centre.

6.7 The Council intends to take two leases of the Property (one for the ground floor
and one for the upper parts) each for an initial term of 10 years with a break
clause after six years at a rent for both of up to £225,000 per annum. The final
terms for the leases, will be set out in the heads of terms document which is
being finalised. The Council will make an application for planning permission for
change of use of the Property.

6.8 It is proposed that the Council sublets the accommodation element of the
Property to the commissioned Assessment Centre support provider, currently St
Mungo’s. The heads of terms are yet to be agreed and a suitable Management
Agreement will also be entered into as part of the sub-lease around rent
collection, ongoing repairs and cyclical maintenance work for the duration of the
lease. This is common practice in the supported housing sector and a range of
existing management agreements can be modified for this purpose between the
provider and the Council. St Mungo’s Community Housing Association have
provisionally agreed to this arrangement and are eager to begin negotiation on
the particulars, following Cabinet approval of this report. As part of their
responsibilities, St Mungo’s Community Housing Association will set rent and
service charge levels and agree these with the Council's Housing Benefit
department.

The Single Homeless Hub

6.9 If approved, the HRS Team will design and deliver the single homelessness
Hub service as a council-led service.

6.10 There have been a number of recent reports and discussions about the issue of
homelessness and rough sleeping in the borough, initiated by new streams of
data, co-production work with service users and the tragic increase in
premature and accidental deaths of homeless people in the borough this year.
A number of key statistics highlight the extent of the issue in Haringey:

» There has been a 25% rise in rough sleeping in the borough in the last 12
months

= Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust has the highest rate of
acute psychiatric inpatient admissions for homeless people in London

Haringey



Page 47

= Due to increasing demand, only 35% of single homeless people referred
each month are offered a supported housing place

» The average age at death, for homeless and vulnerably housed people in
Haringey, is 41 years old, lower than the national average.

6.11 The human, social and economic cost of homelessness is high. On average in
Haringey, homeless people remain in acute psychiatric hospital wards and
recovery house services twice as long as their housed counterparts, at a cost of
£5700 per person to the borough and poorer health outcomes for the individual.
The Hub service will ensure people have smoother access to support, will offer
a safe space to address complex issues with trained professionals and will
enable professionals to make the best use of scarce and expensive resources
for those who need them.

6.12 The Council, in partnership with Homes for Haringey, have invested significantly
in the implementation of new duties under the Homelessness Reduction Act.
The Act extends the Council’s responsibilities around homelessness prevention
and a number of new initiatives have been funded via the Flexible
Homelessness Support Grant, a fund allocated to help local authorities test new
ways of working and broaden existing good practice to maximise homelessness
prevention opportunities and secure a broader range of housing solutions for
people who find themselves threatened with homelessness.

6.13 In 2017 and again in 2018, Haringey were successful in securing funding from
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Rough Sleeping
Innovation Fund. We have committed this resource to address key areas of
need within the cohort; hidden homelessness, unaddressed health needs and
antisocial behaviour.

6.14 The development of a single homeless Hub is well aligned with these ongoing
projects, programmes and strategies and would complement and build on
existing initiatives, enabling improvements in joint-working practices, resource
efficiencies and positive outcomes for our vulnerable residents.

Resourcing the Hub

6.15 To successfully deliver the activities and outcomes of the Hub, the service will
need a specialist staff team and a comprehensive multi-agency delivery model.
Much of this is already in place as it has been confirmed that the two existing
dedicated Housing Needs Officers and the Supported Housing Pathway Team
will continue to provide a comprehensive prevention, assessment and referral
service for people who are homeless or threatened with homelessness, in the
future from the Hub. In addition, there are a number of posts for which funding
has already been committed which will also work from the Hub and therefore
optimise the outcomes to be delivered. These will include the Making Every

Haringey



Page 48

Adult Matter co-ordinator, a dedicated social worker and a capacity building co-
ordinator to work with homeless families and single people around peer led
prevention work.

6.15 The Hub will also require additional posts to manage the unique functions of the
service, including a Hub Manager and Support Officers, to be funded from
Flexible Homelessness Support Grant. It is anticipated that after an initial two-
year ‘test and learn’ period, which wil include an external evaluation of the
outcomes and operating model of the service, all roles supporting single
homeless people in the Hub will be reconfigured within the future budget
envelope whilst achieving optimal outcomes.

6.15 If approved it is proposed to convene a Single Homelessness and Vulnerable
Adults Members Reference Group, jointly chaired by the Deputy Leader and the
Cabinet Member for Adults and Health. The group will meet quarterly to provide
a steer on new and ongoing projects to tackle homelessness, discuss trends in
rough sleeping and homelessness prevention and explore opportunities for
supported housing development. Once approved a suitable Terms of Reference
will be drawn up and Membership identified by the Chairs.

7. CONTRIBUTION TO STRATEGIC OUTCOMES

7.1 The Corporate Plan for 2015-18 sets out the Council’s overall priorities and
programme of work for the period for 2015-18. It identifies housing and social
care as two of its five priorities, committing the Council over that period to
‘Create homes and communities where people choose to live and are able to
thrive’ (Priority 5) and ‘Empower all adults to live healthy, long and fulfilling lives’
(Priority 2). Whilst the Corporate Plan will soon be replaced by the Borough
Plan, it is likely that these two areas will remain of high priority to the Council.
Addressing homelessness, rough sleeping and the needs of vulnerable adults
are an important subsection of the Council’s housing, health and wellbeing
responsibility, which plays a role in delivering positive outcomes across the
priorities of the Corporate Plan/Borough Plan and our commitments as part of
the Haringey and Islington Health and Wellbeing Board.

7.2  The Corporate Plan goes on to define specific objectives under each of its five
priorities. The role of the co-located assessment centre and single homeless
Hub service would be to address, in particular, the objectives under Priority 5
and Priority 2: to deliver coordinated housing and health interventions that
enable vulnerable homeless people to achieve positive individual outcomes that
prevent and relieve homelessness, reduce costly and sporadic service usage
and build on people’s existing strengths to address need at an early stage. This
will be achieved by bringing together multi-agency partners to deliver services in
the Hub, which will generate crosscutting outcomes across the Corporate Plan
and the emerging Borough Plan.

Haringey



Page 49

7.3 The Haringey Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2015-18 sets out three key priorities
for health and wellbeing in the borough. It identifies ‘Improving mental health
and emotional wellbeing’ as a key priority in the borough and sets out three
clear principles for bringing about positive change; tackling inequalities, early
help and working with communities. Creating a co-located assessment centre
and single homeless Hub service, which brings together a range of services and
activities for vulnerable single homeless people, will contribute to the delivery of
positive mental and emotional health outcomes for homeless and vulnerably
housed people, as well as clear alignment with the delivery principles of
involving the community in tackling inequality through prevention and early
intervention.

8 STATUTORY OFFICERS COMMENTS (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER
(INCLUDING PROCUREMENT), ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE, EQUALITIES

Finance

Current Situation

8.1 The Assessment Centre currently is a service commissioned by the Housing-
Related Support Team, in a contract with St Mungo’s, which is scheduled to end
in 2020. The contract funds the provision of specially trained staff to carry out
housing and support activities with homeless individuals and is contained within
the base budget for the Housing-Related Support Team. Funding for the
delivery of the support service is separate from arrangements about the building
in which it is provided.

8.2 The Assessment Centre service is provided at Dial House, utilising a
Management Agreement between Metropolitan Housing Trust, the landlord, and
St Mungo’s, the property agent. The agreement describes mutually established
arrangements for rent collection and liability, repairs and maintenance and
housing management. Individuals living at the property are expected to pay rent
and service charges, which are usually claimed via Housing Benefit due to their
personal circumstances. Service charge costs cover property-based running
costs for the service such as communal heating and lighting, repairs and
maintenance, insurance and concierge staff during the night.

Proposal

8.3  Following the sale of Dial House, this report proposes to move the Assessment
Centre service to 332 Tottenham High Road, with Haringey becoming the
leaseholder and landlord to St Mungo’s Community Housing Association who
will sublease the accommodation element of the property from the Council. A
rental contribution of around 78% is expected from the accommodation

Haringey



Page 50

sublease holder, which is St Mungo’s Community Housing Association until
January 2020, at which time it may transfer to a new provider following a
commissioning process or be brought back into the Council’s directly delivered
service portfolio.

8.4 If the recommendation to acquire the lease is approved, this arrangement will
require a Management Agreement between the Council and St Mungo’s,
detailing rent liability, void management, repairs, and maintenance
arrangements. Service charges are determined based on these anticipated
running costs and then income is distributed, following collection, to either the
landlord or managing agent dependent on who is responsible.

Additional Service and Costs

8.5 After the rent contribution from St Mungo’s Community Housing Association there
remains a net spend of around £50k, to cover the rent for the two commercial
units that will be used as the Single Homeless Hub service. The running costs of
the Hub service are anticipated at 15% of the rental value. These additional costs
are to be met from the Flexible Homelessness Support Grant (FHSG).

8.6 The Hub is a new service, and is proposed to enhance and expand
homelessness advice and support in light of the new duties under the
Homelessness Reduction Act (2018). The provision of specially trained advice
and support staff as part of the single homelessness referral and advice hub is at
an additional annual revenue cost of around £190k. These costs will be met from
the FHSG.

8.7 It should be noted that the service is fully aware that the Hub service may require
reconfiguration should the future allocation of FHSG reduce from the current

levels.

Capital Requirement

8.7  The building is new and requires no structural or major works. However, there is
a requirement to configure the two commercial units to deliver the Hub service.
This will mean configuring the space with a kitchen, bathroom, interview rooms
and office infrastructure as well as decoration and furnishing.

8.8 Officers are negotiating with the Metropolitan Housing Trust (MHT) for a
contribution to the works. Should the cost of the works exceed the contribution
from MHT then an allocation from the approved capital programme contingency
will be made.

Procurement

Haringey



Page 51

8.9  Strategic Procurement notes the contents of this report and the planned re-
commissioning of the Assessment Centre in line with the current contract expiry
in 2020; however, Procurement comments are not applicable for property and
land transactions (including leases) as they sit outside of the Procurement
Contract Regulations.

Legal

8.10 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted in the
preparation of this report and comments as follows;

8.11 The Council has the power under section 120 of the Local Government Act
1972 to acquire properties for the purposes of any of its functions under any
enactment and is therefore able to take the lease of the Property as set out in
this report.

8.12 The Council can sublet part of the Property but must comply with section 123 of
the Local Government Act 1972 and obtain best consideration for the premises
if the disposal is not by way of a short tenancy. A short tenancy is a grant of
lease not exceeding seven years.

8.13 Before the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 came into force in April 2018
single homeless people were only owed a homelessness duty it they were in
priority need i.e. vulnerable is some way. The Homelessness Reduction Act
2017 amended the Housing Act 1996 by placing new duties on Councils to
provide advisory services and to intervene at earlier stages to prevent
homelessness in their areas. These duties extend all applicants irrespective of
whether or not they are in priority need.

8.14 Under section 179 of the 1996 Act (as amended) the Council has a duty to
provide (or secure the provision of) advice and information about
homelessness, the prevention of homelessness, the rights of homeless people
or those at risk of homelessness, the help that is available from housing
authorities or others and how to access that help.

8.15 In accordance with s189A of the 1996 Act (as amended), anybody found to be
homeless or threatened with homelessness is now entitled to more tailored
support and the Council has to carry out an assessment of the applicant’s
housing and support needs and develop a personalised housing plan, setting
out the actions or reasonable steps the Council and others will take to prevent
or relieve homelessness.

8.16 The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 has also introduced an enhanced
homelessness prevention duty (regardless of priority need status, intentionality
and whether the applicant has a local connection) extending the period a

Haringey



Page 52

household is threatened with homelessness from 28 days to 56 days, meaning
that the Council is required to work with people to prevent homelessness at an
earlier stage. There is also a new duty owed to support those who are already
homeless to relieve their homelessness by helping them to secure
accommodation available to them for at least 6 months.

8.17 The Assessment Centre and Single Homelessness Hub will assist the Council
in carrying out its enhanced homelessness duties to single people.

Equalities

8.18 This proposal seeks a commitment to strengthen existing services and systems
that support homeless people. Homeless people are more likely to have
physical and mental health issues, to be from BAME groups and to have other
protected characteristics. The proposals will benefit those from protected
groups and will seek to develop support tailored to their specific needs.

8.19 The proposed solutions aim to increase, strengthen and co-ordinate
approaches in local provision to focus on improved access, prevention and
early intervention to reduce risks to homeless adults with multiple needs. The
Council and its partners will need to make due regard to their public sector
equality duty under the Equalities Act (2010) to tackle discrimination and
victimisation of persons that share the characteristics protected under S4 of the
Act. These include the characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex (formerly gender) and sexual orientation; advance equality of opportunity
between people who share those protected characteristics and people who do
not; foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and
people who do not.

8.20 An EQIA has been produced for the overall proposal to deliver a co-located
Assessment Centre and Single Homelessness Hub service.

9 USE OF APPENDICES

9.1 Appendix 1 — Equality Impact Assessment for the Creation of a Single
Homelessness Hub

10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Internal

Haringey JSNA 2012
[http://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/joint-strategic-needs-
assessment-jsnal

Haringey


http://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna

Page 53

Supported Housing Review Needs and Gaps Analysis (2017)
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91742/Appendix%202%20-
%20Needs%20and%20Gaps%20Analysis.pdf

Supported Housing Review EqIA (2017)
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91744/Appendix%204%20-

%20EqIA.pdf

Making Every Adult Matter Report (2018)
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s102771/2.1%20MEAM%20Report.p
df

Haringey Housing Strategy 2017-2022
[http://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/draft housing strateqy 2017-

2022.pdf]

Haringey Homelessness Strategy (2018)
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100152/Appendix1HomelessnessStr

ategyv24.pdf

Haringey Rough Sleeping Strategy (2018)
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100015/Appendix%201%20Draft%20
Rough%20Sleeping%20Strateqgy%20v23.pdf

External
External links — Haringey Council is not responsible for the contents or reliability of

linked web sites and does not necessarily endorse any views expressed within them.
Listing should not be taken as endorsement of any kind. It is your responsibility to
check the terms and conditions of any other web sites you may visit. We cannot
guarantee that these links will work all of the time and we have no control over the
availability of the linked pages.

‘Ethnic Inequalities in Mental Health’, Lankelly Chase Foundation (2014) Accessed at:
https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-
Health-Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf

‘Homelessness Code of Guidance’, Ministry for Housing, Community and Local
government (2018) Accessed at:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/homelessness-code-of-guidance-for-local-authorities

‘Homelessness Kills’, Crisis UK (2012) Accessed at:
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/236799/crisis homelessness Kills es2012.pdf

‘Homeless Women’ (2008) Accessed at:
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/2945Homeless women policy recomm
endations.pdf

Indices of Multiple Deprivation (2015)
Accessed at: https://www.qgov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-

Haringey


https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91742/Appendix%202%20-%20Needs%20and%20Gaps%20Analysis.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91742/Appendix%202%20-%20Needs%20and%20Gaps%20Analysis.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91744/Appendix%204%20-%20EqIA.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91744/Appendix%204%20-%20EqIA.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s102771/2.1%20MEAM%20Report.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s102771/2.1%20MEAM%20Report.pdf
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/draft_housing_strategy_2017-2022.pdf
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/draft_housing_strategy_2017-2022.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100152/Appendix1HomelessnessStrategyv24.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100152/Appendix1HomelessnessStrategyv24.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100015/Appendix%201%20Draft%20Rough%20Sleeping%20Strategy%20v23.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100015/Appendix%201%20Draft%20Rough%20Sleeping%20Strategy%20v23.pdf
https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-Health-Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf
https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-Health-Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/homelessness-code-of-guidance-for-local-authorities
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/236799/crisis_homelessness_kills_es2012.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/2945Homeless_women_policy_recommendations.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/2945Homeless_women_policy_recommendations.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015

Page 54

‘Keep on Caring’ (2016) Accessed at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/535899/

Care-Leaver-Strateqgy.pdf

‘Making it Real for Supported Housing’, Think Local, Act Personal, (2016), Accessed

at: http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/ assets/MakingltReal/MIRHousing.pdf

‘Mental Health in the Adult Single Homeless Population’, Crisis (2009) Accessed at:
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/Mental%20health%20literature%20revie

w.pdf

‘Psychologically Informed Environments: A Literature Review’ (2016)
Accessed at: https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/pies-literature-

review.pdf

‘Rebuilding Shattered Lives’ (2014) Accessed at:
http://www.mungos.org/documents/4752/4752.pdf

‘Tackling homelessness and exclusion; understanding complex lives’, Joseph
Rowntree Foundation (2011) Accessed at:
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/migrated/files/homelessness-exclusion-

services-summary.pdf

‘Young and Homeless’, Homeless Link (2015) Accessed at:
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/201512%20-
2%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-%20Full%20Report.pdf

Harin

LONDON

gey


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/535899/Care-Leaver-Strategy.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/535899/Care-Leaver-Strategy.pdf
http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/_assets/MakingItReal/MIRHousing.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/Mental%20health%20literature%20review.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/Mental%20health%20literature%20review.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/pies-literature-review.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/pies-literature-review.pdf
http://www.mungos.org/documents/4752/4752.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/migrated/files/homelessness-exclusion-services-summary.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/migrated/files/homelessness-exclusion-services-summary.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/201512%20-%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-%20Full%20Report.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/201512%20-%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-%20Full%20Report.pdf

Page 55

“Heiitgey

The Equality Act 2010 places a ‘General Duty’ on all public bodies to have ‘due regard’
to the need to:
- Eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct

prohibited under the Act;

- Advancing equality of opportunity between those with a ‘relevant protected
characteristic’ and those without one;

- Fostering good relations between those with a ‘relevant protected characteristic’
and those without one.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

In addition the Council complies with the Marriage (same sex couples) Act 2013.

Stage 1 — Screening

Please complete the equalities screening form. If screening identifies that your proposal is
likely to impact on protect characteristics, please proceed to stage 2 and complete a full
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA).

Stage 2 — Full Equality Impact Assessment

An EqIA provides evidence for meeting the Council’s commitment to equality and the
responsibilities under the Public Sector Equality Duty.

When an EqlA has been undertaken, it should be submitted as an
attachment/appendix to the final decision making report. This is so the decision
maker (e.g. Cabinet, Committee, senior leader) can use the EqlA to help inform their
final decision. The EqlIA once submitted will become a public document, published
alongside the minutes and record of the decision.

Please read the Council’'s Equality Impact Assessment Guidance before beginning the
EqlA process.

1. Responsibility for the Equality Impact Assessment
Name of proposal Creation of a Single Homeless Hub
Service area Commissioning

Officer completing assessment

Gill Taylor

Equalities/ HR Advisor

Louise Hopton-Beatty & Hugh Smith

Cabinet meeting date (if applicable)

September 2018

Director/Assistant Director

Charlotte Pomery

2. Summary of the proposal

www.haringey.gov.uk




Page 56

Please outline in no more than 3 paragraphs
e The proposal which is being assessed

e The key stakeholders who may be affected by the policy or proposal
e The decision-making route being taken

The proposal seeks approval to create a co-located Assessment Centre and Referral and
Advice Hub for single homeless adults in Haringey. The hub will act as a single point of
access into supported housing, homelessness prevention services such as rent deposit
schemes, housing advice and signposting for single homeless people in the borough. It will
also provide a range of support and wellbeing activity such as referrals and signposting to
health services, job and house search activities, services for rough sleepers and a range
of practical support such as a shower room, laundry facilities and a medical room. Co-
location in the same building as the assessment centre will mean a more streamlined and
coordinated service for homeless people.

The key stakeholders affected are single homeless adults and those at risk of
homelessness aged 18+ in the borough. This cohort of people is broadly made up of men
aged between 25-50 years old, with over-representation of people from BAME
backgrounds, people with long-term mental health conditions, substance use needs and
physical health concerns related to prolonged periods of rough sleeping, drug use and
self-neglect. Women represent around 23% of the cohort but are often disproportionately
affected by issues of previous trauma and violence, as well as substance use and lack of
engagement with services. Care leavers over the age of 21 years old will ordinarily access
the Hub service for housing advice and support. For those under 21 years old, they will
have the option to access the Hub service or to utilise the existing outreach Housing
Needs service at Cumberland Road, the Young Adults Service office.

This proposal is being taken to Cabinet because, if approved, it would represent a
strategically important new service in the borough that would require a lease on a building
and a range of commissioning decisions. Immediately after Cabinet approval, negotiations
with the owner of the property will be brought to a close and a lease signed.

3. What data will you use to inform your assessment of the impact of the proposal
on protected groups of service users and/or staff?

Identify the main sources of evidence, both quantitative and qualitative, that supports
your analysis. Please include any gaps and how you will address these

This could include, for example, data on the Council’s workforce, equalities profile of
service users, recent surveys, research, results of relevant consultations, Haringey
Borough Profile, Haringey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and any other sources of
relevant information, local, regional or national. For restructures, please complete the
restructure EqIA which is available on the HR pages.

Protected Service users
group




Page 57

Sex Internal
Haringey JSNA 2012
[http://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/joint-
strategic-needs-assessment-jsna]

Gender

Reassignment

Age

Disability

Race &
Ethnicity

Sexual
Orientation

Religion or
Belief (or No
Belief)

Pregnancy &
Maternity

Marriage and
Civil
Partnership

Supported Housing Review Needs and Gaps Analysis (2017)
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91742/Appendix%20
2%20-%20Needs%20and%20Gaps%20Analysis.pdf

Supported Housing Review EqIA (2017)
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91744/Appendix%20
4%20-%20EqlA.pdf

Haringey State of the Borough (2018)
https://www.haringey.qgov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/state of the bor
ough final master version.pdf.

Making Every Adult Matter Report (2018)
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s102771/2.1%20MEA
M%20Report.pdf

Mental Health Pathway Evaluation (2018)
[internal report]

Single Homeless Pathway Review (2018)
[internal report]

SPOCC Net — web-based contract monitoring system
[internal report]

Homeless Young Parents
[internal report “TA0O181 — Households in TA']

Haringey Housing Strategy 2017-2022
[http://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/draft_housing_str
ateqy 2017-2022.pdf]

Haringey Homelessness Strategy (2018)
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100152/Appendix1Ho
melessnessStrateqgyv24.pdf

Haringey Rough Sleeping Strategy (2018)
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100015/Appendix%20
1%20Draft%20Rough%20Sleeping%20Strateqy%20v23.pdf

‘Meeting the Needs of older LGBT+ people in Haringey (2017) —
Opening Doors London
[internal report]

The Grove Substance Use Treatment Service

3



http://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91742/Appendix%202%20-%20Needs%20and%20Gaps%20Analysis.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91742/Appendix%202%20-%20Needs%20and%20Gaps%20Analysis.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91744/Appendix%204%20-%20EqIA.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s91744/Appendix%204%20-%20EqIA.pdf
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/state_of_the_borough_final_master_version.pdf
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/state_of_the_borough_final_master_version.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s102771/2.1%20MEAM%20Report.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s102771/2.1%20MEAM%20Report.pdf
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/draft_housing_strategy_2017-2022.pdf
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/draft_housing_strategy_2017-2022.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100152/Appendix1HomelessnessStrategyv24.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100152/Appendix1HomelessnessStrategyv24.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100015/Appendix%201%20Draft%20Rough%20Sleeping%20Strategy%20v23.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s100015/Appendix%201%20Draft%20Rough%20Sleeping%20Strategy%20v23.pdf

Page 58

[internal report — ‘NFA Report 2015/16]

External

‘Gender Variance in the UK’
https://www.gires.org.uk/assets/Medpro-Assets/GenderVarianceUK-

report.pdf

‘Hard Edges; Mapping Severe and Multiple Disadvantage in England’
(2015) — Lankelly Chase Foundation
https://lankellychase.org.uk/resources/publications/hard-edges/

Health Needs Audit data 92017) — Homeless Link
https://www.homeless.org.uk/facts/homelessness-in-numbers/health-
needs-audit-explore-data

‘Homelessness Kills’ — Crisis UK
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/236799/crisis homelessness kills es2

012.pdf

‘Q1 CHAIN (April- June ’18) - North London sub region’
https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/chain-reports

‘Still being failed but striving to survive’ — Crisis UK
http://www.crisis.org.uk/pages/homeless-diff-groups.html

‘Ethnic Inequalities in Mental Health’, Lankelly Chase Foundation
(2014) Accessed at: https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-Health-
Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf

‘Homeless Women’ (2008) Accessed at:
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/2945Homeless women
policy recommendations.pdf

Indices of Multiple Deprivation (2015)
Accessed at: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-
of-deprivation-2015

‘Keep on Caring’ (2016) Accessed at:
https://www.qgov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment d
ata/file/535899/Care-Leaver-Strateqy.pdf

Learning Disability Census (2012)
Accessed at: http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB19428

‘Making it Real for Supported Housing’, Think Local, Act Personal,
(2016), Accessed at:
http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/ assets/MakingltReal/MIRHou

4



https://www.gires.org.uk/assets/Medpro-Assets/GenderVarianceUK-report.pdf
https://www.gires.org.uk/assets/Medpro-Assets/GenderVarianceUK-report.pdf
https://lankellychase.org.uk/resources/publications/hard-edges/
https://www.homeless.org.uk/facts/homelessness-in-numbers/health-needs-audit-explore-data
https://www.homeless.org.uk/facts/homelessness-in-numbers/health-needs-audit-explore-data
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/236799/crisis_homelessness_kills_es2012.pdf
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/236799/crisis_homelessness_kills_es2012.pdf
https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/chain-reports
http://www.crisis.org.uk/pages/homeless-diff-groups.html
https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-Health-Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf
https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-Health-Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf
https://lankellychase.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Ethnic-Inequality-in-Mental-Health-Confluence-Full-Report-March2014.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/2945Homeless_women_policy_recommendations.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/2945Homeless_women_policy_recommendations.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/535899/Care-Leaver-Strategy.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/535899/Care-Leaver-Strategy.pdf
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB19428
http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/_assets/MakingItReal/MIRHousing.pdf

Page 59

sing.pdf

‘Mental Health in the Adult Single Homeless Population’, Crisis (2009)
Accessed at:
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/Mental%20health%20lite
rature%20review.pdf

Prisoners Childhood and Family Backgrounds (2015) - Ministry of
Justice -
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/up
loads/attachment data/file/278837/prisoners-childhood-family-
backgrounds.pdf

‘Psychologically Informed Environments: A Literature Review’(2016)
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/pies-literature-

review.pdf

‘Rebuilding Shattered Lives’ (2014) Accessed at:
http://www.mungos.org/documents/4752/4752.pdf

Statistics - NSPCC
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/preventing-abuse/child-protection-
system/england/statistics/

‘Staying in; understanding evictions and abandonments from London’s
hostels’, Homeless Link (2010)

‘Still being failed but striving to survive’ — Crisis UK
http://www.crisis.org.uk/pages/homeless-diff-groups.html

‘Tackling homelessness and exclusion; understanding complex lives’,
Joseph Rowntree Foundation (2011) Accessed at:
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/migrated/files/homelessness-
exclusion-services-summary.pdf

‘Young and Homeless’, Homeless Link (2015) Accessed at:
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-
attachments/201512%20-%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-
%20Full%20Report.pdf

Outline the key findings of your data analysis. Which groups are
disproportionately affected by the proposal? How does this compare with the
impact on wider service users and/or the borough’s demographic profile? Have
any inequalities been identified?

Explain how you will overcome this within the proposal.

Further information on how to do data analysis can be found in the guidance.

Due to the complex and interrelated needs and experiences of many people who find

5


http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/Mental%20health%20literature%20review.pdf
http://www.crisis.org.uk/data/files/publications/Mental%20health%20literature%20review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/278837/prisoners-childhood-family-backgrounds.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/278837/prisoners-childhood-family-backgrounds.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/278837/prisoners-childhood-family-backgrounds.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/pies-literature-review.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/pies-literature-review.pdf
http://www.mungos.org/documents/4752/4752.pdf
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/preventing-abuse/child-protection-system/england/statistics/
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/preventing-abuse/child-protection-system/england/statistics/
http://www.crisis.org.uk/pages/homeless-diff-groups.html
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/migrated/files/homelessness-exclusion-services-summary.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/migrated/files/homelessness-exclusion-services-summary.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/201512%20-%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-%20Full%20Report.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/201512%20-%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-%20Full%20Report.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/201512%20-%20Young%20and%20Homeless%20-%20Full%20Report.pdf

Page 60

themselves homeless, mainstream housing, health and wellbeing services are often
unable to provide them with the tailored support and advice they need. This can result in
prolonged periods of homelessness, failure to identify health and care needs and
increased interaction with criminal justice agencies. The result of this a significant
human and economic cost to the borough.

58% of single homeless people in Haringey are male aged between 36-50 years old.
Although women make up a relatively small proportion of the homeless cohort nationally,
in Haringey this gap Is much smaller with women making up 36% of those in supported
housing, and 48% of those in our complex needs service. We know that women have
poorer health outcomes and engagement with support services, often due to their fear of
violence and stigma. As a response to this, a range of women only supported housing
provision has been commissioned and the Hub service will offer women’s only sessions
and outreach support to ensure women can access the service safely.

In Haringey, people from black African and Caribbean communities are
disproportionately represented in our supported housing and homelessness services
(41.9%) compared with the borough profile (18.7%), and particularly in our mental health
supported housing pathway. Our rough sleeping population has a large proportion of
European migrants (55%), whose first language is not English, many of whom have no
recourse to public funds and therefore face a range of housing, health and wellbeing
issues for which we have limited recourse to support them.

Single homeless people are disproportionately affected by disability and long-term
health conditions including chronic mental illness, learning disability, autism and
addiction. Often these needs remain unaddressed or misunderstood by services who
see their behaviour as challenging. This results in more health crises and acute hospital
admissions.

Whilst the homeless population is predominantly adults over the age of 25 years, we
support a number of young people in our supported housing pathways who would
access support and information at the Hub. The Hub will offer dedicated youth-only
sessions, and will outreach to Cumberland Road Young Adults Service so that the
service offer reaches out to vulnerable care leavers under the age of 21. All young
people over 18 will be welcome to access the Hub service if they feel this suits them, but
in recognition that they might feel intimidated by an environment supporting older adults
with complex needs, it is felt appropriate to provide a specialist outreach offer.

There is a significant cohort of ‘young-older’ people who will access the Hub. They are
typically aged between 40-55 whose needs are more similar to those of an older age
due to their long histories of homelessness, rough sleeping, substance use,
unaddressed health needs and poor engagement with services. There is also an
increasing, but very small, population of single homeless people aged 65+ in supported
housing services (3%). It is often challenging to successfully place formerly homeless
people into sheltered housing and other age-related support and care due to the added
complexity of substance use, mental health and anti-social behaviour that they often
experience.

There is an absence of data about LGBTQ+ homelessness in the borough, although we
do commission a supported housing service for homeless LGBTQ+ young people and a

6




Page 61

range of LGBTQ+ activities for older people in sheltered housing. 25% of homeless
young people are LGBT, an over-representation compared to the wider borough
population.

There is an absence of data about religion in the homelessness population in the
borough.

Further, sessions will be provided with specific communities in mind in recognition of the
vulnerability of some groups with protected characteristics to access services e.g. trans
people, women and young people.

The proposal to develop this service is in itself an attempt to address the inequalities
that affect homeless people’s health, housing and social outcomes. Homeless people
are disproportionately people that hold one of more protected characteristics when
compared with the broader population and therefore this service is understood to be a
valuable step towards redressing social inequality.

4. a) How will consultation and/or engagement inform your assessment of the
impact of the proposal on protected groups of residents, service users and/or
staff?

Please outline which groups you may target and how you will have targeted them

Further information on consultation is contained within accompanying EqlA guidance
The development of the service will be completed in
partnership with a co-design group made up of homeless and
formerly homeless people, some of whom are supported
Co-design Group housing staff with lived experience of homelessness services.
This group will work with the Council to design the physical
environment that is psychologically informed and that feels
welcoming and inclusive to all.

As part of the development of the Hub we will conduct at least
5 focus group sessions in our supported housing and rough
sleeper services to ensure the design of the future service has
the broad input of as many people as possible who might use
it. At least one session will be women only, one youth specific
and one will seek the input from disabled people.

Focus Groups

The Hub will create two roles for formerly homeless people to
work in the service as a Peer Advisor. Peer Advisors will have
an ongoing role to engage and consultation with users of the
service and provide feedback that feeds into the service
Peer Advisors development and improvement. This role will be developed
through engagement and consultation with existing service
users and peer support workers to make sure that it will have a
role in improving access to the service of vulnerable people
and have a role in challenging stigma.
4. b) Outline the key findings of your consultation / engagement activities once

completed, particularly in terms of how this relates to groups that share the



Page 62

protected characteristics

Explain how will the consultation’s findings will shape and inform your proposal and the
decision making process, and any modifications made?

As part of the development of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategies, as
well as the Single Homeless Pathway review, a number of service users engaged in
mapping their journeys into and through homelessness services, which helped, inform
the idea of the Hub.

Further, a panel of ‘experts by experience’ is working with the Rough Sleeping Strategy
and Monitoring Coordinator to work through proposed initiatives to support people rough
sleeping in the borough. Their insights have also contributed to the Hub design by
highlighting the challenges in accessing mainstream services when someone is sleeping
rough. Further, they have expressed support for a service that offers multiple services in
one place, enabling a person in crisis to access a range of things in one go, rather than
having to travel between services across the borough.

Further co-design work will be conducted as part of the development of the service once
approval to continue is confirmed by Cabinet.

5. What is the likely impact of the proposal on groups of service users and/or staff
that share the protected characteristics?

Please explain the likely differential impact on each of the 9 equality strands, whether
positive or negative. Where it is anticipated there will be no impact from the proposal,

please outline the evidence that supports this conclusion.

Further information on assessing impact on different groups is contained within
accompanying EqlA guidance

1. Sex (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on this protected
characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall impact of this
proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive | x Negative Neutral Unknown
impact Impact

The service will be designed with a trauma-informed approach, which recognises the
impact of violence and abuse on behaviour — an experience that disproportionately affects
women. The Hub will provide women’s only support and advice sessions, as well offering
targeted support and referral around domestic violence and abuse through collaboration
with the WISER project and Hearthstone.

The service will have distinct policies around challenging stigma, harassment and abuse
and discrimination that will be rigorously monitored.

8




Page 63

2. Gender reassignment (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have
on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall
impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive | x Negative Neutral Unknown
impact Impact

The Hub service will have specific LGBTQ+ sessions designed to ensure that the housing
and wellbeing needs of LGBTQ+ people are fully understood and catered for within and
outside of the service. Staff will receive specialist training about gender, including how to
create safe environments, how to have supportive conversations and the legislation
around gender recognition. The service will have distinct policies around challenging
stigma, harassment and abuse and discrimination that will be rigorously monitored.

3. Age (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on this protected
characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall impact of this
proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive | x Negative Neutral Unknown
impact Impact

The service will provide outreach to specific youth services, such as the Young Adults
Service, as well as providing youth-only housing advice and support session, and will be a
key referrer into young peoples supported housing services. Partnerships will be sought
with sexual health service providers, youth substance use services and emotional health
support so that younger people accessing the service can access what they need.
Housing Needs staff will be well versed in the homelessness guidance around the rights of
young people to homelessness prevention support, temporary accommodation and
supported housing.

There is a significant cohort of ‘young-older’ people who will access the Hub. They are
typically aged between 40-55 whose needs are more similar to those of an older age due
to their long histories of homelessness, rough sleeping, substance use, unaddressed
health needs and poor engagement with services. The Hub will collect a range of data,
which will inform commissioning decisions about how to support ‘young-older’ people with
complex support needs in recognition that it is often challenging to place them successfully
in sheltered housing and other forms of age-related support and care.

People who aged 65+ will be welcome to access the service and will have priority access
into temporary, emergency and supported housing based on the vulnerability created by
their advancing age, as per section 189 of the Housing Act (1996 amended 2002). Offers
of sheltered housing will be made by Homes for Haringey, but appointments for assessing
suitability for this type of housing may be made to take place at the Hub or at 40 Station
Road, depending on which is the most suitable for the service user.

The service will have distinct policies around challenging stigma, harassment and abuse
and discrimination that will be rigorously monitored.




Page 64

4. Disability (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on this
protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall impact
of this proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive | x Negative Neutral Unknown
impact Impact

The physical environment of the service will be fully wheelchair accessible, have a hearing
loop and be designed with autistic and learning disabled people in mind. The service will
also be specifically trauma-informed and aims to create a psychologically informed
environment that recognises the impact of trauma on long-term health, challenging
behaviour and reactions to certain triggers. The needs of people with long-term mental
health needs will be taken into specific consideration due to the prevalence of this need
within the homeless population.

The service will have distinct policies around challenging stigma, harassment and abuse
and discrimination that will be rigorously monitored.

5. Race and ethnicity (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on
this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall
impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive | x Negative Neutral Unknown
impact Impact

The service will advance equality of opportunity for people from BAME backgrounds,
recognising the particular vulnerabilities to homelessness, hospitalisation and
imprisonment faced by this group of people. The service will seek to collaborate with
BAME specific local organisations to ensure people have access to culturally sensitive
homelessness advice as well as enabling migrant BAME people to make links with
culturally relevant services, groups and activities.

In recognition of the significant increase in rough sleepers from eastern European
countries, steps will be taken to recruit staff who are able to speak relevant languages.

The service will have distinct policies around challenging stigma, harassment and abuse
and discrimination that will be rigorously monitored.

6. Sexual orientation (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on
this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall
impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive | x Negative Neutral Unknown
impact Impact

The Hub service will have specific LGBTQ+ sessions designed to ensure that the housing
and wellbeing needs of LGBTQ+ people are fully understood and catered for within and
outside of the service. Staff will receive specialist training about sexuality, including how to
create safe environments for LGBTQ+ young people, how to have supportive
conversations and knowledge about specialist LGBTQ+ support services. The service will

10




Page 65

have distinct policies around challenging stigma, harassment and abuse and
discrimination that will be rigorously monitored.

7. Religion or belief (or no belief) (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal
will have on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of
the overall impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive Negative Neutral Unknown | X
impact Impact
We do not currently have any reliable data on the religion and beliefs of the homelessness
population. The development of the service will include data collection improvements
which will give us better information about this characteristics for future commissioning.

The service will have distinct policies around challenging stigma, harassment and abuse
and discrimination which will be rigorously monitored.

8. Pregnancy and maternity (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will
have on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the
overall impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic)

Positive Negative Neutral | x Unknown
impact Impact

Pregnant women and mothers will still access housing advice and support at the Housing
Needs Service at 40 Station Road and will be unaffected by this proposal.

9. Marriage and Civil Partnership (Consideration is only needed to ensure there is no
discrimination between people in a marriage and people in a civil partnership)

Positive Negative Neutral | x Unknown
impact Impact

The service will not discriminate between married people and those in civil partnerships.
10. Groups that cross two or more equality strands e.g. young black women

The majority of people accessing this service are likely to have two or more protected
characteristics, and the service will be designed with the particular needs and experiences
of the following people, who are over-represented or whose outcomes are known to be
poorer, in mind:

-  LGBTQ+ young people under 25 years old

- Men from black African and Caribbean backgrounds with chronic mental health
conditions

- Women with chronic mental health conditions related to trauma who are survivors of
abuse and violence

- Autistic people from BAME backgrounds

11




Page 66

Outline the overall impact of the policy for the Public Sector Equality Duty:
e Could the proposal result in any direct/indirect discrimination for any group

that shares the relevant protected characteristics?
Will the proposal help to advance equality of opportunity between groups
who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not?
This includes:
a) Remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons protected under the
Equality Act
b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons protected under the Equality Act
that are different from the needs of other groups
c) Encourage persons protected under the Equality Act to participate in public
life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low

Will the proposal help to foster good relations between groups who share a
relevant protected characteristic and those who do not?

The development of a single homeless Hub will enable vulnerable adults with a range of
needs and protected characteristics to access the support, advice and housing they need
at the earliest possible time, enabling rapid exit from rough sleeping, early identification of
health crises and a reduction in interactions with the criminal justice system and
community safety enforcement interventions.

The proposal will help to advance equality of opportunity between groups who share
protected characteristics and those who do not by creating a service that minimises known
inequalities, meets the specific needs of people with protected characteristics and
encourages the participation in public life of vulnerable homeless people.

The proposal will also help to foster good relations between groups who share and do not
share protected characteristics by having specific and tailored policies and procedures
around discrimination, bullying and abuse as well as delivering supportive interventions
and activities for service users around violence and abuse, hate crime, consent and
personal boundaries.

6. a) What changes if any do you plan to make to your proposal as a result of the
Equality Impact Assessment?

Further information on responding to identified impacts is contained within accompanying
EglA guidance

Outcome Y/N

No major change to the proposal: the EqIA demonstrates the proposal is
robust and there is no potential for discrimination or adverse impact. All
opportunities to promote equality have been taken. If you have found any X
inequalities or negative impacts that you are unable to mitigate, please provide a
compelling reason below why you are unable to mitigate them.

Adjust the proposal: the EqIA identifies potential problems or missed

12



Page 67

opportunities. Adjust the proposal to remove barriers or better promote equality.
Clearly set out below the key adjustments you plan to make to the policy. If
there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling

reason below

Stop and remove the proposal: the proposal shows actual or potential

avoidable adverse impacts on different protected characteristics. The decision

maker must not make this decision.

6 b) Summarise the specific actions you plan to take to remove or mitigate any

actual or potential negative impact and to further the aims of the Equality Duty

Impact and which Action Lead officer Timescale
relevant protected
characteristics are
impacted?
A wide range of
All — ensure the voices, engagement and co-design | Gill Taylor Ongoing, but
insights and experiences | activities with current and starting in
of people with protected | former service users, with a October 2018.
characteristics are focus on those with
central to the design of protected characteristics.
the Hub
Create Peer Advisor roles
within the Hub service to
ensure service user voices
are given a strong voice in
service improvement and
development.
Engaging a contractor who | Gill Taylor To start in
Disabled people — is confident and competent October 2018

ensuring the Hub is
accessible.

in delivering a genuinely
accessible Hub
environment.

13




Page 68

Please outline any areas you have identified where negative impacts will happen as
a result of the proposal but it is not possible to mitigate them. Please provide a
complete and honest justification on why it is not possible to mitigate them.

6 ¢) Summarise the measures you intend to put in place to monitor the equalities

impact of the proposal as it is implemented:

Data and knowledge about homeless people with protected characteristics and their
outcomes in homelessness services, will be significantly improved by the creation of the
Hub as all people who use the service will be asked to share information about the identity,
needs and experiences, which will be used to facilitate appropriate support offers as well
as to track and monitor, on a quarterly basis, who is using the service and who is
under/over-represented.

An evaluation of the service will be commissioned that will monitor it's successes and
challenges over the first two years of implementation. A key strand of this will be the trends
in access and outcome of service users, where protected characteristics will be monitored
as a key indicator.

Quarterly monitoring of the service — which will include looking at who is accessing the
service, the outcomes they achieve, number of incidents occurring that involve possible
hate crime elements.

Monitoring the delivery, take-up and outcome of women only, youth specific and BAME
housing advice sessions, activities and initiatives.

7. Authorisation

EQIA approved DY ... Date
(Assistant Director/ Director) | e

8. Publication

Please ensure the completed Eq/A is published in accordance with the Council’s policy.

Please contact the Policy & Strategy Team for any feedback on the EqlA process.

14



Page 69 Agenda Item 12

Report for: Cabinet - 11 September 2018

Title: Designation of Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Area and Forum.

Report

authorised by : Helen Fisher

Lead Officer: Matthew Patterson, matthew.patterson@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: Stroud Green, Harringay

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Key

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Neighbourhood Planning was introduced under the Localism Act 2011. It allows a
community to self-define their neighbourhood and prepare a Neighbourhood Plan
for their area which then forms part of a local authority’s development plan. The
primary function of a Neighbourhood Plan is to provide localised planning policies
that must be in general conformity with the policy hierarchy: Haringey’'s Local
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. Neighbourhood Planning
policies must be created as the result of robust evidence and engagement
practices. The first steps in the Neighbourhood Planning process are for the
Local Authority to designate a proposed Neighbourhood Area and
Neighbourhood Forum. Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum
applications are separate, but it is recommended that these applications are
submitted together, as is the case with the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Area application and the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Forum application

1.2 A Neighbourhood Area application and Neighbourhood Forum application are
attached at Appendix 1, and were submitted by a community group - the Finsbury
Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Plan Working Group (referred to as the
Working Group in this report). This report considers the designation of a Finsbury
Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area and a Finsbury Park and Stroud
Green Neighbourhood Forum. The application submissions identify the area
within which the group intends to operate and provide summaries of the group’s
membership and constitution in line with the regulations and requirements. This
report also summarises the content of the applications including the evidence
based submissions such as the Neighbourhood Area Boundary Study (Appendix
2), the Equalities Assessment (Appendix 6). and the results of consultation on the
area and forum applications (Appendix 8).

1.3 The designation of a Neighbourhood Area and Forum are the first steps in the
neighbourhood planning process. Following designation, a Neighbourhood
Forum has the opportunity to utilise planning powers to shape their
Neighbourhood Area, for example through the production of a Neighbourhood
Plan.

Haringey



1.4

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

Page 70

The proposed Neighbourhood Area straddles the borough boundaries of
Haringey, Hackney and Islington, making it a tri-borough application. Officers
from all three councils have been liaising to coordinate the processing of the two
applications, including public consultation, and to synchronise the formal decision
making processes in the three boroughs. As regards the proposal for the
Neighbourhood Area, each of the three local authorities can make a decision only
in respect of their part of the proposed Neighbourhood Area

Cabinet Member Introduction

The Council is supportive of local communities taking a leading role in shaping
the future of their local area. The Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Forum will be the third such forum designated in Haringey,
following on from those for Highgate and Crouch End. Straddling the boundaries
of three local authorities, there are likely to be administrative challenges
associated with progressing a neighbourhood plan for this area, but Haringey
Council is committed to working with the Forum and our neighbouring council’s to
ensure our local people can achieve their ambitions for their neighbourhood.

Recommendations

To consider the summary of responses to the consultation on the applications for
the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood
Forum (Appendix 8).

To refuse to designate the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Area, as identified in Appendix 1 and Appendix 7, pursuant to Section 61G and
611 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (“the Act”) in so far
as that area is within the London Borough of Haringey

To designate the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area as
amended by Officers and identified in Appendix 9, pursuant to Section 61G and
611 of the Act in so far as that area is within the London Borough of Haringey

To agree to designate the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Forum, as set out in Appendix 1, pursuant to Section 61F of the Act

Reasons for decision

An application for the designation of the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Area which falls within London Boroughs of Islington, Hackney
and Haringey, as identified on the map submitted as part of the Neighbourhood
Area application (at Appendix 7), has been made to the Council and the proposal
has been subject to consultation. The application meets the relevant regulations.

Neighbourhood Area
In light of representations received Officers recommend that Cabinet designates

the Area but with amendments to the proposed boundary within Haringey,
namely to exclude the Finsbury Park itself.

Haringey



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

Page 71

The representations received highlight Finsbury Park is wholly within the
Haringey administrative area, and thus there was significant concern that the
proposed Forum would have undue influence over the future management and
development within the park, for which the majority of membership is not within
Haringey under whose administrative responsibility lies.

Additionally the Park is a Regional Park with more than local significance, and its
future is considered important to many neighbourhoods within the three
Boroughs and further afield. There is therefore concern that other
neighbourhoods within the vicinity of the park would lose influence and sway over
the future of the park and that there will not be the opportunity for consultation on
issues which may affect them.

Officers would therefore conclude that there are no existing administrative or
physical boundaries which justify the attachment of any part of the park
exclusively to the Stroud Green/Finsbury Park Forum Area, and the inclusion of it
within the proposed Forum Area could be to the detriment of other
neighbourhoods within the vicinity of the Park. It is noted that there are a number
of existing mechanisms which afford protection to the interests of residents and
park users. This includes an active Stakeholder Group which includes
representation on behalf of local residents (in the form of local councillors,
resident associations and the Friends of Finsbury Park).

If Cabinet are minded to refuse to designate the Neighbourhood Area boundary
as proposed, the provisions of section 61G(5) of the Act would apply. This
requires the Council to exercise its power of designation so as to secure that
some or all of the specified area forms part of one or more areas designated (or
to be designated) as Neighbourhood Areas. This means that a smaller
Neighbourhood Area would need to be designated (removing any areas which
instigated refusal). As the proposed Neighbourhood Area crosses a local
authority boundary the powers of designation apply to each Local Planning
Authority for their own area only. It is therefore recommended that Cabinet use
the Council’s powers of Designation to designate a boundary for the Finsbury
Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area as amended by Officers and
identified in Appendix 9

Neighbourhood Forum

An application for the designation of a Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Forum (Appendix 1) has been made to the Council and the
proposal has been subject to consultation which demonstrated no objections
from stakeholders. The application meets the relevant regulations.

It is recommended that Cabinet designate the proposed Neighbourhood Forum.
Alternative options considered

The Council is required by Section 61G and 61l of the Act to determine an
application to designate a neighbourhood area within 20 weeks of submission of

the application. The only alternative options would be for the Council to:

¢ designate the area as submitted without alterations

Haringey



5.2

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 72

¢ Refuse to designate the Forum.

For the reasons given above, the designation of the area as submitted is
recommended to be modified. The section below outlines how the proposed
Forum meets the requirements in regulations and there have been no objections
receieved. Therefore it is not recommended to refuse the application to designate
the Forum.

Background information

The Working Group began work on neighbourhood planning in 2015 as a result
of the Finsbury Park Regeneration Conference 2015. The three Councils have
provided feedback on several iterations of the forum and area applications before
valid applications (i.e. consistent with the relevant regulations) were submitted to
Islington, Hackney and Haringey Councils in April 2018

The application submissions include the following documents (appended to this
report):

Appendix 1: Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area and Forum
Application

Appendix 2: Neighbourhood Area Boundary Study

Appendix 3: Protected Characteristics Study

Appendix 4: Forum Constitution

Appendix 5: Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity Statement

Appendix 6: Equalities Assessment

Appendix 7: Neighbourhood Area Map

Appendix 8: Consultation Summary, produced by the Council

Neighbourhood Area Application

The Neighbourhood Area application includes the following relevant information
as required under Regulation 5 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General)
Regulations 2012 (as amended) (“the Regulations”) (see Appendix 1 and
Appendix 7):

e A map identifying the proposed Neighbourhood Area (the area to which the
application relates)

e A statement explaining why the area is considered to be appropriate to be

designated; and,

e A statement that the organisation is a relevant body (i.e. an organisation or

body which is, or is capable of being, designated as a Neighbourhood Forum as

defined in section 61G of the Act'.

In addition to a map of the proposed area, an explanation for the proposed
boundary and the evidence used to determine it, is set out in the Neighbourhood
Area Boundary Study (Appendix 2).

Officers (of Islington, Hackney and Haringey) are satisfied that the application
submitted for the designation of a Neighbourhood Area meets the minimum

Haringey



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Page 73

requirements set out in Regulation 5 of the Regulations and Section 61G of the
Act.

The Neighbourhood Area spans eight wards of which two are in Haringey (Stroud
Green and Harringay). The proposed area contains three main features: Finsbury
Park town centre, residential dwellings, and the open space of Finsbury Park.
The majority of the proposed neighbourhood area falls within Islington’s boundary
which contains the majority of Finsbury Park town centre, including the west side
of Blackstock Road, west side of Stroud Green Road, and Seven Sisters Road
up until the junction with Blackstock Road.

The Northern boundary In Haringey (Stroud Green Ward) runs along Mount View
Road and adjoins the Crouch End Neighbourhood Forum Area. This was done to
satisfy Section 61G(7) of the Act that states ‘the areas designated as
neighbourhood areas must not overlap with each other’. The area to the south of
this line to Stroud Green Road was included as residents did feel a connection
with the Finsbury Park Area, and Stroud Green was included within the Forum
Area to avoid a divide between the Stroud Green Road and the Stroud Green
Conservation Area, making Planning Policy in the area more comprehensive.
The proposed name for the Neighbourhood Area, the “Finsbury Park and Stroud
Green Neighbourhood Area”, recognises the two distinct but inseparable
neighbourhoods.

Outside of Haringey the western boundary of the Neighbourhood Area runs
parallel to Hornsey Road. However, it does not follow the physical feature of
Hornsey Road itself, instead following an irregular line that excludes all properties
fronting Hornsey Road and includes selected properties to the east as a result of
the boundary survey. This was felt appropriate by the Working Group in order to
not reduce the chances of a comprehensive strategy for the regeneration of the
adjoining area and allow for Hornsey Road’s potential inclusion in another
Neighbourhood Area (possibly linked to Holloway).

To the south-west, the boundary staggers south-eastwards in from Seven Sisters
Road as a result of the boundary survey results indicating that half of residents
west of Berriman Road and Parkside Crescent identified more with Holloway, and
half with Finsbury Park. The boundary here therefore takes account of the survey
findings and follows a route based on the local street pattern and character.

The southern part of the Neighbourhood Boundary in the Highbury West Ward
follows an irregular line along Gillespie Road. The cluster of local services along
Gillespie Road between Plimsoll Road and Avenell Road are excluded as these
are said to likely have a catchment area largely serving areas outside the
neighbourhood boundary.

The north-west of the boundary in Islington follows the Overground Line west
through Crouch Hill to its intersection with the boundary parallel to Hornsey
Road. This was done to satisfy Section 61G(7) of the Act that states ‘the areas
designated as neighbourhood areas must not overlap with each other’. The
proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore abuts but does not overlap with the
designated Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise Neighbourhood Area. Although there is
no designated forum for this latter area, the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Working Group acknowledge the need to engage proactively on cross boundary

Haringey



Page 74

issues if a neighbourhood forum for Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise were to form in
the future.

7.10 The Boundary to the South East in Hackney runs down from the south-east side
of Finsbury Park where it then follows an irregular line southwards to the west of
Green Lanes in the London Borough of Hackney. This is due to boundary survey
results, existing planning applications and Area Action Plans that have been
taken into account. The boundary then finally meets up with Blackstock Road to
the south.

7.11 The Working Group conducted a range of exercises in devising the proposed
Neighbourhood Area. This included a boundary survey via an online survey
generating 490 valid responses; running nine street stalls; hosting and attending
community events; and targeted door knocking, generating an additional 607
valid responses. Additionally, contact was made with Friends of Finsbury Park
Management Committee (FFPMC) and Ladder Community Safety Partnership
(LCSP) to gauge their views on the boundary proposal. This mainly concerned
whether to include the Park in the boundary which FFPMC felt may be
appropriate to create a coherent plan. LCSP had reservations about including the
whole Park in the plan, though further discussions concluded that LCSP would
not take an official line on the issue.

7.12 The Council’s decision on the designation of the Neighbourhood Area must be
made in relation to the proposed Neighbourhood Area within the boundary of the
London Borough of Haringey only.

7.13 A large part of the proposed Neighbourhood Area is covered by Conservation
Area (CA) designations, with further Conservation Areas adjacent to the
Neighbourhood Area boundary. The Conservation Area encompassed by the
boundary within Haringey’s jurisdiction is the Stroud Green CA (a small part of
which falls within the Crouch End Neighbourhood Area to the North).

7.14 Section 61G(5)(c) of the Act allows the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to refuse
to designate a proposed Neighbourhood Area if it is considered to be
inappropriate, subject to the below provision. Section 61G(9) requires the LPA to
give reasons for refusing to designate a Neighbourhood Area application.
However, if Cabinet are minded to refuse to designate the Neighbourhood Area
boundary as proposed, the provisions of Section 61G(5) would apply. This
requires the Council to exercise its power of designation so as to secure that
some or all of the specified area forms part of one or more areas designated (or
to be designated) as Neighbourhood Areas. This means that a smaller
Neighbourhood Area would need to be designated (removing any areas which
instigated refusal). As the proposed Neighbourhood Area crosses a local
authority boundary the powers of designation apply to each LPA for their own
area only. The refusal of a proposed Neighbourhood Area however must be
supported by evidence and justification.

7.15 National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides guidance on what
considerations could be taken into account when deciding the boundaries of a
Neighbourhood Area. This includes:

Haringey



Page 75

evillage or settlement boundaries, which could reflect areas of planned
expansion;

ethe catchment area for walking to local services such as shops, primary
schools, doctors’ surgery, parks or other facilities;

ethe area where formal or informal networks of community based groups
operate;

e the physical appearance or characteristics of the neighbourhood, for example
buildings may be of a consistent scale or style;

e whether the area forms all or part of a coherent estate either for businesses or
residents;

e whether the area is wholly or predominantly a business area,;

e whether infrastructure or physical features define a natural boundary, for
example a major road or railway line or waterway;

e the natural setting or features in an area;

e size of the population (living and working) in the area;

e electoral ward boundaries, which can be a useful starting point for discussions
on the appropriate size of a neighbourhood area; these have an average
population of about 5,500 residents.

7.16 The PPG also states that, when deciding whether to designate a Neighbourhood
Area, a LPA should avoid pre-judging what a qualifying body may subsequently
decide to put in its draft Neighbourhood Plan or Order; and it should not make
assumptions about the Neighbourhood Plan or Order that will emerge from
developing, testing and consulting on the draft Neighbourhood Plan or Order
when designating a Neighbourhood Area.

7.17 As per the recommendations above, Officers are not satisfied that the Area as
submitted is appropriate, as it includes a park of Regional significance, that would
be inappropriate to be within the Neighbourhood Planning Powers of one Forum.

Neighbourhood Forum Application

7.18 The minimum requirements for a Neighbourhood Forum application are set out in
the Regulations. Under Regulation 8, as well as the name of the forum and area
and contact details of at least one member, applications must also include a copy
of the written constitution and a statement which explains how the forum meets
the conditions set out in section 61F(5) of the Act. This requires that an
organisation must be established for the express purpose of promoting or
improving the social, economic and environmental well-being of the area. The
above requirements are addressed in the Neighbourhood Forum application in
(Appendix 1) and the Forum Constitution in (Appendix 4). It also requires
membership of the forum to be open to individuals who live, work or are elected
members in the area and that membership includes at least 21 individuals each
of whom falls within one of these categories (as set out in Appendix 4).

7.19 In addition to ensuring, or taking reasonable steps to ensure membership from
each category, section 61F(7) of the Act requires that, in determining whether to
designate a Neighbourhood Forum for a Neighbourhood Area, a Local Planning
Authority must have regard to the desirability of designating an organisation
whose membership has secured (or has taken reasonable steps to attempt to
secure) members from different places and different sections of the community in

Haringey



Page 76

the area and whose purpose reflects (in general terms) the character of the area.
The forum application provides details about the forum’s purpose and aims for
the area (Appendix 1) and The Protected Characteristics Study (Appendix 3)
together with the Neighbourhood Area Boundary Study (Appendix 2)
demonstrate the comprehensive engagement and evidence gathering that took
place in order to try and make the forum as representative as possible and
identify groups where more engagement will be needed.

7.20 The forum application also provides an overview of the membership of the forum,
with the Register of Members being redacted from the public consultation for data
protection reasons. However, the Register of Members has been reviewed by
officers and the forum membership complies with the requirements. There are 82
members which includes people who live and/or work within the area. There is
one councillor from each borough that would also sit on the forum. Efforts have
been made to consult and involve different parts of the area and different
sections of the community - as set out in the Equalities Assessment (Appendix 6)
and the Protected Characteristics Study (Appendix 3).

7.21 The Equalities Assessment (Appendix 6) demonstrates a concerted effort to
ensure inclusivity of the Neighbourhood Forum through:

e explicit objectives in the constitution to include people from across the nine
protected characteristics of the Equality Act 2010;

eonce the forum is adopted the appointed treasurer will secure funding to
support residents to get involved, especially those who do not typically get
involved in planning policy development;

e Subject to the approval of the Neighbourhood Forum and Area, the forum will
ask members to voluntarily provide equalities monitoring data to allow the
ongoing assessment of how the forum makeup compares to the makeup of the
Neighbourhood Area as a whole and thus deploy resources to engage
underrepresented groups;

e continuous engagement with the local community including non-members of the
forum and those outside the Neighbourhood Area through a range of methods
including surveys, door knocking, events, online discussions, newsletters and
workshops. The Working Group also propose methods to engage those who do
not typically take part in civic activity by embedding consultation in cultural, sports
and leisure activities;

¢ Meetings and events will also be accessible and key information provided in a
variety of formats.

7.22 The Equalities Assessment acknowledges the need to ensure that development
contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the Neighbourhood Area
for all protected characteristics.

7.23 After providing feedback on several iterations of the forum application officers of
Haringey, Hackney and Islington Councils are satisfied that the application
submitted for designation of a Neighbourhood Forum meets the requirements set
out in Regulation 8 of the Regulations and Sections 61F(5) and 61F(7) of the Act.

7.24 If a Neighbourhood Forum is designated, then sub-section 61F (8)- of the Act is
clear that this designation will expire after 5 years. In addition, a LPA can

Haringey



Page 77

withdraw the designation if they consider the organisation is no longer meeting
the conditions by reference to which it was designated or any other criteria to
which the LPA is required to have regard to in making the designation. If a forum
designation is withdrawn the reasons for this must be set out.

7.25 If a decision is made to refuse to designate a Neighbourhood Forum the LPA
must publicise their decision and set out their reasons for making that decision in
a “refusal statement”, as required under Regulation 10 of the Regulations.

Consultation and discussion of responses

7.26 Haringey, Hackney and Islington Councils carried out a joint consultation
exercise on both applications. Under Regulations 6 & 9 of the Regulations (2012)
as amended, the Councils were required to publicise the applications to those
who live or work in the area to which the applications relate. The consultation
took place for six weeks from the 14th May 2018 to 25th June 2018. Copies of
the applications were made available on the Council’'s website, along with
information on how to make representations. Notices were also displayed at
various locations throughout the proposed Neighbourhood Area. Finally,
individuals and organisations on the Planning Policy database were notified
about the consultation, where to find further information and how to respond.

7.27 A total of 18 responses were received by the three councils in total during the
formal consultation period (see below for a contextualisation of this). A summary
of all responses received, and the Council’'s response to these, is provided at
Appendix 8. Two of the respondents did not declare what borough they were
from.

7.28 A total of 8 responses provided general comments that were neutral in relation to
the forum and area proposals, mainly from statutory consultees and
organisations (TfL, National Grid, Highways England, Natural England, Canal
and River Trust, Historic England, Openreach, Deloitte)

7.29 Three responses expressed support for both the forum and area applications. Of
these, two were from local residents and one was from a respondent
representing the NHS. Overall, there were no responses that specifically
supported just the Neighbourhood Forum, and equally there were no responses
that specifically opposed the proposed Neighbourhood Forum.

7.30 There were seven responses that objected to the proposed Neighbourhood Area
boundary, although these were almost entirely related to the inclusion of the
whole of Finsbury Park itself within the boundary. All respondents objecting to the
proposed Neighbourhood Area were either based in Haringey or objected to the
inclusion of the park which itself is within the London Borough of Haringey. The
one response not related to this issue stated that they were not aware of previous
engagement and would have liked to be included in the boundary.

7.31 The primary reason for the above objections to include the whole of the park, is
that these respondents felt that the inclusion of the park would give residents on
the west side of the park, primarily within Islington, undue influence over its
development and management. In their consultation response, Historic England
noted that Finsbury Park is a Grade Il Registered Park and Garden. Therefore,

Haringey



Page 78

whether the park is included in the Neighbourhood Area boundary or not,
development beyond ‘enhancement’ of the park would not be allowed.

7.32 Support for the area and forum mainly revolved around the opportunity to
increase community involvement in the development of the neighbourhood;
create a coherent approach to development as the area is at the intersection of
three boroughs, and with TfL and Network Rail playing a significant role; and
provide opportunities to identify, protect and enhance community assets.

7.33 The NHS response welcomed the forum and area application citing opportunities
to explore cross boundary working to improve healthcare services and access to
these, as well as opening opportunities for the sharing of premises and assets.

7.34 There were no objections to the proposed forum by any stakeholders. Through
liaison between officers and the Working Group, the forum constitution does not
allow affiliate voting rights so as to ensure forum members have full and fair
democratic agency over forum decisions. The constitution (Appendix 4) also
builds on the comprehensive equality assessment (Appendix 6) by committing to
open membership of the forum and striving to continuously engage demographic
groups that are underrepresented or more challenging to engage.

7.35 A late representation was received from an Islington resident objecting to the
inclusion of a small part of the Islington area, between Seven Sisters Road and
the railway line to the east, within the proposed Neighbourhood Area. It is
considered that this late representation does not justify amending this part of
Islington’s boundary as proposed by the Working Group.

7.36 The boundary of the proposed Neighbourhood Area (reproduced from Appendix
7) is shown below followed by the amended boundary recommended by Officers;

Haringey



Page 79

Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area

o " ; . t ‘.

Contains OS data @ Crown copyright and database right 2018

Haringey



;F“"é@\ \

Joint Borough working

7.37 Officers from Haringey, Hackney and Islington have worked closely on managing
the neighbourhood planning process for Finsbury Park and Stroud Green and will
continue to do so to ensure consistency in advice to the prospective
Neighbourhood Forum and that regulations are met throughout the process.

7.38 Hackney and Islington Councils’ will also be taking the proposed applications
forward through their formal approval processes during the summer, and there is
a statutory deadline to formally consider applications within 20 weeks of their
publication.

7.39 Subject to Cabinet approving the recommendations in this report, and Hackney
and Islington also agreeing the Forum designation, and the Neighbourhood Area
designation for the part of the Neighbourhood Area in Hackney and in Islington,
the Forum and Area (as amended) would form the basis for the Forum to
commence work on a Neighbourhood Plan for the area. It is not anticipated that
LB Hackney or LB Islington would recommend an amendment to their part of the
boundary but it is within their powers to do so.

Haringey



Page 81

The role of the Forum

7.40 If the Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum applications are approved
by all three Councils (with or without amendments to the boundary of the Area),
then the designations will be publicised consistent with Regulations 7 and 10 of
the Regulations.

7.41 If designated, the Neighbourhood Forum can develop a draft Neighbourhood
Plan, in consultation with residents and other stakeholders. The final
Neighbourhood Plan and accompanying material would be submitted to
Haringey, Hackney and Islington Councils, who will invite representations on the
plan for a period of six weeks. Following this, the plan would be assessed by an
independent examiner to ensure basic requirements have been met.

7.42 Following a statutory examination, if the examiner is satisfied that a proposed
Neighbourhood Plan is sound, a referendum on the proposed plan would be held.
All registered voters in the whole Neighbourhood Area would be entitled to vote.
A simple majority of votes in favour is required for the Councils to be able to
adopt the plan. Upon adoption, the Neighbourhood Plan would form part of each
Council’s statutory Development Plan and would be used to make decisions on
planning applications.

7.43 Officers will continue to advise the Neighbourhood Forum when developing any
further neighbourhood planning proposals in order to ensure that they are
effective and consistent with local policies. The Council will set out expectations
of the process; this will include setting milestones and strong encouragement of
ongoing dialogue between the Forum, local communities and councillors.

7.44 It is important to note that once there is a Neighbourhood Plan in place the
Neighbourhood Forum would have a role to play in considering the spending of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in the future. The National Planning Practice
Guidance states that 25% of CIL receipts from an area with an adopted
Neighbourhood Plan should be allocated in consultation with the local
community, and this is also applicable where developments are secured through
a Neighbourhood Development Order or Community Right to Build Order. This
applies to CIL receipts secured through planning permissions granted after the
Neighbourhood Plan has passed the referendum.

8 Contribution to strategic outcomes

8.1 Neighbourhood planning can accord with the delivery of the majority of corporate
objectives, as it enables communities to play a much stronger role in shaping the
areas in which they live and work, setting out a positive vision for how they want
their community to develop and in ways that meet identified local need and make
sense for local people. In this respect it represents residents and businesses
within a community coming together to work in partnership to help improve their
local area for the betterment of all.

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance

Haringey



Page 82

8.2 The Council has statutory duties in relation to neighbourhood planning including
publicity, administration costs such as referendums, cost of assessing the
Neighbourhood Area and Forum, and supporting local neighbourhood forums in
preparing their neighbourhood plans.

8.3 Some of these costs will be met within the existing Neighbourhood Plans budget
and staff resources to implement the Plan will come from the Council’s existing
staff resources.

8.4 In addition, Government provides funding to help local authorities meet the cost
of their Neighbourhood Planning responsibilities and to support local
communities. Local Planning Authorities can claim £5,000 for each of the first five
Neighbourhood Areas designated and a further £5,000 for each of the first five
Neighbourhood Forums designated.

8.5 As the neighbourhood area crosses three borough boundaries, the resource
implications of supporting the work of the forum is likely to be significantly greater
than this as a result of the administrative burden involved in co-ordinating
meetings, consultations, and running the referendum. If this is the case this may
impact on the ability of the Service to deliver other priorities.

Procurement
8.6 N/A
Legal

8.7 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance had reviewed and noted this
report.

8.8 The consultation on the neighbourhood area and forum applications has been
conducted in line with the Regulations.

8.9 The Regulations) set a prescribed date for the determination of an area
application. In this case, the prescribed date is 20 weeks from the date
immediately following that on which the application is first publicised, which was
the 14th May 2018.

8.10 Section 61G(5) of the Act states that the Council must exercise their power of
designation so as to secure that some or all of the specified area forms part of
one or more areas designated (or to be designated) as neighbourhood areas.
This means if the boundary as proposed is refused a smaller neighbourhood area
would need to be designated (removing any areas which instigated refusal). A
justification would also need to be set out for the changes to the boundary.

8.11 In determing the decision to designate an organisation as neighbourhood forum
the Council must comply with section 61F(7) of the Act, including having regard
to the desirability of designating an organisation or body whose membership is
drawn from different places in the neighbourhood area concerned and from
different sections of the community in that area. If a decision is made to refuse to

Haringey



Page 83

designate a neighbourhood forum the Council must publicise the decision and set
out their reasons in a “refusal statement”.

Equality

8.12 The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to
have due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Act

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected
characteristics and people who do not

e Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and
people who do not.

8.13 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and
sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of
the duty.

8.14 The Council has consulted with residents on the designation of the boundary and
forum and the outcome of the consultation is summarised in this report. Some
respondents to the consultation note that were a neighbourhood forum
designated and a neighbourhood plan brought forward, there is potential to bring
about positive impacts on local environmental quality and health and wellbeing
outcomes for residents.

8.15 With regard to the forum application, officers have worked closely with the
Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Plan Working Group to ensure
that as far as possible the forum is open to all, including people sharing the
protected characteristics as defined in the Equality Act (paragraph 7.1), with
membership drawn from different sections of the community and from different
places within the area, as required by legislation. The application demonstrates a
commitment to continue to engage with the local community and be as inclusive
as possible, working to identify and engage diverse members of the local
community. Specifically, the Neighbourhood Forum contains explicit objectives to
include people who share the nine protected characteristics, the application
makes a commitment to seeking funding to ensure that individuals with protected
characteristics participate in the forum, and equalities considerations have been
taken into account in plans for the forum’s operations.

8.16 If designated, the neighbourhood forum can proceed to preparing a
neighbourhood plan. The neighbourhood plan must be inclusive, with due
consideration for the needs of individuals and groups with protected
characteristics, and will therefore need to include ongoing consultation with all
sections of the community. The Council’s role in the preparation of the potential
neighbourhood plan will be to support and guide the process. The Council will
advise on consultation requirements throughout the process, including ensuring
the group engage with relevant statutory bodies as well as the community.

9 Use of Appendices

Haringey



Page 84

- Appendix 1: Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area and Forum
Application

- Appendix 2: Neighbourhood Area Boundary Study

- Appendix 3: Protected Characteristics Study

- Appendix 4: Forum Constitution

- Appendix 5: Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity Statement

- Appendix 6: Equalities Assessment

- Appendix 7: Neighbourhood Area Map

- Appendix 8: Consultation Summary (produced by the Council)

- Appendix 9: Proposed Amended Neighbourhood Boundary

10 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
None

Haringey



Page 85 Appendix 1

Appendix 1



Page 86

FINSBURY PARK
STROUD GREEN

Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Plan

c/o Finsbury Park Trust

225-229 Seven Sisters Road

LONDON

N4 2DA

finsburyparkstroudgreen@gmail.com

21 April 2018

Dear B. Johnson,

Re: Applications to the London Boroughs of Hackney, Haringey and Islington under Schedule 9
of the Localism Act 2011

The Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Plan Working Group is pleased to submit this
application to establish a Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum for Finsbury Park and Stroud
Green under Schedule 9 of the Localism Act 2011.

Why a Neighbourhood Plan for Finsbury Park?

Inrecent years, Finsbury Park has often felt like the ‘forgotten corner of three Boroughs’. At the Finsbury
Park Regeneration Conference in 2015, a group of local residents and workers were enthused by the
idea that a Neighbourhood Plan for Finsbury Park could help secure a more coherent and prosperous
future for the area.

These applications to the London Boroughs of Hackney, Haringey and Islington are the culmination of
work by, with, and for the local community since that time — and | would like to thank all those who have
helped along the way, particularly the Finsbury Park Trust.

The vision, policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. The Neighbourhood Plan must also
be compliant with strategic policies within the Local Plans of the three councils, and our Neighbourhood
Area Study outlines the current planning policy framework for the area. Without prejudice to this, we
anticipate that the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will focus on:

e Creating a coherent vision for the future: Finsbury Park spans multiple administrative
boundaries. Whilst an accord was signed by the three local councils in June 2012, there are
opportunities to make coordination more effective. A Neighbourhood Plan will provide a single
set of coherent planning policies for the area.

e Bringing together community champions: Enthusiasm for a Neighbourhood Plan was first
revealed at an event in February 2015. Since then, a working group has emerged, with
increasing interest and support from local residents and other stakeholders. The new
relationships formed whilst, and skills gained from, preparing a Neighbourhood Plan may also
help the community in other ways in future.

o Designating areas for regeneration and conservation: Neighbourhood Plans can help to
focus new development in the most appropriate locations, whilst protecting assets such as local
green spaces and buildings with heritage value.

e Improving the environment: Finsbury Park itself is a great asset to the area, but heavy traffic
flows detract from the local environment. Planning policies can directly and indirectly affect
public realm and landscape, green infrastructure (such as street trees, parks, and water
courses), car parking, drainage, air quality, energy and water consumption, and noise.

e Improving transport and connectivity: Despite excellent public transport links, areas of
Finsbury Park are dominated by motor vehicles. The railway lines and roads with heavier traffic
disconnect parts of the community from one another. A Neighbourhood Plan can set out a
vision for land use, public realm, and transport infrastructure. This could include proposals to


mailto:finsburyparkstroudgreen@gmail.com

Page 87

improve accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists — although some elements of this vision may
not form planning policy.

o Ensuring the delivery of community facilities in line with growth: Our local area has a
diverse population, each with different needs — and newcomers will increase demands on
existing services. Planning policy can highlight need for community facilities, and outline
expectations for developers to contribute towards meeting these.

e Ensuring that change benefits everyone: Finsbury Park’s convenient transport links and
vibrant amenities have attracted new investment and development. But rising rents and living
costs have meant that existing residents and businesspeople have sometimes lost out. A
Neighbourhood Plan can promote affordability and diversity in its housing policies, and the
creation of employment opportunities in line with housing growth.

e Directing funding for local projects: Neighbourhood Forums have powers to direct the
investment of the neighbourhood element of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding.

Neighbourhood Area application

Requirements of Section 61G of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

(1) A “neighbourhood area” means an area within the area of a local planning authority in
England which has been designated by the authority as a neighbourhood area; but that power
to designate is exercisable only where— (a) a relevant body has applied to the authority for an
area specified in the application to be designated by the authority as a neighbourhood area, and
(b) the authority are determining the application (but see subsection (5))

(2) A “relevant body” means (a) a parish council, or (b) an organisation or body which is, or is
capable of being, designhated as a neighbourhood forum (on the assumption that, for this
purpose, the specified area is designated as a neighbourhood area).

The organisation making the area application is capable of being designated as a neighbourhood forum,
in accordance with The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, as detailed below.

(3) The specified area— (@) in the case of an application by a parish council, must be one that
consists of or includes the whole or any part of the area of the council, and (b) in the case of an
application by an organisation or body, must not be one that consists of or includes the whole
or any part of the area of a parish council.

The proposed Neighbourhood Area does not consist of or include the whole or any part of a parish
council.

Requirements of Section 5(1) of The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012

(a) A map which identifies the area to which the area application relates

The enclosures to this letter include a detailed atlas identifying the area to which the area application
relates.

(b) A statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be designated as a
neighbourhood area

The enclosures to this letter include a Neighbourhood Area Study explaining why this area is considered
appropriate to be designated as a neighbourhood area.

In summary, we have ensured that the boundary:
e Follows the guidance provided by Paragraph 33 of DCLG’s Neighbourhood Planning Practice
Guidance
e Makes it easier for the three local councils to work together, rather than making it more difficult



Page 88

o Reflects the sense of belonging of people who live and work either side of it

e Allows areas with strong identities to bring forward their own Neighbourhood Plans

e Avoids splitting areas that function as one, such as high streets, open spaces, and catchment
areas for walking to local services

¢ Avoids splitting up existing planning policy designations, such as conservation areas and Town
Centres

e Takes into account existing infrastructure such as railways lines and roads where they form
natural boundaries

We have taken care to not pre-judge the boundary, but collect and interpret evidence to determine it.
This includes the collection of responses from almost 1,100 residents and workers to a Boundary
Survey, gathered by volunteers by hosting themed events, attending community events, publicising
online, running street stalls, and door knocking over the period 26 November 2016 to 28 August 2017.

The methodology and a working draft boundary were consulted upon at an Open Meeting in March
2017. The final draft boundary was circulated to a mailing list of 485 local residents, workers and
elected officials in September 2017, as well as being published on www.finsburyparkstroudgreen.com.
Comments were invited via email and an online discussion board. The boundary was also discussed
with ward councillors at two briefings sessions, on Monday 4 and Tuesday 12 September 2017. This
process resulted in further refinements to the constitution.

(c) A statement that the organisation or body making the area application is a relevant body for
the purposes of section 61G of the 1990 Act.

The organisation making the area application is a relevant body for the purposes of section 61G of the

1990 Act, and in accordance with The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, as detailed
below.

Neighbourhood Forum application

Requirements of Section 61F(5) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

A local planning authority may designate an organisation or body as a neighbourhood forum if
the authority are satisfied that it meets the following conditions—

(a) It is established for the express purpose of promoting or improving the social, economic and
environmental well-being of an area that consists of or includes the neighbourhood area
concerned (whether or not it is also established for the express purpose of promoting the
carrying on of trades, professions or other businesses in such an area)

The enclosures to this letter include a copy of the written constitution of the proposed neighbourhood
forum. Section 5 - Objectives includes the following object:

To promote or improve the social, economic and environmental well-being of the Finsbury Park
and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area, through the preparation and implementation of a
Neighbourhood Plan, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011

(b) Its membership is open to— (i) individuals who live in the neighbourhood area concerned,
(i) individuals who work there (whether for businesses carried on there or otherwise), and (iii)
individuals who are elected members of a county council, district council or London borough
council any of whose area falls within the neighbourhood area concerned

The enclosures to this letter include a copy of the written constitution of the proposed neighbourhood
forum. Section 6 — Membership of the Forum provides for four types of member:

¢ Resident Member — a person whose usual residence is within the Neighbourhood Area;


http://www.finsburyparkstroudgreen.com/

Page 89

o Worker Member — an employee / self-employed person whose usual workplace is within the
Neighbourhood Area;

e Elected Official Member — a ward councillor, Member of Parliament, or London Assembly
Member whose constituency forms part of the Neighbourhood Area, and;

o Affiliated Organisation — a formally constituted community group that has an interest in the
Neighbourhood Area.

The proposed constitution for the Neighbourhood Forum ensures a balance between productive and
proactive engagement with Affiliated Organisations who have an interest in the Neighbourhood Area,
and the need to represent the interests of those who live and work within the Neighbourhood Area.

(c) Its membership includes a minimum of 21 individuals each of whom— (i) lives in the
neighbourhood area concerned, (ii) works there (whether for a business carried on there or
otherwise), or (iii) is an elected member of a county council, district council or London borough
council any of whose area falls within the neighbourhood area concerned

The enclosures to this letter include a Register of Members (CONFIDENTIAL — NOT FOR PUBLIC
RELEASE), with the following breakdown by borough and type of member:

Resident 70 16 25 29
Worker 8 4 4
Elected Official 4 2 1 1
TOTAL 82 18 30 34

We also have several applications from Forum Members (including Affiliated Organisations), that have
yet to be processed.

(d) It has a written constitution

The enclosures to this letter include a copy of the written constitution of the proposed neighbourhood
forum.

The purpose and principles, bodies and roles, powers and decision making, structure and quorum of
the Neighbourhood Forum were consulted upon at an Open Meeting in April 2017. The final draft
constitution was circulated to a mailing list of 485 local residents, workers and elected officials in
September 2017, as well as being published on www.finsburyparkstroudgreen.com. Comments were
invited via email and an online discussion board. The constitution was also discussed with ward
councillors at two briefings sessions, on Monday 4 and Tuesday 12 September 2017. This process
resulted in further refinements to the constitution.

(e) Such other conditions as may be prescribed

In addition to the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and The Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012, we have been asked by the three local authorities to:

e Provide alist of addresses identifying the area to which the area application relates — A
schedule of addresses is duly enclosed; however, it should be noted that the Neighbourhood
Area atlas provides the definitive record of the Neighbourhood Area boundary.

e Ensure that the Forum has at least 21 members per borough (beyond the statutory
requirements for 21 members in total) - We duly enclose a Register of Members
(CONFIDENTIAL — NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE). This currently comprises 82 Forum
Members, and is shown broken down by borough. We have also enclosed 21 sighed and
validated Membership Application Forms (CONFIDENTIAL — NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE).

e Demonstrate that we have made efforts to engage with businesses and organisations
within and beyond the proposed Neighbourhood Area - Our membership comprises a
small but growing number of Worker Forum Members. Our enclosed Equalities Assessment

4


http://www.finsburyparkstroudgreen.com/

Page 90

outlines engagement with organisations within and beyond the proposed Neighbourhood Area
to date, as well as those with which we propose to engage in due course.

e Demonstrate that we have made efforts to engage with councillors —We can confirm that
we notified all relevant ward councillors by email in December 2017 / May 2017, and hosted
two briefing sessions with them, on Monday 4 and Tuesday 12 September 2017. The list of
Forum Members includes four ward councillors (see enclosed Register of Members), enabling
them to stand for election to the Steering Group at the appropriate point, if they so wish. We
will continue to proactively engage with ward councillors, and encourage them to formalise
their involvement by becoming Elected Official Forum Members.

e Demonstrate that we have made arrangements with adjacent Neighbourhood Forums
to cooperate on cross-boundary issues — Crouch End Neighbourhood Forum has applied
to become an Affiliated Organisation, and we have engaged with representatives from the
Crouch Hill Neighbourhood Area.

e Provide an Equality Assessment to accompany our application — This is duly enclosed,
including a study of Protected Characteristics within the Neighbourhood Area. We have also
included an Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity Statement.

Requirements of Section 61F(7)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

A local planning authority must, in determining under subsection (5) whether to designhate an
organisation or body as a neighbourhood forum for a neighbourhood area, have regard to the
desirability of designating an organisation or body—

(i) which has secured (or taken reasonable steps to attempt to secure) that its membership
includes at least one individual falling within each of subparagraphs (i) to (iii) of subsection

(5)(b)

Our membership currently has the following composition by type of member:

Resident 70
Worker 8
Elected Official 4
TOTAL B2

We also have a number of applications from Forum Members (including Affiliated Organisations), that
have yet to be processed.

(i) whose membership is drawn from different places in the neighbourhood area concerned and
from different sections of the community in that area

We have made considerable efforts to ensure that our membership is drawn from all places of our
Neighbourhood Area and sections of our community. The timeline below outlines some of the key
activities that we have undertaken:

21 Feb 2015: Finsbury Park Regeneration Conference 2015

16 Jun 2016: Transport and Connectivity themed event

26 Nov 2016 to 28 August 2017: Boundary Survey (online, street stalls, door knocking)
02 Dec 2016 / 24 May 2017: Notified all relevant ward councillors

16 Jan 2017: Culture and leisure themed event

8 Mar 2017: Meeting with neighbourhood planning officers from the local authorities
25 Mar 2017: Workshop at Finsbury Park Regeneration Conference 2017

17 Apr 2017: Walkaround of eastern and southern boundary

21 May 2017: Walkaround of western boundary

04 and 12 September 2017: Briefings with ward councillors

Throughout: Open Meetings



Page 91

Photographs, from left to right: Culture and Leisure Themed Event; street stall; Open Meeting.

The enclosures to this letter include a Neighbourhood Area Study, which shows the geographical
spread of the 1,097 responses to our Boundary Survey, and the location of the nine street stalls that
we have run.

Our membership currently has the following composition by borough:

TOTAL Hackne Haringe Islington
TOTAL 82 18 30 34

The enclosures to this letter include an Equality Assessment, which includes a study of Protected
Characteristics within the Neighbourhood Area.

(iii) whose purpose reflects (in general terms) the character of that area

The enclosures to this letter include a copy of the written constitution of the proposed neighbourhood
forum. The objectives set out in Section 5 — Objectives reflect (in general terms) the character of the
proposed Neighbourhood Area. These objectives were consulted upon at an Open Meeting in April
2017.

Requirements of Section 8 of The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012

(a) The name of the proposed neighbourhood forum

The name of the proposed neighbourhood forum is Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Forum.

(b) A copy of the written constitution of the proposed neighbourhood forum

The enclosures to this letter include a copy of the written constitution of the proposed neighbourhood
forum.

(c) The name of the neighbourhood area to which the application relates and a map which
identifies the area

The name of the neighbourhood area to which the application relates is Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Area. The enclosures to this letter include a map identifying the area to which the area
application relates.

(d) The contact details of at least one member of the proposed neighbourhood forum to be made
public under regulations 9 and 10

We propose Ben Myring (Haringey resident) as the main point of contact for communication with the
Neighbourhood Forum, pending the election of officers and the Steering Group. Ben can be reached



Page 92

via email at: finsburyparkstroudgreen@gmail.com. As requested, we confirm that Ben’s name and this
email address can be made public.

(e) A statement which explains how the proposed neighbourhood forum meets the conditions
contained in section 61F(5) of the 1990 Act.

The proposed neighbourhood forum meets the conditions contained in section 61F(5) of the 1990 Act,
as detailed above.

Proposed protocol for communication between Neighbourhood Forum and Neighbourhood
Planning teams

We understand that the London Borough of Islington will be the lead authority for neighbourhood
planning within the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area, following the guidance within
Paragraph 31 of DCLG’s Neighbourhood Planning Practice Guidance.

LB Islington has proposed officer Ben Johnson as the main point of contact for communication with the
Neighbourhood Planning teams. As stated earlier, we propose Ben Myring as the main point of contact
for communication with the Neighbourhood Forum, pending the election of officers and the Steering
Group.

We also propose that at least one officer and Forum Member from Hackney and Haringey are copied
into all correspondence between the Neighbourhood Forum and the Neighbourhood Planning teams.
You already have the contact details for our proposed Forum Member representatives, Susie Barson
and Geraldine Timlin (Hackney residents), and Dorothy Newton (Islington resident).

Next steps

Our proposed process towards adoption of the Neighbourhood Plan by the three local councils is set
out overleaf.

As outlined in our Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity Statement, we recognise the importance of
community engagement in terms of empowerment and capacity building; increasing understanding of
the Neighbourhood Area, leading to better outcomes from policies, masterplans and projects; avoiding
unconstructive conflict, and; ensuring legitimacy. As such, we will engage continuously with the
community throughout the process, to ensure that all voices are heard.

Whilst our applications are being considered, we intend to press forward with a Scoping Review, in
order to establish the methodologies, key data sources and assumptions, case studies, and
consultations that we intend to make use of in preparing our evidence base.


mailto:finsburyparkstroudgreen@gmail.com

Community engagement

»
g
)
E
9
=™
S
=
N
Q
>

hd
N
S
£
g
S

AN

70

7

12

3

74

Page 93

PERMISSION TO PREPARE A PLAN

Working Group formed out of Finsbury Park
Regeneration Conference 2015

Define the Neighbourhood Area
Set up a Neighbourhood Forum

Apply to the three local councils

DRAFTING THE PLAN

Draft a ‘Scoping Review' (‘next steps)
document

Gather evidence in line with 5coping Review

Prepare ‘Emerging Draft Version’ of Plan...
- Defining themes, objectives and vision

- Options appraisal

- Masterplanning key sites / areas

- Drafting planning policies

Consultation with community

Make amendments to ‘Emerging Draft
Version' of the Plan

Send ‘Final Draft Version’ of the Plan to
the three local councils

GETTING THE PLAN APPROVED

Examination by independent inspector

Make amendments to ‘Submission Version’
of the Plan

Community votes in a referendum

Plan ‘made’ (adopted) by three local
councils

Statutory
(legal)
consultation
period of six
weeks

Informal
consultation

/

Lots of
community
engagement

here!
/

Formal
consultation

/

If referendum
successful

/



Page 94

We look forward to the determination of the three councils in due course. In the meantime, we would
be happy to provide any further information or clarifications, if required.

Yours sincerely,

Ben Myring, Haringey resident
On behalf of the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Plan Working Group

By email, Cc:

James Delamere, LB Islington

Sue Cooke and Katie Glasgow, LB Hackney

Philip Crowther and Joanna Turner, LB Haringey
Susie Barson and Geraldine Timlin, Hackney residents
Dorothy Newton, Islington resident

Enclosures:

Neighbourhood Area Study — Explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be
designated as a neighbourhood area

Neighbourhood Area atlas — Detailed atlas of maps identifying the area to which the area
application relates

Neighbourhood Area addresses schedule — List of addresses identifying the area to which
the area application relates

Constitution of the proposed Neighbourhood Forum

Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity Statement

Equality Assessment, including a Protected Characteristics Study

Register of Members (CONFIDENTIAL — NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE) — Showing the
breakdown of members by borough and type of member

21 signed and validated Membership Application forms (CONFIDENTIAL — NOT FOR
PUBLIC RELEASE)



Page 95

Appendix 2



FINSBURY PARK
STROUD GREEN

Neighbourhood Area Boundary Study



Introduction

Purpose of this study

This study has been prepared to support an
application to the London Boroughs of Hackney,
Haringey and Islington to create a Neighbourhood
Area for Finsbury Park and Stroud Green under
Schedule 9 of the Localism Act 2011.

Principles followed
We have ensured that the boundary:

Follows the guidance provided by Paragraph 33
of DCLG’s Neighbourhood Planning Practice
Guidance;

Makes it easier for the three local councils to
work together, rather than making it more
difficult;

Reflects the sense of belonging of people who
live and work either side of it;

Allows areas with strong identities to bring
forward their own Neighbourhood Plans;

Avoids splitting areas that function as one,
such as high streets, open spaces, and
catchment areas for walking to local services;

Avoids splitting up existing designated planning
policy areas, such as conservation areas and
Town Centres, and;

Takes into account existing infrastructure such
as railways lines and roads where they form
natural boundaries.

We have taken care to not pre-judge the boundary,
but to collect and interpret evidence to determine
it. This includes the collection of responses to a
Boundary Survey from around 1,100 residents and
workers, gathered by volunteers by hosting themed
events, attending community events, publicising
online, running street stalls, and door knocking
over the period 26 November 2016 to 28 August
2017.




Existing administrative boundaries




Local authorities, and the Finsbury Park Accord

r /W\ A A \ \ — == asraes y NS e
1 \’ \ \ iy \\ "\ \ \ — ,"‘S‘L Ann's Ward = »....,-—t/j \7 , Y il /,.:

1 vl o
2 \ - P 7 4 ) NS i | —

H j i i ! § !
Crouch End Ward " Hanhga St A Seven Siste W:r?\ :? J/ ; 4 it =~

T [Green ~, g, L} —_— —— o
) - 4
P A
Hillfise Wakd Harringay Ward

-~
\/

g

e
o
727X

Tollington Ward

\
|

\\ S \
// \ i e
7
Wil

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Finsbury Park Accord boundary
Local Authority boundary
Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area

e Newir a 5
S;okiNinghnv;lrdi v

P

.a‘ | i S I ] '§\~_
\ oy == { ‘l
| P=r R
R
‘\ | i : i
H /"“‘i }
; (REL! (v
1 H I 8 e b
=4 1 =
il S == .




Local authorities, and the Finsbury Park Accord

Local authorities Finsbury Park Accord
The Neighbourhood Area spans three - The Finsbury Park Accord was signed by
local authority areas: the three local councils in June 2012, to

facilitate collaborative working between

London Borough of Hackney them

London Borough of Haringey .
The Finsbury Park Accord Area Map

London Borough of Islington indicates a boundary generally

The local authority boundaries broadly encompassing non-residential areas
follow strategic roads, and converge along strategic roads, plus the Andover
close to Finsbury Park Underground and Estate Regeneration, Six Acres Estate
Railway Station: Regeneration, and Alexandra National

, , House Renewal projects.
Stroud Green Road (Islington / Haringey

boundary); - Both the Neighbourhood Area and Accord
Seven Sisters Road (Haringey / Hackney boundaries largely exclude the .
boundary), and; Woodberry Down Estate Regeneration
project; Manor House Area Action Plan.
They both entirely exclude the Kings
Crescent Estate Renewal project.

Blackstock Road (lIslington / Hackney
boundary)




Electoral wards, and N4 postcode district

p—

sracen
St. Ann's Ward

s -

2o

SMM
o

95 s

Harringay Ward

Y
o

olfayay WaN
\Y

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2015, Contains National Statistics
data © Crown copyright and database right 2015. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Local Authority boundary

Electoral ward

N4 postcode district

Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Electoral wards, and N4 postcode district

Electoral wards N4 postcode district
The Neighbourhood Area spans eight electoral -  The N4 postcode district is larger than the
wards - four in Islington, two in Hackney, and Neighbourhood Area, extending further
two in Haringey. eastwards to include Manor House and

Woodberry Down, and further northwards to
include Harringay ladder and part of Hillrise
Ward.

There are several parts of the Neighbourhood
Area boundary that closely follow electoral
ward boundaries.

The Andover Estate is largely within the N7
postcode district, but is included within the
Neighbourhood Area.

However, none of these electoral wards are
entirely within the Neighbourhood Area.
Indeed, less than 1.0% of the Harringay,
Highbury East, and Woodberry Down wards are
within the Neighbourhood Area.

Area within Area within

B Ward (2011) Area (ha) FPSG (ha) FPSG (%
Hackney Brownswood 48.248 34.484 71.5%
Islington Finsbury Park 91.626 47.380 51.7%

aringey  Harringay® 156.609 0.712 0.5%
Islington Highbury East 100.809 0.884 0.9%
Islington Highbury West 108.254 19.290 17.8%
Haringey  Stroud Green 109.374 76.356 69.8%
Islington  Tollington 84.866 38.416 45.3%

Hacknei Woodberi Down 88.080 0.734 0.8%

* Excluding Finsbury Park open space




Planning framework - Planning policy documents / consents

e -,
s
St. Ann's Ward st
it 7
e

/
7 /’ jl /l

Hil Harringay Ward

‘\ Highbury\ e

o
|}
\ Arsenal
X
Z \ LN
- /

W

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Islington Council (2015) Finsbury Park Development Framework SPD
=== Haringey Council (2014) Finsbury Park Town Centre SPD

== Hackney Council (2013) Manor House Area Action Plan

e \WoO0dberry Down hybrid planning application (2013/3223)
e Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Planning framework

Key planning policy documents

The Finsbury Park Town Centre Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) was adopted by Islington on
16 July 2014, Haringey on 25 June 2014 and Hackney
on 21 July 2014. It includes non-residential uses
along:

Stroud Green Road as far north as the junction with
Hanley Road / Stapleton Road;

Blackstock Road as far south as Hurlock Street, and;

Seven Sisters Road between Yonge Park to the west,
and between Wilberforce Road and Queen’s Drive to
the east.

Islington Council’s 2015 Finsbury Park Development
Framework SPD covers a smaller area, entirely within
the Borough, and focused immediately around Finsbury
Park Underground and Railway Station.

Hackney Council’s 2013 Manor House Area Action Plan
(AAP) provides a comprehensive masterplan for
developed land around Manor House Underground
station, along Seven Sisters Road and Green Lanes. The
Neighbourhood Area excludes the Manor House AAP
area.

Key planning policies and designations

Service centres: The London Plan (GLA, 2016)
designates Finsbury Park as a District Centre. The
Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area
extends beyond the Town Centre defined in the
Finsbury Park Town Centre SPD, to include its
residential hinterland and Finsbury Park itself. There
are also several primary and secondary retail frontages
and local shopping areas within the Neighbourhood
Area.

Growth areas: There are several Employment Growth
Area designations within the Neighbourhood Area (LB
Islington). The area around Finsbury Park Underground
Railway Station is designated as an Area of Change,
and Finsbury Park is designated as a Neighbourhood
Borough Growth Area (LB Haringey). The Thameslink
2000 Railway Safeguarding Area, situated around
Finsbury Park Underground / Railway Station, is within
the Neighbourhood Area (LB Islington).

Housing: LB Hackney’s Alexandra House Estate
Renewal designation, and part of the Kings Crescent
Estate Renewal designation lie within the
Neighbourhood Area. Much of the Neighbourhood Area
is covered by a Family Housing Protection Zone (LB
Haringey).



Planning framework

Site allocations: The Neighbourhood Area includes . Urban design and view management: 'South of
several allocated sites. Finsbury Park’ is an area adjacent to the park
designated as a potential location for tall buildings (LB
Haringey). The Alexandra Palace Viewing Terrace to St
Paul's Cathedral viewing corridor runs north-south

LB Haringey SA37 - 18-20 Stroud Green Road - Mixed through the Neighbourhood area (GLA).
use (town centre, residential)

LB Haringey SA36 - Finsbury Park Bowling Alley -
Mixed use (leisure, town centre, residential)

Open and green spaces: Finsbury Park and Parkland
Part of LB Haringey SA29 - Arena Retail Park - Mixed Walk are both designated as Metropolitan Open Land
use (commercial, residential) (GLA). There are several open space designations
within the Neighbourhood Area. Parts of Stroud Green
ward are designated as having an open space
deficiency (LB Haringey).

LB Islington FP1 - Finsbury Park Core Site - Mixed use
(residential, office, commercial, leisure, light
industrial)

LB Islington FP2 - 121-131 & 133 Fonthill Road and 13 Environment: Isledon Road, Gillespie Park and Sidings,

Goodwin Street - Mixed use and Upper Holloway Railway Cutting are all Sites of
Importance for Nature Conservation (LB Islington), and

LB Islington FP3 - 185-187 Isledon Road - Hotel or Parkland Walk is a Local Nature Reserve (LB Haringey).

employment-generating uses There is a Green Link along Queen’s Drive (LB

LB Islington FP4 - 97-103 Goodwin Street - Mixed use Hackney), and Green Chains along the Parkland Walk.
There is a Blue Ribbon Network designation through

LB Islington FP6 - CYMA Service Station, 201A Seven Finsbury Park open space.

Sisters Road - Mixed use
Heritage: Stroud Green Hamlet, Tollington Settlement

LB Islington FP7 - 107-129 Seven Sisters Road - Mixed and Stapleton Hall are Archaeological Priority Areas

use including electricity infrastructure (LB Islington). Finsbury Park is listed on the National
Register of Historic Parks and Gardens (and Grade Il
Listed).




Planning framework

Key planning consents

Hackney Council has permitted a hybrid planning
application at Woodberry Down (Ref. 2013/3223). The
development scheme is comprehensive, with early
phases already delivered. The Finsbury Park and Stroud
Green Neighbourhood Area excludes the red line
boundary of this application.




Planning framework - Relevant Conservation Areas

e T, ase O,

smacare M e
St. Ann's Ward I

— nn's Ware _— !\\, / N il o
i o /¢ p h . -

H 7 9/ g LD~ ; { ﬁi e

Seven Siste W:rﬁ\g H j i i \=
— e — o

oke Newingtop =

ter Beds and ..
Springf' ard
\
i
2 o)
—‘ \
\Y o2~
'\ Stamford#{ill West Wa
Lo
o R e
Lordship-Pa k\ =7
Hackney) ?f";‘jjg""
N, \ Stok >
27 N 20 Clissold Park Negington.
’/ O Tollington (Hackney) <
N/ < Park \
\
> (Islington) S :
7\ A ackney
22\ N2
7 N T Stoke Newingtea-Ward § i i
% Tl Wy
.—"‘ B i
\ \ == !
w—-“i i . Hiy i
o ) 22 i
e \ Highbury W eXelard { \ ‘I ¢ %l
- i oo
4 = - Pl
i Goorgdeyare \ TN e ] fom §
\\ /a\
e, 7 ii ‘\ \‘ A\ i f....._, | s
4 il WaN e A==
N X / W X | —

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

[ 1 Conservation area
Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Planning framework - Relevant Conservation Areas

The Neighbourhood Area entirely
encompasses two Conservation Areas:

Tollington Park (Islington)

Stroud Green (Islington)

It also includes almost all of the Stroud
Green Conservation Area (Haringey),
except for the small area that is already
within the Crouch End neighbourhood
Area.

However, it entirely excludes the nearby
Conservation Areas of:

Stoke Newington Reservoirs, Filter Beds
and New River (Hackney)

Lordship Park (Hackney)
Clissold Park (Hackney)




Planning framework - Designated Neighbourhood Areas

r .-f"“ \ \ e v . e
AN St. Ann's Ward - / N 3 ot
\ 2z BAWE BN N\ } ==
CROUCH END %, % —
o e '
Crouch End Ward 1 T e
- /" e P 3
“ N /j =
s 5 2 B
Springfiefijd ard
yim'fse Wakd Harringay Ward |
iT ORD i
H i HILL-.. '
e

~
#
727X

Tollington Ward

SmkeiNe{Jingthl;/ard i' \ 1

A |
it of e ] S
4 - ig =7 % %‘
3 P ¢ ol
‘\ Highbury\ q i, { (i i il
i o
|} - f
rand ¢ -8 e[
it. Geoerge's Ward . ) ]
N2
A g y) i\ “ \\ I-«.. b S
N SRR N+ W S

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

— Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area
Designated Neighbourhood Area boundary




Planning framework - Designated Neighbourhood Areas

The northern boundary of the
Neighbourhood Area follows that of two
designated Neighbourhood areas:

Crouch End, to the north east

Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise, to the north

The designated Neighbourhood Areas of
Queen Elizabeth Lordship and Stamford
Hill are further eastwards.




Spatial factors




Key physical features

NB - All boundaries approximate. Cgntains OS §ata © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Heavy traffic Designated Neighbourhood Plan Area
Waterway e |rregular street pattern
Railway == Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area

Green infrastructure




Key physical features

The Neighbourhood Area is severed
north-south by the raised East Coast
Mainline (ECML), and southwest-
northeast by Seven Sisters Road / Isledon
Road.

The Parkland Walk, Stroud Green Road
and Blackstock Road also cross the
Neighbourhood Area northwest -
southeast, but a variety of access points
and lighter traffic reduce severance.

Much of the northern boundary of the
Neighbourhood Area follows the Gospel
Oak - Barking Overground line (GOBLIN),
and much of the eastern boundary
follows Green Lanes.

The southern and western boundaries
are less defined by physical features,
blending into other neighbourhoods such
as Hornsey Road, Holloway, Highbury and
Arsenal (see later).

Most of the Neighbourhood Area exhibits
a fine urban grain, with regular street
patterns. This is in contrast to the
excluded area east of Finsbury Park -
including the Woodbery Down reservoirs,
Arena Retail Park, and several housing
estates. Similarly, former Arsenal
stadium and Sobell Leisure Centre lie
just outside the Neighbourhood Area.

The largest housing estates within the
Neighbourhood Area lie along Hanley
Road, Stroud Green Road, Seven Sisters
Road and Hornsey Road.

The largest green spaces are located
towards the outer extents of the
Neighbourhood Area - Finsbury Park
itself to the north-east, Wray Crescent
to the west, Isledon Gardens to the
south-west, and the covered reservoir to
the north-west. Gillespie Park and
Clissold Park are excluded from the
Neighbourhood Area.



Public transport interchanges

B = = == —_ Vo it
St. Ann's Ward e Y4 N 1
= e == “/ LYK > S
v s e, ™
cont H S N S . =
e \ = W7 71 WA ) {il e
Crouch End Ward - artitg - . Seven Siste NAL:%\ f! 1 it \=
-t - ‘ il ey i’
t = =
) -
Sy
o
Springfi ‘ard
L
Hilffise d Harringay Ward

¥
AN
Tollington Ward

" i
' i Si:nkeiNe{angtanl;/ard \1

L LIRS e, !
Clisseld Ward i = i
D) o i i i
. { 5‘ < "-...,.-...i t
Highbury W ebelard v \ \g i ! (i i 1
u = Hig{m'fy"East Ward; ¢ - L i el I
Arsenal o - ] \\ ) y ] (AELY 1)
onen i o \-\ I
N - J W N \ - et g s T ~
N O W e i L4
N 2y ) (W e iz s 78 (L 1R PIS  == s

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains TfL information licensed under the Open Government License v2.0. Contains OS data © Crown
copyright and database right 2017

u Underground / railway station
® Bus stop
Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Public transport interchanges

Underground and railway stations Bus routes

Finsbury Park Underground and Railway - There are three main north-south bus

Station, with the Piccadilly and Victoria routes through the Neighbourhood Area -
lines and National Rail services, is firmly Stroud Green Road, Ferme Park Road,
within the Neighbourhood Area. There is and Blackstock Road.

a secure cycle parking facility adjacent

s There are three main east-west bus
to the station.

routes through the Neighbourhood Area -
Three train stations straddle the Seven Sisters Road, Brownswood Road,
boundary - Crouch Hill Overground, and Hanley Road.
Harringay Railway Station, and Manor

House Underground. The north-south bus routes along

Hornsey Road and Green Lanes straddle
Arsenal Underground and Harringay the boundary.
Green Lanes Overground stations are

just outside the boundary. Two bus standing areas - at Wells Terrace

and Station Place - dominate the public
realm around Finsbury Park Underground
and Railway Station.




,,._..,M.,”_Md\ e

© Bank/ Post Office

@ Business unit

© Café/ restaurant

® Sports / fitness / leisure ~—
\ ® Vehicular

® Factory
® Hotel / hostel

® nla
® QOpen storage

® Other
© Pub/ bar/club

@ Shop
© Warehouse
® Workshop

o Offices

7/
.
i

@

ST
/

4

ot

St. Ann's Ward

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Valuation Office Data. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Clustering of businesses




Clustering of businesses

Retail and leisure

The Neighbourhood Area aligns with town
centre planning policy designations: Finsbury
Park Town Centre is all included, and Nag's
Head Town Centre is all excluded.

The local services on Mountgrove Road,
between Herrick and Riversdale Roads are
included within the Neighbourhood Area.

Due to severance by the railway, there are two
clusters around Harringay Railway Station,
with only the western cluster - and its likely
residential catchment area - included within
the Neighbourhood Area.

The Neighbourhood Area includes a cluster of
hotels / hostels along Seven Sisters Road, and
a small cluster of business units on Oxford
Road.

However, there are other clusters of
businesses that straddle the Neighbourhood
Area boundary, such as along Seven Sisters
Road and Blackstock Road due to other factors
(see Conclusions).

Clusters around Manor House Underground
station and along Green Lanes are excluded
from the Neighbourhood Area.

Clusters along Hornsey Road, and smaller
parades of shops on Green Lanes, and Gillespie
Road are excluded, although a large part of
the residential areas that they are likely to
serve fall within the Neighbourhood Area, due
to other factors (see Conclusions).

Employment uses

There are small clusters of offices along Seven
Sisters Road and Stroud Green Road.

The boundary excludes clusters of workshops /
factories on Hermitage Road and towards the

north of Hornsey Road, and a cluster of offices
at Nag's Head.

NB - We have analysed National Non-Domestic
Rates (business rates) data from the Valuation
Office Agency to identify broad clusters of
businesses; however, we acknowledge that this
analysis is not 100% accurate or comprehensive
(for example, a significant cluster is showing
within Finsbury Park open space)




Clustering of social infrastructure

asrcaien
St. Ann's Ward st

e - o
omane / "M, \ , .
p N X =

- W 2757 - Community facility (incl. libraries) =
2 pratest © i 7 / / i y y . =
Crouch End Ward @ Educational facility Z
- ® Emergency services
NN ® Healthcare facility
1 -
@ .
w
S ® vy
®
. \....
Hilfise Walgd Harringay Ward 3
o
e
A% 4,
o
2 S
OHiII
- \ B\
X A %
\ >N Stamford#ill West Wa
\ P ®
o e
2N >
“ Tollington Ward
o Ao (. A il
() .
2 =Y o
L]
//
AR
O &
) i® LGy 1
) N\
Clissold Ward Y 1
\ G
|

Highbury\ A,

]
Arsenal

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Valuation Office Data. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017




Clustering of social infrastructure facilities

Social infrastructure facilities are spread fairly
evenly across the local area, although a large
part of the residential areas likely to be served
by facilities just outside of the western
boundary are likely to fall within the
Neighbourhood Area.

NB - We have analysed National Non-Domestic
Rates (business rates) data from the Valuation
Office Agency to identify broad clusters of social
infrastructure facilities; however, we acknowledge
that this analysis is not 100% accurate or
comprehensive (for example, we are aware of
healthcare facilities that are missing from the
map, and religious facilities are entirely absent).
Further evidence will be gathered on social
infrastructure facilities during the preparation of
the Neighbourhood Plan itself.




Boundary Survey




Boundary Survey

- Between 26 November 2016 and 28
August 2017, we asked people to answer
the following questions:

- What is your postcode?

- When describing where you live, what do
you call your local area?

- Do you feel that your local area is part of
"Finsbury Park™? (Yes or No)

- We did this via...

- An online survey - generating 490 valid
responses, and;

- Running nine street stalls, hosting and
attending community events, and
targeted door knocking - generating 607
valid responses.

FINSBURY PARK NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN
BOUNDARY SURVEY - DATA COLLECTION SHEET

Interviewer: Session location: Session date and time:

Th this sheet is only for the purpose of i

Plan for Finsbury Park. Pleass use a ssparats sheet for ach interview session. After your interview session, pleass
‘send a high quality photograph or scanned copy of this document o finsburyparkplan @gmail.com. Once you have

L you will be asked o destroy this paper copy.

Background information: A group of iocal residents
Neighbourhocd Plan for Finsbury Park.

If approved, the Neig Plan woutd form ing policy, tackiing i sch  boraiion,
‘and heig ir

3 v 3
The first step is to define the boundary of the Neighbourhood Plan area, and that's why we'e asking you the three

I Boundary survey l

A group of local residents and workers are currently gathering support to develop a Neighbourhood

The first step is 1o define the boundary of the Neighbourhood Plan ares, and that's why we're asking
you the three questions below.

*Required

What is your postcode? *

Your answer

When describing where you live, what do you call your local
area?

Your answer

Do you feel that your local area is part of "Finsbury Park"? *
O Yes
O No

NEXT

Never submit passwords through Geogle Forms,




Location of street stalls and door knocking

Hevimmne “a, ey oz

A \ St Ann's Ward = 7 W -
\ nn's Waj > N 4 =

\\ A \ siens e 74 N } =
i RN/ s i . "

1. 28 Feb 2017 - Outside Tesco, ~~

Stroud Green Road >
2. 11 Feb 2017 — Outside City =

and Islington College, ==

Blackstock Road oy

3. 18 Feb 2017 — Outside Manor ki\
House underground station,
Seven Sisters Road / Green k&
Lanes

4. 25 Feb 2017 — Outside The &=
Arsenal Tavern, Blackstock
Road / Mountgrove Road

5. 4 Mar 2017 — Corner of =
Sevens Sisters Road / 1
Durham Road e

6. 11 Mar 2017 — Outside Sobell  -...
Leisure Centre NG

7. 18 Mar 2017 — Traffic island ’\
corner of Isledon Road /

Harringay Ward

O Medina Road / Parkside et ¥
% . K Crescent
) ' AN 8. 8 Apr 2017 - Outside Tesco, ||
Hornsey Road X 5
% 9. 29 Apr 2017 — Corner of =i 1\
Tannington Terrace / Gillespie !
il.Gaorge’s Ward \ R Oad —d
LIG %N = -
NN ZTZ2 WU ATt

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

‘ Street stall

. Door knocking




Boundary Survey results - Local areas

i o\ NES =
A\ et / N -t
\z5 X’ AL R ==
- S ® ~ ——
2 - ® ‘P % ), j’ 7. \r;\,_ e ‘4! { gi . e
y ! {
Crouch EndWard "} ) [ 4 Seven Sistegfward ™ § | H -
-t e P o [2) i/ \w\“ "i i } —— S ot i e
Z /N \ Y b
R~ 2 J LB

: —— W*;dzerry Down Ward

A o

Stoke Nepingtea-Ward § £
T A i ! “;"{
’.—*\ {1 e Z Sn,
Clissold Ward | 1 | i
\ Lo 1L t
\ { i -~ g {
(LR o i
(YA % \\ ‘i A =1\
® K S ‘ i 22
Hightgy East Ward; \ 3 i §
° L ) o L
®-- oo I/n VNS, E f
u-ﬂ.,g E ® 7 v, 1y ; | | i = ~—
lkv(ayw d ! H /..; ; / 5 i i S { | A— —

NB - Responses grouped; all boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017




Boundary Survey results - Local areas (with grouped local area labels)

&y

b L]
@ors Ward

@ St 's Wart

o_8a ¢

Green Lanes /
Harringay

Manor House /
Woodberry Down

Stoke Nepingtea-Ward § £ ‘!g
it {1l -7\
[y sl == I )
=11l
W 127 ‘
Holloway / i t
Islington © gty East Ward, \ » - gg §
: L I 7 1 ot
3 Highbury [P I/a g, f
o N oA d ) . 7 J[d 0 i sl == R
N A W oi il I 2 VLRI ‘

NB - Responses grouped; all boundaries approximate. © Crown Copyright and database right 2017.

Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area boundary




Boundary Survey results - ‘Finsbury Park’

\‘\_k“\ o

ot 4 3 ot

— e RN =
« ™/ TS (i -
[ > Seven Sistel W:B\ ; I ff (el L=

lackney W¢

‘ oke i ard § 3’
] S'tk;Ne{mgth;lrdE .ﬁ
o

L it i S
Clissold Ward 1 | 2 1 {
Lorart — t
t 127 pet=il B}
t o i
J % Y“\ ‘\ A : i
AL A i - i
ngmﬂry'EastWardi 3\ A i i
[ ] i N N N y 1 inEL .{
e SvliEdae S flE
° LIS S / iy e ~3
Vo=t by 7 78 || y|R ] = S— | N

b lh/{ayw d
NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017. Sample: 1,097 responses

® VYes
® n/a
® No




Do you feel that your local area is part of “Finsbury Park”?

Finsbury Park (397

Finsbury Park & *** (92

Manor House / Woodberry Down (42
Stroud Green (100

Crouch Hill/ Hornsey Rise (9
Arsenal (24

Other (78

13
64

(
(
Hornsey Road (
Holloway (incl. Upper / Lower) (
Islington (16
Clissold Park / Hackney / Stoke Newington (53
Green Lanes / Harringay (110
Highbury (81

Crouch End (18

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

BYes mn/a mNo

Sample: 1,097 responses




Boundary Survey results - ‘Finsbury Park’ (with grouped local area labels)

r W S i
et 4 \3 e

Crouch End : o N 24 i o
- : » 27 74 .‘!" £, S o ==
o , Green Lanes / PSS (8 {iEd §
Crouch Hill / % ‘ Harringay :. %SevenSister\M\La\r;ﬁ“‘%; if 5 :j lllllll ‘,,w"w

Hornsey Rise el N

Manor House /
Woodberry Down

e
Finsbury Park /
Stroud Green o

L

Clissold Park /
Hackney / Stoke
Newington
Hornsey o X\ S -
Road |

H
t S:cwke“Negvingkan-\l.}/ardE %
¥ ; i H

U

&

3 i
comess (1 g S,

Clissold Ward

Holloway /

Islington Zea
° H
it. Goorae’s Ward N/ {\w‘(} v Naa \TE
| 7N ° #, Arsenal .g‘ 0o R [ @ 7 ) =
N A /A v 2 1 1Y 22 . AINE =

NB - Reponses grouped; all boundaries approximate. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

B >40% ‘Yes’ responses

. Mixed responses

B -40% N responses




Key findings - Resident Survey

Finsbury Park

Residents who describe their local area as ‘Finsbury
Park’ are most prevalent around Finsbury Park
Underground and Railway Station, and south and west
of the Park itself.

Stroud Green

North-west of the park, the ‘Finsbury Park’ local area
slowly merges into that of ‘Stroud Green’ (the
historical name for the wider area before the railway
arrived) - there is no clear line where Finsbury Park
ends and Stroud Green begins.

The majority of residents felt that their local area was
part of Finsbury Park, although the proportion
decreased northwards and westwards.

Other local areas

Harringay / Green Lanes local area - Residents
perceive Harringay / Green Lanes as distinct local
areas, and the majority did not feel that these were
part of Finsbury Park.

Hermitage Road and its environs - Many residents in
this area described their local area as Harringay /
Green Lanes / Manor House, although we note that the
majority felt that these were part of Finsbury Park.

Woodberry Down planning application, and Manor
House Area Action Plan - The majority of residents in
these areas describe their local area as Manor House /
Woodberry Down, although we note that the majority
of residents felt that their local area was part of
Finsbury Park.

Portland Rise estate, Myddleton Square, and Kings
Crescent estate - Many residents in these areas
describe their local area as Manor House / Woodberry
Down / Clissold Park / Hackney / Stoke Newington,
although we note that many residents felt that their
local area was part of Finsbury Park.

Mountgrove Road / Blackstock Road - The majority of
residents south of Mountgrove Road describe their
local area as Highbury, with a minority feeling that
their local area was part of Finsbury Park.

Arsenal / Highbury local areas - In the area bounded
by Monsell Road to the north and Gillespie Road to the
south, there were particular terraces where the
majority of residents describe their local area as
Highbury, with less than half of respondents feeling
that their local area was part of Finsbury Park.

Holloway / Nag’s Head Town Centre - West of
Berriman Road and Parkside Crescent, residents
described their local area as Holloway / Islington, with
around half feeling that their local area was part of
Finsbury Park, and around half feeling the opposite.




Other feedback received from the local community

Friends of Finsbury Park Management Committee, in
a blog post dated 16 August 2017: “The committee
felt strongly that the whole of the Park should be
included within the Neighbourhood Area. The Park is
managed as a whole, and planning policies should be
applied consistently across the entire area. Being
designated in a Neighbourhood Plan could also offer
an extra layer of protection to the Park - above and
beyond the planning designation of Metropolitan Open
Land that the Park benefits from. Two of our
Management Committee members are actively
involved in the preparation of the Plan.”

Ladder Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) initially
raised concerns about including Finsbury Park open
space and slivers of Harringay Ward in the
Neighbourhood Area, in an email dated 24 May 2017.
However, the final draft Neighbourhood Area study was
discussed at an LCSP meeting on 14 September
2017,and the organisation decided not to take an
official line on the issue.




Conclusions




Summary of key considerations

Each of the considerations listed below is explored in more detail in the subsequent pages.

EPEN WA ——— NS | =
B A\ \\ \ \ St. Ann's Ward ot 4 ) i T

; ~ Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Area

Key considerations:
v

%
=
Crouch End Neighbourhood Area e
Harringay / Green Lanes local areas
s
\
i

Crouch End Ward \
o
>

» o \\ \\ \ = AR\

o

1
e \\
SWW -
5 e

\\
i

s

N
\\
Hermitage Road and its environs

Finsbury Park open space

Woodberry Down planning

application, and Manor House Area
Action Plan

Portland Rise estate, Myddleton

Square, and Kings Crescent estate
Mountgrove Road / Blackstock Road
Arsenal / Highbury local areas =
Holloway / Nag's Head Town Centre ...
0. Hornsey Road local services wla
1. Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise =
Neighbourhood Area
12.  Stroud Green

o
apwnE

e

o

-
#
/, \\

Tollington Ward

RB©oN

‘ -
\ Highbury\ exVard

7
Ns.nal o:_‘ H‘!?’:‘;“"rx'/"Eastwami \
er et i
2 i | [
VAN

A\ ——
P/ Vo
/ W s il Il

\S

2

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Valuation Office Data. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017




Conclusions

Key considerations
1. Crouch End Neighbourhood Area

Section 61G(7) of the Localism Act 2011 states: “The areas
designated as neighbourhood areas must not overlap with each
other.” The proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore abuts but does
not overlap with the designated Crouch End Neighbourhood Area.
We have been in touch with the Crouch End Neighbourhood Forum,
to discuss proactive and positive engagement on cross-boundary
issues. The Neighbourhood Area also follows the physical boundary
of the north-south railway line here.

2. Harringay / Green Lanes local area

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that residents perceive
Harringay / Green Lanes as distinct local areas, and the majority
did not feel that these were part of Finsbury Park. The proposed
Neighbourhood Area therefore excludes all of the area known as the
‘Harringay Ladder’ and the cluster of local services along Green
Lanes.

3. Hermitage Road and its environs

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that many residents in
this area described their local area as Harringay / Green Lanes /
Manor House, although we note that the majority felt that these
were part of Finsbury Park. This area is physically severed from the
Harringay / Green Lanes local area and Finsbury Park open space by
the A105 Green Lanes. On balance, the proposed Neighbourhood
Area therefore excludes all of Hermitage Road and its environs
(between the Gospel Oak - Barking railway line to the north, and
the New River to the south).

4. Finsbury Park open space

The proposed Neighbourhood Area includes all of Finsbury Park - an
area of open space, sports and leisure facilities. It is listed as a
Grade Il asset, and designated as Metropolitan Open Land. We
recognise that the Park is of regional significance, as well as being
of great importance to several local areas.

The inclusion of part or whole of the Park within the Neighbourhood
Area was debated at several Open Meetings, and with the Friends of
Finsbury Park Management Committee on 6 March 2017 (of which
two of the Management Committee members have been part of an
informal working group for the Neighbourhood Forum and
Neighbourhood Area applications).

Overall, members of the community felt that:

The Park is managed as a whole, and planning policies should
be applied consistently across the entire area

Being designated as a Local Green Space in a Neighbourhood
Plan could also offer an additional means of protecting the
Park - above and beyond the planning designation of
Metropolitan Open Land that the Park benefits from

In the absence of other Neighbourhood Forums surrounding
the Park, the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Forum would be the only option for inclusion in a
Neighbourhood Plan at this time. However, we would
continue to proactively and positively engage with the
community outside the Neighbourhood Area on cross-boundary
issues - as well as any other Neighbourhood Forums
surrounding the park as and when they come forward




Conclusions (continued)

Given that the neighbourhood and open space are both called
Finsbury Park, it would be incongruous for the Neighbourhood
Area to include one but not the other

We note that Haringey Council would be able to reallocate part or
all of Finsbury Park to another Neighbourhood Area and Forum as a
result of a future application.

The proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore includes all of Finsbury
Park.

5. Woodberry Down planning application, and Manor House Area
Action Plan

Hackney Council has permitted a hybrid planning application at
Woodberry Down (Ref. 2013/3223). The development scheme is
comprehensive, with early phases already delivered. The proposed
Neighbourhood Area therefore excludes the red line boundary of
this application

Hackney Council’s 2013 Manor House Area Action Plan (AAP)
provides a comprehensive masterplan for developed land around
Manor House Underground station, along Seven Sisters Road and
Green Lanes. The proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore excludes
the Manor House AAP area.

These proposals also reflect the results of the Boundary Survey,
which indicated that the majority of residents in these areas
describe their local area as Manor House / Woodberry Down,
although we note that the majority of residents felt that their local
area was part of Finsbury Park.

We have been in touch with the Manor House Development Trust, to
discuss proactive and positive engagement on cross-boundary issues.

6. Portland Rise estate, Myddleton Square, and Kings Crescent
estate

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that many residents in
these areas describe their local area as Manor House / Woodberry
Down / Clissold Park / Hackney / Stoke Newington, although we
note that many residents felt that their local area was part of
Finsbury Park. On balance, the proposed Neighbourhood Area
excludes the Portland Rise estate, Myddleton Square, and Kings
Crescent estate.

7. Mountgrove Road / Blackstock Road

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that the majority of
residents south of Mountgrove Road describe their local area as
Highbury, with a minority feeling that their local area was part of
Finsbury Park.

However, there are local services along Mountgrove Road between
Herrick and Riversdale Roads and along Blackstock Road that are
likely to have catchment areas largely serving residential areas
within the Neighbourhood Area.

The proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore includes the local
services between Herrick and Riversdale Roads and properties
fronting Blackstock Road as far as they are included within the
Finsbury Park Town Centre SPD.




Conclusions (continued)

8. Arsenal / Highbury local areas

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that in the area
bounded by Monsell Road to the north and Gillespie Road to the
south, there were particular terraces where the majority of
residents describe their local area as Highbury, with less than half
of respondents feeling that their local area was part of Finsbury
Park. However, the proposed Neighbourhood Area boundary in this
area includes all of the terraces north of Gillespie Road that were
built around the same time (i.e. excluding Tannington Terrace and
western side of St Thomas’s Road).

The cluster of local services along Gillespie Road between Plimsoll
and Avenell Roads is excluded, as these are likely to have a
catchment area largely serving residential areas outside of the
Neighbourhood Area.

We have been in touch with the Friends of Gillespie Park and the
Highbury Community Association, to discuss proactive and positive
engagement on cross-boundary issues.

9. Holloway / Nag’s Head Town Centre

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that west of Berriman
Road and Parkside Crescent, residents described their local area as
Holloway / Islington, with around half feeling that their local area
was part of Finsbury Park, and around half feeling the opposite. The
proposed Neighbourhood Area boundary in this area therefore
follows a route based on the results of the Boundary Survey, with
reference to changes in street pattern and character of the
streetscape.

The cluster of local services around Nag’s Head is designated in
planning policy as a Town Centre. The proposed Neighbourhood
Area therefore excludes this area.

10. Hornsey Road local services

The results of the Boundary Survey indicated that along and west of
Hornsey Road, residents described their local area as Hornsey Road
/ Holloway, although the majority felt that their local area was part
of Finsbury Park. A significant part of Hornsey Road itself has non-
residential uses at ground floor level, although these frontages have
been broken by changes of use to residential, and there is an
inconsistent streetscape along the road.

The inclusion of part or all of Hornsey Road within the
Neighbourhood Area was debated at several Open Meetings.
Overall, it was felt that:

Including all of Hornsey Road within the Neighbourhood Area
was not supported by the results of the Boundary Survey. Due
to bus routes, many of the local services along the road are
likely to have catchment areas largely serving residential
areas to the north and south of the Neighbourhood Area

Splitting the properties on the western and eastern sides of
the road would reduce the chances of a comprehensive and
effective strategy for regeneration of the local area being
formed and implemented

Excluding all of Hornsey Road would allow for its potential
inclusion in another Neighbourhood Area / Forum at in future
- possibly linked to Holloway

The proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore excludes all properties
fronting Hornsey Road. The boundary also follows a route further

east in some places, based on the results of the Boundary Survey,
with reference to changes in street pattern and streetscape.




Conclusions (continued)

We have been in discussion with the Hornsey Road Traders
Association about proactive and positive engagement on cross-
boundary issues.

11. Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise Neighbourhood Area

Section 61G(7) of the Localism Act 2011 states: “The areas
designated as neighbourhood areas must not overlap with each
other.” The proposed Neighbourhood Area therefore abuts but does
not overlap with the designated Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise
Neighbourhood Area.

There is currently no approved Neighbourhood Forum for this
Neighbourhood Area; however, we would engage proactively and
positively on cross-boundary issues with any Neighbourhood Forum
that may form in future.

12. Stroud Green

North-west of the park, the ‘Finsbury Park’ local area slowly merges
into that of ‘Stroud Green’ (the historical name for the wider area
before the railway arrived) - there is no clear line where Finsbury
Park ends and Stroud Green begins. The majority of residents felt
that their local area was part of Finsbury Park, although the
proportion decreased northwards and westwards.

These results are not surprising, as unlike other ‘sub-local areas’
within Finsbury Park (such as Brownswood), Stroud Green clearly
has a strong local identity, with its own high street, school, library
and flourishing online community all bearing the Stroud Green
name.

Any imposed boundary between the two would not reflect the
perceptions of residents, and would divide the Stroud Green Road
and the Stroud Green Conservation Area in two, adding to the

fractured planning policy in the area rather than making it more
comprehensive.

The proposed name for the Neighbourhood Area, the “Finsbury Park
and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area”, recognises the two distinct
but inseparable neighbourhoods.

Size of the Neighbourhood Area

With such excellent public transport links and local services,
the Neighbourhood Area naturally has a large catchment area
of people who associate with it. The Neighbourhood Area
covers around 218 hectares (540 acres) excluding Finsbury
Park open space, and 270 hectares including it (670 acres).

The Neighbourhood Area has a household density of around 48
to 60 households per hectare (19 to 25 per acre). Using
dwelling density as a rough proxy for household density, this is
below the Outer London average of 66 dwellings per hectare?;
however, high enough that even a small geographic area will
have a large population. We estimate the population of the
Neighbourhood Area to be around 30,000 people,
encompassing around 13,000 households.

In closing...

Based upon the evidence presented in this study, we consider that
the proposed boundary for the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Area complies with statutory requirements and
Planning Practice Guidance.

1 City of Westminster (2008) Controlling Housing Density Study




Annex A - Detailed Neighbourhood
Area atlas




Page 137

/ S
o
7 1%
5
\ o
Ida w
0 3
'
(V) \ 3
(SR \n B
. & OQ
; OA@A./ / 55




Page 138

5 2 - - EEA
A1 o= K
B 8
= = =
5%
n 23 s g
5 @
. MW s b T < 3 = m
o L.
: = 2 A
3

% ;-]
# - 4
= W T
o ES
.W_ =
&

10 {7 954

Nard

Strodd Green V

Chatila Courl

Ato42
910 108

012
ETwTs

*

1 Q
80

: //o/o



129 Shakespeare Temacs at el

Kestrel House

Sohool

127
24 ]
: 5
1is12 (\\)e @ 1 Peterin Creira O o ¥
‘ RC infart School 4 105
[ 12 q e 2 - - 12
Court g m O
3
0‘.\ K L 1810 30
2
100 g
o 3
Cottage ( e 12 3
Studia LU
s 1 Gikdas” w17
ns Cathelic
5 Jubor Schacd < 1
Crouch -
i
Dy Nursery o
4 34 L
P 48

El Sub Sta

Astra House
112
]
o (b Stroud Greem Ward 51
Highiew

1012 o L

% v
el 3 Vi Caur 10
10a
.
Hillrise Ward Q\G
]

Cape Play
& Youm 85
Cortre

ington Ward

6ST abed



Coert

Page 140

van Road

0s°'




Page 141

58 gl
S
Ry
% |
o i
‘@0
80,
2s 26
0 &
A - o™
BN\ il






Cokeman Mansiars
ST 1020

A3 In 57

‘Wartiersvile Marsions 6
1o 20 OE F

" \\6‘6\\\
\!

Leyden
2 dagsiars
fio 34 X
Bames
Houss
6 &
13 0

1w

Htty

Miriam
Pyice
L

El SubrSta

S Mary's
Church

p17
Lachbie

18

16 to 19

130 15
Brambletoan

108

Surgery

1410 22 ™
28
il 33(5 fo 42 e
Sciance
Churchy
4
1ie3
109
EENE 3
P
1wz
Hartriiene

Stroad 3%

1310 448
11740130
1
@b b3
i > e 1E
&1 1o 98
12
El
K‘: el
A‘ B 154 10 160
\ \ 1o
\\ &7 o 11
©)
410 80 B8
1732
Tm
85 o 63 L.
T5 o 79 o4t 50
Haty Park
Mathodiss
Church
i cereshmiEEol
B4 10 68
o Al 45
]
Lyrghahl® 3
381to 40
Court
3o 37
e Flouses
46 % 5
tal
240 268
Shehor
\* 200
Tolingtan Ward O
Famiion Court -
Sihushier
104
1o 12
Canyle a5 L
Vila
‘ ) 43
Sub SR Crateh Hit

k-l

1

E:‘;

2
&

cyT abed



Page 144

1]




Page 145

arringay Ward

m
=)
S,
<
3.
o
-
Py
O
D
Q

:
g = o
%
m
. 9
%
%, .
5% :
©) ‘
3
2
7 2
&
®’
& i
2






74

Rowley Gardens L0
1082 Sheltars b
Waplewood i
2510 408 Apartments
z,;: 13023
2
Growolny Howsg
52
110 30
284 1o B
o 111 e q
Apartents
@ (0 Taduth House
A A O 15038

i el Woodberry Down Ward

Krerestorough Houe

Sy
Leighfiekd Hodwse 11036 Sia

WAL
W oodbefﬁmgf

St Clave's Church

Harringay Ward
ngay Bl Chirch Labonas

Parish Hal i School

11043

4 1018

D
s
. o 9\/
o

211033
Reservair
oty Apatmants
Manar
Hause 11028
Lodge Barkside
Apartments
14039
Bluabel
Aparimees
1@
68

1 io 40
424 . A oz Muberry

/T abed



50 " Coachygr baws
el ElSu Sta
Trindar
u
]
17
15
13 -
3
\ &
2
1 12
55
5
56
14
o EI5u Sta
5
a
o O
- @
8 o
1w
14
1
2
L »
b Flals 1% 4
108 g
o
50
1t 0
17
‘81 15
Laaf Hause e
\ G W2
2 =
2
2
1
.3
@) “
3

Hirise Warg
' Y . Girarwila Maws.

3

13
£ H
Hark
17 1o 140 Hall
2w e Crouch Hall Court
The
Micarage
m
St SR
18
20
Groweh, i 3
ks
43 1o 66 Court )
w
1
e
13
12 230
W 126
128
9 75 122
&
is 2
L 3 1
%
* 1010
10
Cotman House
5] 42
1
ta
24
o 3
138 b 548
Stiibs Housa
122
£ o
B&
L 134
a0 wm
e groauum. 108
51 /
47 Sneter . o185

it

Sa
Reynolds House L]

81T abed



1014

Shalay Cout

as

151030

Shebay Court

105

2
£ K

114

1274
125
123 7S 170
1165
E1Sub St Hardey
Ciourt
s
Sheftar
430 54
Shellery. éuut
BG
1%t 42
3
73
o
76
v
65
187 &7
2
42
30a
£

" 1

Lawson Court

El Sub Sta

Wikshirg Court

@ Jonas G

4 7 S
! 2

0

10 E| ub Sta

m 060 < _ salls®

q‘ > % 5
12 =

El

Sub Sta
= e dalan

Canire -
2
"
2

2 od
$ 1 al
‘ y B
22 142

1B

7
<
s

11016 s\@
Stroud \'mmr;'l 11016
M Coud

103

Faar
of 126

a7

105
c]

Surgary

Brackeeindy !0 18

0
2
Michois Close
19016
El Suty St

O
S

Srgory

6
Charer Court

Asguith

61T abed



Rasenank

Works

E2d

Page 150

©
=

=

%
=]
w
T

PEOY Y20}SPOOAA

wm. )
Ennis Road

£f

i

3
3k
53

W




Page 151

E
T
=
=
@
=3
E
T
X



Bawmoral Ho!ﬁ}s

Hiiyrazd Mo, 20

ZST abed

Fleming Hause




458
z 1 #
8
40 Shester StJotnol God
Comen
480
24 ¢ 5
" 22Y \ E1Sub Sta 8 L
1 B @ @
1 43510 441 yrz FH &e O
= %\ 3 Q
7
Fi) incer :"""%*’ i S ”
a Q ]
14
$in 14 i ol Elaing Howss, @\
&0 Mircent Court
180
Carngs %
4
16ta O 6’ 486
168c 112
167
27
> 8
18t (\ o)
e o b
—— d‘
Giurch ®
’ﬁu
« O
! ; o
Works 2
P Eddisan Cout
T a7
. sz Berava Works n
Wiohs
265
1T
248 ate 18
2
21° "
= ElSut S
251
(% ki
118 0 '
@ i P S El5ub Sta 5
Repilea House
gne @ 23510243 . 1
1
a1 *®
1w 8389
s
«
2 i
8 & o
ElSub Sta ‘.L w40
1910 58 27 N 3
26 o
¥
21
13
EI Sub Sia e }
25 #
!1% 408
15 12
8‘5 1o 12
T 58
3 o / ElSub Sta
b % . =i 131628 :
N :@
6 - Chratie Court X Sodgy Housa
a4
Tio 16 Q o ( \)
15
e Hause @ W /\ )
2368 04 R O 2 o
8 Tekephone ﬁ
atoc o) Eachange
45
&

® -

€GT abed



Page 154




Stroud Green Ward

Harringay Ward

ighbury WeslVard oy

GGT abed



Harringay Ward

PO

1o 21
Sunflower
Caur
3410322
160
18 1
Housa
Church
Holel

315

1017

1024

Twd
W 174
w
ESS
1o
Marigakd
Court
E ]
v (i%"a Hevter .
o Hoame
' G\
1@
Court LS
& Tod
3 1of
T8
2
& Tiod .
136
51 Jahn the
s Brownswood Ward )
Ghurch

O"@

@0,

157 1o 458

Statls Place

B

140
Tiod
138

§
9,
1’@

147

a4 El S Stn

Parkwoad
Primary Schacl

137

2
Fil
13
24
12
4
94
18
T
"
; £l 5ub Sta
B0 121
St dohs
Court
211065

9GT abed



/ST abed



o

o7 N, 60 Nightingale Caurt

181
03 it

187 Ly

1
Tio22 185

T2, ans Aol

o - Caun
107 : 179 / 30
Ei Sub Sta Fiats 1| 1o 42
wr

e 172 oﬁ Church

By o Schookaepars 355 . Q
% RN g N
186
184
1
162 2
i
St Mark's
3 CoE -a
0 Frimary Schaot
1
16
51
1 . 18
% 15 96 Q/ 0 ; 101025 S
160
.
16d ta
St Pauls Cout 4 s
() -
Y s e : ¢
8 : 30
7 : 328
i e T
3810326
Yeow He
7 109
n
. 13 18 136 O
8 1
3 134 o
4 - Landsper
' 18
#
N 2 ar 10 d‘

o5
b T El Sub Sta
- 2 & 100 i i 120 1710 24 ﬁ
a2 wli
o O(\ 78 167 O
" 101 23 81018
el 108 0 ] P 0 128 o
95 1090
\\\ .
Shew @

Anpriel B Simmons
House ol

Lo ( o) ] «O
ei T . Ba
L Y T e
» 5T
6 > 3 & 18 asf

»
. PH 7 .
7 el : Surgery 3
* 3 - gery 25
T2
\ * 1o 25n 36 o
&4 B4 + 248
v
td
P 108 =
: 70 P W
1 (y
40 atme
- Q@
13
5 ar 1§ +
E &
o ursery
20
4 /5) s
O 1310 18 s 13
an
(04 ‘

8GT abed



19
bl 6 L 2 5
ollington YWe @ ) 18 3
13 4
16
o 5 a8
1 45
a 3
b ar
12
4 10 7 el
3 4 52
& 50
> N
0
Q & - b
’\K s
13
4
2
20 19
7
32
20
18 3
15
13 4
Arcaver House 16
11030 u
QI
1,
0 % ¥ %
a8 a2
Barmouh House
1w ‘
Z) .
Chard Haysg 35 0
12
w
Mathiey Hause 2 %
1030 8
16
105 PR
RE]
Raitor Houss 513
Ao 43
11025 ‘mm
HinaT £ 3 L
2 2
: a2 2
Fal
M 1
2
1418
351038 3 5
A
4 13 ;.
wwaz am 53 5
1 ]
i &
25 an o 55 &2
& 57 b4
= o 55
b 56 25
£
e 8
3
a4
5 50
= M 51
65 B 2
&7 o i -13"
a0 i 45
422 a8
2
= 221 0
20
1.3
8
37 713
' *
5
4
a4z w = 181
46 (3
Poicn Station 153
7
n 12“1
8
284 52 0
22 =
g o i »
it A o
218 B Ceme
L 10 35
5
8
T
. 110 58
. E .
121
2310217

Eanka Hrara .

14 8 W F
a 18 51 Anna's .
52 17 4 34039
54
18 4
a 3
2 A at 401643 ”
My 2
1
E15ub Sta
3
5 1"
50
ﬂﬁge 1% El Sub Sta
10 L]
1
2 595"'95 % T @
2 o 16
3 ¥ Er1 6
B 53 - 3
2 25 s s 1o m
18 4 Broakliek
23
2 3
4
-3 2 Tikis o
) Sanates 5
11636
o Holyfiekd
Mirsing Home.
ESS
110 36
Chmmuriay Pinefisas
Conira
11081
1o g 2
Noll Housa Dacura Mowse 22
118 51 o
€ &
2 7 1o 20
17 B2 IR Hormyfisk
Didbin House 1o 54 S "
" >
1916 Y « 1038
12, 3 2 23102
2
f a7
40 1o 43
Nursery 43
Finsbury Park Ward 0 6
28 25 Monisiioid
n 8 &3
w5, 20
(! 56
7, R 1 ] o,
=5 ss
24 = il 55
5
o 2 " & s e LT
2 i?e 13 53 ‘ g g
20 w_1a 44 3 6 SN
sns‘ : " , a8 o7 “ - B
1 P 47 e an
Pl 43 G £
' ‘.‘,5352 i sg? il Gt io 62
515'6 an e s
02 o 77 G306E
" -
a8 3 45 3
4oy Arimal Hosptal 25 1
aoame
2
] Lz ;5 2t
1md
g 143
ar
el £
kY
9 14018 r
Coundl Offices
M5
110161
FISub 5t
140153

Meding Court

6GT abed



Page 160

. PeoY yeiy S
E LE L) L «%z
S ,
S _
: V9D ;

| oy /5

2 a &% *

W st e]

1 LT
peoy s;se




]

=
Library
City e |skrgton College
Hal
L]
a4
18
2
10 26
18
1
@ .
3
n F 3
2
13
®
o)
15
z
a5
a
24
. 453
13
18
~1
/ 37
L NS 4
208 //
i)
s O
kL] 38
= :

.\Q,

7
Armbilar
Frimary School

t Ward

s

Laborstary
9
13
& 1
g
5
241t 27
Talb
%
&
L TECN
£
30
T
2
"
34834
L
B&a

L}

O £

10

83

o,

Halet /
&5
51 Joh's Court

M io 013 G

G/)o "

T

_QO"

az

13

103

TOT abed



e

B
B
&2
a0
78
L)
85
B
3
Sheiter
4 110 15
Lichen
1o o Caun
Lenrs
Libeary
129
133

EiSub Sta

’&6 )
o5 o 108l Lemsfand
é % o 55 a5

Therfiakd Court

%® Kedshal Court g oo ot
%) -
Shebar Hiwdan Court
a
1o
Haningan Court Brogmswood Ward
ETRIE -
‘Aston Gount
Barkaty Cot
Q .

\Y
7L,  —
@ 1o

E1Sub St

Wiestan
Caun
45

118

Datcmwarth Court

2 ia8s

64 n 182

141018

T 12

Clissold Ward

The Lodge

S

29T abed



a
1104

Harnsey Rand Maortam
Primary School

& Chidrens Cantre
A
o ESS Samst Rhodes e
Scheal

% 5 -

260 Il‘u“

ovey Irmtilite
Mansiongs

s %

House: 10 }
a af

Greok Orthodox, Ghurch

St Anthony the Graat
& StJohn the Baptis|

Thaare Warks.

i 120
Finsbury Park Ward

Golonal Cout

A
2
% 131018
®

Mandianne

2
e
%

Fid

Michael Sobed
‘Sports Cemm

1
MEDINA GROVE

51

108
m

ard

€97 abed



Mati
1

W3 N7

BR25

L N
o<

Finsbury Park Ward

WHio 20

Road

7

Steve Biko

=
-3

Bios

B0 75

51 fo 60

treet

6.0 457

Quill S

21030

Tieis

Ar

Hig[gg(dry West Ward

m

106 b,

"o

B

16 to

111
i)

14042
147

14k s
155

181

126

Arsanal

E;‘

| |

121
Btali 138 3 12T
e I Ima

1"s

1z

m

18

971 abed



sa y 0 = I‘“
%) u - A e
o\ A\ | 02" -
2 @‘I z o’ ; \éﬁo(\ 7
A\ \ A3 |
1ot o, > = a7 ; 266 ; i
” ' ; | » 0‘3 P
o : | s

A\
2\
o

Oy Housa 3

1o 67 ®
108

0y

o)
o Y
1 House: o -
o g9 Surgery CD 5
2
)
Ll /
102 / “
]
: o
" O
af =
1018 o
20t0 213
Nardetand s
5 2]
2 14

141

Gibaspie
Primary School

Hurkock House

Blackstock

\’\ 0(\00\<

B2 100

4 o 80 4510

101 1o 135

ciwood S“;eet =

xl

El Bub St

an

B1

146

Wiauth
Hastal

Brownswood Ward

17
Arenel Tevem
{PH)

L -]
186 e
1565 e
158 ]
169
Sheller
5
188

110 15

FH

204

218

s

1]
PH &2

11 Poice
Station

01S%o€E|d

_)io

atgtighbury

A
(o)
D
Q

Fi

ur
219

2%
23

3
235 1
S
1
4

PH |

GOT abed



46

%

Z
Caming
ey
22
16
2
12
35
)
2
19
189
187
183
m

86

=J'

o11I9H

i

péog A

HM4TI0251
270271

Sl 207

| &
KQ}(\

) 0006
O

A Q‘O
209
0\9 The Congragatiorsl Church

Wi g\-\b\)

141 o 181

828120

oo 15

3330337
3550359

Birchmom

Brownswood

20 10 240

Miwan

aaaaa

Highbury New Park

278 o M6

k55

B4 o 122

99T abed



Appendix 3

/9T obed



FINSBURY PARK
STROUD GREEN

Protected Characteristics Study



Introduction

Background

A group of local residents and workers are
submitting Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood
Forum applications to Hackney, Haringey and
Islington Councils to enable them to prepare a
Neighbourhood Plan for Finsbury Park and Stroud
Green, under the Localism Act 2011.

Policy context

The Equality Act 2010 places a “General Duty” on
all public bodies to have “due regard” to the need
to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and
victimisation and any other conduct prohibited
under the Act

Advance equality of opportunity for those with
‘protected characteristics’ and those without
them

Foster good relations between those with
‘protected characteristics’ and those without
them

The Equality Act defines the nine protected
characteristics as: age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex, and sexual orientation.

Under Section 61F(7)(a) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990, in determining an application
for a neighbourhood forum, the Councils must have
regard to the desirability of designating that
organisation or body:

whose membership is drawn from different
places in the neighbourhood area concerned;

whose membership is drawn from different
sections of the community, and;

which has taken reasonable steps to ensure its
membership is inclusive.



Introduction

Purpose of this document The study makes use of the best data available

f f isting datasets:
Neighbourhood Planning officers from Hackney, rom four existing datasets

Haringey and Islington Councils have directed that -  ONS (2017) Census, 2011

an Equalities Assessment should be submitted with , ,

the Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum ON,S d(2016? BlLtthEy %(;tShers usual area of
applications, using a template prepared by residence in the UK,

Hackney Council. - ONS (2017) Annual Population Survey, 2013,

The purpose of this Protected Characteristics Study 2014 and 2015
is to understand the baseline for the Finsbury Park . Gender Identity Research and Education

and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area (FPSG), as a Society (2009) Gender Variance in the UK:

starting point to ensuring that equality is Prevalence, incidence, growth and geographic

embedded into the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green distribution

Neighbourhood Plan. It is effectively Appendix 4 of

LB Hackney’s ‘Equalities Assessment Form for an However, the data varies in terms of how often it is

Application for a Neighbourhood Forum’). collected and the geographical scale at which it is
collated and released (e.g. ward level, local

Methodology authority level). The London Borough of Hackney

was subject to a boundary review in 2014, which

The study focuses on the nine protected :
has also been taken into account.

characteristics set out in the Equality Act 2010 (see
previous page). For each of the protected
characteristics, the study compares estimated
residential population of the Finsbury Park and
Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area (FPSG) to the
London and England averages.



Introduction

In order to estimate the population of the
Neighbourhood Area from the data at ward or
borough level, an assessment was made of the
geographic area of FPSG in relation to the
statistical boundaries, with data adjusted on a pro
rata basis. These assumptions are available at
Appendix A, as well as an estimate of discrepancies
arising through measurement techniques.

This methodology is considered proportionate to
support the determination of the Neighbourhood
Area and Neighbourhood Area applications.

Towards a Neighbourhood Plan

The Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Plan will also eventually need to comply with the
‘Public Sector Equality Duty’.

The proposed constitution for the Neighbourhood
Forum engrains equalities and diversity into its
structure, principles and decision making process.
Further research and analysis into socioeconomic
characteristics of the population will be carried
out in due course.

Further information is available in the Equalities
Impact Assessment form submitted as part of the
Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum
applications.




Age - Data

Aoe 0-14 g 0-44 4 g 60-74 80 00

FPSG (%) 15.7% 28.2% 29.8% 15.4% 7.7% 2.9% 0.3
London (%) 18.7% 23.7% 25.3% 17.0% 10.0% 4.8% 0.5%
England (%) 17.7% 20.0% 20.6% 19.4% 14.6% 7.0% 0.8

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

il

0-14 15-29 30-44 45-59 60-74 75-89 90+
mFPSG w=lLondon mEngland

0%

Source: ONS (2017) Census, 2011




Age - Key findings

FPSG has a lower proportion of children and
young people (0-14) than both London as a
whole and England.

The area has a significantly higher proportion
of young adults (15-44), with an estimated
combined proportion of 58%, compared with
49% for London and around 41% for England as
a whole. Correspondingly, there are lower
proportions of older adults (45+) in FSPG

Around 11% are estimated to be aged 60 or
over in FPSG, compared to over 22% across
England.




Disability - Data

Day-to-day activities Day-to-day activities Day-to-day activities

limited a lot limited a little not limited

FPSG (%) 7.2% 7.0% 85.2%

London (%) 6.4% 7.3% 85.1%

England (%) 7.7% 9.1% 81.3%
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%

0 HRovEE ool

Day-to-day Day-to-day Day-to-day
activities activities activities not
limited a lot limited a little limited

mFPSG mlLondon mEngland

Source: ONS (2017) Census, 2011




Disability - Key findings

Overall, disability levels in FPSG are broadly
similar to the London average.

A higher proportion of those in FPSG are more
limited in day-to-day activities than across
London (an estimated 7.2% compared with
6.4%).

The area has lower disability levels than
England as a whole.




Gender Reassighment - Data

Sought medical

Transgender treatment for

gender variance
UK (%) 0.60-1.00% 0.02%
0.9%
0.80%

0.8%
0.7%
0.6%
0.5%
0.4%
0.3%
0.2%
0.1% 0.02%
0'0% I

Transgender (%) Sought medical

treatment for gender
variance (%)

W UK

Source: Gender Identity Research and Education Society (2009) Gender Variance in the UK:
Prevalence, incidence, growth and geographic distribution




Gender Reassignment - Key findings

The Office for National Statistics does not
currently collect data on gender identity or
gender reassignment. There is therefore little
reliable data which exists on a local level. ONS
has consulted on the option of including a new
question on gender identity as part of the 2021
Census.

A Home Office-funded study published in 2009'
estimated 300,000-500,000 people identifying
as transgender in the UK - equivalent to 600-
1,000 per 100,000 population. Applying this
ratio to the population of the Neighbourhood
Area suggests a transgender population of
around 180-300.

The proportion of those who have sought
medical treatment for gender variance is much
lower than this, at around 20 per 100,000
population. This would equate to around six
people within the Neighbourhood Plan Area.
However, the report notes that this ratio may
be expected to increase as more transgender
people feel able or compelled to seek medical
treatment.

" Gender Identity Research and Education Society (2009) Gender
Variance in the UK: Prevalence, incidence, growth and geographic
distribution




Marriage and Civil Partnership - Data

married or never

same-sex civil

Single (never

In a registered

registered a Married same-sex civil

partnership)

partnership

Separated (but still
legally married or
still legally in a
same-sex civil
partnership)

Divorced or
formerly in a
same-sex civil
partnership which
is now legally
dissolved

Widowed or
surviving partner
from a same-sex
civil partnership

FPSG (%)
London (%) 44.1% 39.8% 0.4% 3.2% 7.4%
England (%) 34.6% 46.6% 0.2% 2.7% 9.0%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Single (never
married or
never
registered a
same-sex civil
partnership)

Ina Separated Divorced or Widowed or
registered (but still  formerlyina  surviving
same-sex civil legally same-sex civil partner from
partnership  married or  partnership asame-sex

still legally in which is now civil
a same-sex legally partnership
civil dissolved
partnership)

EmFPSG mlondon mEngland

Source: ONS (2017) Census, 2011. Note: Data only covers population aged 16 and over.




Marriage and Civil Partnership - Key findings

FPSG has a significantly larger proportion of
people reporting as single - around 60% of the
population are estimated to be single,
compared with around 44% across London and
35% in England. Correspondingly, there is a
lower proportion of those reporting as
married.

The area has around double the proportion of
people in civil partnerships (at 0.8%) than
London, and four times as many across England
as a whole.

FPSG has a much lower level of widowed or
surviving partners than across the country as a
whole. This may be, in part, a function of the
younger population profile of the area.




Pregnancy and Maternity - Data

aged 44 Dopulatio 0

FPSG (%) 51.8 15.
London (%) 63.1 15.0
England (%) 61.7 12.

80 20
70
60 15
50
40

30

w

20
10

0

. Birth rat;
Maternity rate i rate

(per thousand females
aged 15-44, 2015)

EFPSG ®lLondon mEngland

(per thousand population, 2015)

mFPSG mlondon mEngland

Source: ONS (2016) Births by mothers' usual area of residence in the UK, 2015




Pregnancy and Maternity - Key findings

FPSG has a lower maternity rate than London
and England, with around 52 estimated
maternities per thousand females aged 15-44,
compared with 63 for London as a whole and
62 across England.

FPSG does, however, have a higher birth rate
(measured in terms of births per thousand
population). This is likely to be result of the
differences in measurement metric (females
aged 15-44 versus total population), reflecting
the particular age profile of the area.




Race - Data

Black / African /

Mixed / Multiple Asian /

Other ethnic

: : o Caribbean /
ethnic group Asian British Black British group
FPSG (%) 65.2% 6.8% 8.4% 15.6% 4.0%
London (%) 59.8% 5.0% 18.5% 13.3% 3.4%
England (%) 85.4% 2.3% 7.8% 3.5% 1.0%
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0% | [— ‘ ‘ [ .
White Mixed / Asian / Asian Black / Other ethnic
Multiple British African / group
ethnic group Caribbean /
Black British

B FPSG ® London MEngland

Source: ONS (2017) Census, 2011




Race - Key findings

FPSG is more racially diverse than England,
with a lower proportion of the population
reporting as white - an estimated 65%,
compared with 84% across the country.
However, the area is slightly less diverse than
London as a whole, with around 60% of
population reporting as white.

The area has a higher proportion of Black /
African / Caribbean /

Black British population than the London
average, and a lower proportion of Asian
population.

A higher proportion of people are of mixed /
multiple ethnic groups in FPSG (almost 7%)
than both the London and England averages
(around 5% and 2%, respectively).




Religion or belief - Data

Sl SllefelalE: rel(i)gt?oer: religilgl(r: ncies!igitzg

FPSG (%) 38.0% 1.0% 0.9% 1.3% 11.4% 0.3% 0.5% 33.0%
London (%) 48.4% 1.0% 5.0% 1.8% 12.4% 1.5% 0.6% 20.7%
England (%) 59.4% 0.5% 1.5% 0.5% 5.0% 0.8% 0.4% 24.7%
70.0%

60.0%

50.0%

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%

- 1. ls

0.0% A . —

Christian Buddhist Hindu Jewish Muslim Sikh

B FPSG mlondon MEngland

Source: ONS (2017) Census, 2011

Other No Religion
religion religion not
stated




Religion or belief - Key findings

FPSG has a much higher proportion of people
reporting as no religion, or where religion has
not been stated. In combination, around 47%
of the population is estimated to fall into
these categories, compared with 29% across
London and 32% for England.

FPSG has a lower level of Christians (38%) than
the London and England averages (48% and
59%, respectively).

The area also has smaller proportion of
Muslim, Sikh and Hindu residents than the
London average, and a similar level of
Buddhist residents.




Sex - Data

FPSG (%) 49.7% 50.3%
London (%) 49.3% 50.7%
England (%) 49.2% 50.8%
51.0%

50.0%

49.0%

48.0%

Male Female

B FPSG ™ London ™ England

Source: ONS (2017) Census, 2011




Sex - Key findings

There is a slightly higher proportion of females
than males in FPSG - an estimated 50.3%
compared with 49.7%.

However, the population is more evenly split
than both London and England, which are
more weighted towards females.




Sexual Orientation - Data

A 3 eterose 3 DO o 0
Orientatio s Ai G ay or lespla Bise a Othe > .
FPSG (%) 79.6% 3.1% 0.6% 0.5% 16.1%
London (%) 90.2% 1.9% 0.7% 0.3% 6.9%
England (%) 93.6% 1.1% 0.6% 0.3% 4.5%
100% 20%

80%
15%

60%
10%

40%
5%

20%

Heterosexual Gay or Bisexual Other Don't know
or straight lesbian or refuse
mFPSG ®=lLondon mEngland mFPSG m=lLondon mEngland

Source: ONS (2017) Annual Population Survey, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Note: Data constructed using estimates from a 3 year pooled Annual Population Survey (APS) dataset,
of self perceived sexual identity from the household population aged 16 and over in the UK.




Sexual Orientation - Key findings

FPSG has a lower proportion of those reporting
as heterosexual or straight - estimated at
around 80%, compared with around 90% for
London and 93% for England as a whole.

The area has a higher proportion of people
who report as gay or lesbian or other sexual
orientation than London and England, and a
similar proportion of people who report as
bisexual.

At over 16%, a significantly higher proportion
of people in the area are categorised as ‘Do

not know or refuse’ than England as a whole
(4.5%).




Appendix A - Assessment of
statistical boundaries




Electoral wards (Pre-2014)

r s

e e ... s
St. Ann's &

-

Crouch End \ 8
o >\ e

b
e OEA
T\ 2

Harringay

ol
%
727X

Tollington

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2015, Contains National Statistics
data © Crown copyright and database right 2015. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Electoral ward (Pre-2014)
Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Electoral wards (Post-2014)

o
St Ann's Ward

Harringay Ward

T
s \Woodberry Down Ward
A\ -

AN

Stoke NepingtonWard ’ \
1 My LT

= Y =i
lissold Ward 1 {2 ii {
\ T H o gy b
\ 3 1t o i
\ \‘ l“ Wz i '
<! el
N i 1 TI1
e gy 1 1
—L -~
/ 7 i ol e ‘; =
\W / IR s S —

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2015, Contains National Statistics
data © Crown copyright and database right 2015. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Electoral ward (Post-2014)
Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Electoral wards

Pre-2014

Estimated Estimated
resident i

Borough ard (2011 Area (ha) Household ) )
Hackney Brownswood 83.126 11,091 4,882 35.105 42.2% 4,684 2,062
Islington Finsbury Park 91.626 14,358 6,251 47.380 51.7% 7,425 3,232

Haringey Harringay 156.609 13,272 5,471 0.712 0.5% 60
Islington Highbury East 100.809 11,634 5,240 0.884 0.9% 102
Islington Highbury West 108.254 15,030 6,975 19.290 17.8% 2,678 1,243
Haringey Stroud Green 109.374 11,758 5,207 76.356 69.8% 8,208 3,635

Islington Tollington 84.866
Hackney New River 97.801

6,056 38.416 45.3% 6,025 2,741
4,541 0.0% :

Post-2014

Borough ard (2014 Area (ha) Household ) )
Hackne Brownswood 48.049 8,195 n/a 34.173 71.1% 5,828
Islington Finsbury Park 91.626 14,358 n/a 47.380 51.7% 7,425

Haringey Harringay 156.609 13,272 n/a 0.712 0.5% 60

Islington Highbury East 100.809 11,634 n/a 0.884 0.9% 102

Islington Highbury West 108.254 15,030 n/a 19.290 17.8% 2,678

Haringey Stroud Green 109.374 11,758 n/a 76.356 69.8% 8,208

Islington Tollington 84.866 13,311 n/a 38.416 45.3% 6,025

Hackney Woodberry Down 87.848 8,758 n/a 0.672 0.8% 67
I ~ na 217883 30,394 n/a

* Excluding Finsbury Park open space. Discrepancies due to measurement: FPSG area + 0.12%; FPSG residents + 4.15%



Local authorities

WA

NB - All boundaries approximate. Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2015, Contains National Statistics
data © Crown copyright and database right 2015. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

Local authority
Proposed Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area




Local authorities

Estimated resident
population withi
FPSG (% of Ioca

ResidentlEstimated resident

authorit )
Hackney 246, 270 5,895 2.4%
Haringey 254,926 8,269 3.2%
Islington 206,125 16,230 7.9%

Area within FPS

(% of

Estlmated residen Area within Neighbourhood
19.4% 34.845 16.0%

27.2% 77.068 35.4%

53.4% 105.970 48.6%

* Excluding Finsbury Park open space




Page 196

Appendix 4



6.

Page 197

Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood
Forum Constitution

Name and duration

The name of the Neighbourhood Forum shall be the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Forum (the Forum).

The duration of the Forum is five years from its formal designation by Hackney, Haringey and
Islington Councils.

Area of Benefit

The area in which the Forum will pursue its objectives is the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green
Neighbourhood Area (the Neighbourhood Area), which is the area designated by Hackney,
Haringey and Islington Councils for which the Forum will produce a Neighbourhood Plan.

The Neighbourhood Area may be revised by the Forum from time to time by agreement with
Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils under their statutory powers.

Objectives

The Forum shall:

a. Promote or improve the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of the Finsbury
Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area, through the preparation and
implementation of a Neighbourhood Plan, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011,

b. Build and maintain a diverse Forum Membership;

c. Ascertain, co-ordinate and reflect the views of the community that it represents, to liaise
with other community groups within the Neighbourhood Area, and to fairly express the
diversity of opinions and outlooks of the people;

d. Remain independent of any party political, religious, trade or campaign organisation;

e. Promote and improve joint working between Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils
and residents and workers within the Neighbourhood Area;

f.  Direct development towards areas identified in the Neighbourhood Plan as being most
appropriate for regeneration, and promote the preservation and restoration of areas
identified in the Neighbourhood Plan as justifying conservation;

g. Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the
Neighbourhood Area;

h. Ensure that development is appropriate to the character of its surrounding area, as
defined in the Neighbourhood Plan, and;

i. Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to explore
delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase community
assets, and/or increase not for profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood Area

Structure of the Forum
Membership of the Forum

The Forum shall consist of four types of member, drawn from different parts of the
Neighbourhood Area and different sections of its community:
a. Resident Member — a person whose usual residence is within the Neighbourhood Area;
b. Worker Member — an employee / self-employed person whose usual workplace is within
the Neighbourhood Area;
c. Elected Official Member — a ward councillor, Member of Parliament, or London Assembly
Member whose constituency forms part of the Neighbourhood Area, and;

Page 1 of 8



Page 198

d. Affiliated Organisation — a formally constituted community group that has an interest in
the Neighbourhood area.

7. In furtherance of its objectives, the Forum may take any form of lawful action necessary to
achieve the objectives of the Forum. In addition to the various powers conferred elsewhere in
this Constitution and its annex(es), these actions may include:

a. Raising funds by donation, grants, or other means;

b. Opening a bank account in the name of the Forum to manage such funds;

c. Making payments for goods and services to be applied to the objectives of the Forum,
and for no other purpose;

d. Taking out any contracts that it may see fit.

Forum Officers

8. The Forum shall elect four officers from its Resident, Worker and Elected Official members:
a. Chair of the Forum;
b. Secretary/ Vice Chair of the Forum;
c. Treasurer, and;
d. Membership Secretary.

9. The Chair of the Forum shall be responsible for:
a. Calling and chairing Full Forum Meetings.

10. The Secretary / Vice Chair of the Forum shall be responsible for:

a. Organising Full Forum Meetings;

b. Managing the preparation, distribution, and approval of agendas, minutes and other
papers for Full Forum Meetings;

c. Maintaining this Constitution and its annex(es), and making them available to Members;

d. Managing decision-making procedures in accordance with this Constitution and its
annex(es), and;

e. Acting as Chair of the Forum, if the Chair is on leave or otherwise unavailable.

11. The Treasurer shall be responsible for:

a. In consultation with the Steering Group, proposing a Budget for the following year, at
least annually, to be approved or rejected by the Forum;

b. Maintaining the accounts of the Forum, and submitting a summary of these to the Chair
of the Forum at every Full Forum Meeting, and the Head of the Steering Group prior to
each Steering Group Meeting;

c. Approving expenditure in accordance with the approved Budget, or otherwise seeking
approval of the Forum, and;

d. Ensuring that funds are utilised effectively.

12. The Membership Secretary shall be responsible for:

a. Maintaining a register of current Forum Members, and submitting this to the Chair of the
Forum at every Full Forum Meeting;
Maintaining equalities monitoring data of the Residents and Workers Panel;
Registering the Forum as a Data Controller with the Information Commissioners Office;
Ensuring day-to-day compliance with the Data Protection Act 1998, and,;
Managing election procedures in accordance with this constitution and its annex(es).

cooo

13. Forum Officers shall be jointly responsible for:
a. Interpreting this Constitution and its annex(es), and ensuring that it is adhered to, and;
b. Ensuring that the Residents and Workers Panel includes people from across the nine
protected characteristics of the Equality Act 2010.

Page 2 of 8



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Page 199

Steering Group

The Forum shall elect from its Resident, Worker and Elected Official members a Steering Group
of no more than 15 Members (with positions remaining vacant until filled in accordance with the
Constitution). The Steering Group shall be made up of:

a. Between one and four Resident or Worker Members from each Borough, and;

b. No more than one Elected Official Member from each Borough.

The Steering Group shall elect one Steering Group Member as Head of the Steering Group,
who shall be responsible for:

a. Calling and chairing Steering Group Meetings, and,;

b. Acting on behalf of the Forum and representing it externally.

In furtherance of the objectives of the Forum, and in addition to the various powers conferred
elsewhere in this Constitution and its annex(es), the Steering Group may:
a. Propose amendments to this Constitution and its annex(es), to be approved or rejected
by the Forum by special resolution;
b. Propose amendments to the Neighbourhood Area, to be approved or rejected by the
Forum by special resolution;
c. Propose the publication of Emerging Draft versions of the Neighbourhood Plan, to be
approved or rejected by the Forum by special resolution;
d. Propose the submission of a Final Draft version of the Neighbourhood Plan to the three
councils, to be approved or rejected by the Forum by special resolution;
e. Work with the three Boroughs as they see fit, and;
f. Express views on planning applications, in compliance with the latest published
Emerging Draft Neighbourhood Plan, and;
g. Propose that the Forum be dissolved before the duration, to be approved or rejected by
the Forum by special resolution (other than to comply with the law).

Steering Group Members shall be subject to re-election after a maximum term of 18 months.
There is no limit to the number of terms a Steering Group Member may serve.

Residents and Workers Panel

Resident and Worker Forum Members may volunteer to join a Residents and Workers Panel,
by providing equalities monitoring data to the Membership Secretary.

The Residents and Workers Panel shall have no formal powers, acting only as a consultee.
The Steering Group shall appoint a Head of the Residents and Workers Panel to facilitate
communication between the two bodies, and may invite them to make recommendations on
behalf of the Panel.

Temporary Subgroup(s)

The Steering Group may create and dissolve Temporary Subgroup(s) at its discretion to carry
out specific tasks and/or advise the Steering Group on specific issues. Forum Members may
volunteer to join Temporary Subgroup(s).

Temporary Subgroup(s) shall have no formal powers, acting only as a consultee. The Steering
Group shall appoint a Head of each Subgroup, to facilitate communication between the two
bodies, and may invite them to make recommendations on behalf of the Panel.

Decision-making

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to:
a. Consider the role of the Neighbourhood Area within London as a whole;
b. Meet the needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes within the
Neighbourhood Area, as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan;
c. Learn from the successes and failures of past policies, projects, and programmes locally
and elsewhere, whilst considering any differences in circumstances;

Page 3 0of 8



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 200

d. Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and,;

e. Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity
and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities.

Forum

Matters that require approval by the Forum shall be decided by Resident, Worker and/or
Elected Official members only. Affiliated Organisation members shall not vote on such matters.

Matters that require approval by the Forum shall be decided by the higher of 14 Forum
Members or 10% of the Forum Membership, with at least three from each Borough. Where
proposed resolutions have not originated from the Steering Group, at least seven of the Forum
Members must be Steering Group Members.

The Chair of the Forum (or Vice Chair of the Forum, if they are absent) shall not vote on such
matters, unless in the case of a tied vote.

Proposed special resolutions shall be communicated to Forum Members no less than 21 days
prior to the decision being made.

Steering Group

Matters that require approval of the Steering Group shall be decided by a quorum of at least
seven Steering Group Members, with at least two from each Borough.

In the event of a tied vote, the Head of the Steering Group shall have the deciding vote.

Proposed special resolutions shall be communicated to Steering Group Members no less than
14 days prior to the decision being made.

Page 4 of 8



Page 201

Annex A - Working Arrangements

Membership Applications and Resignations

In the case of Resident Members, Worker Members, and Elected Official Members,
applications for membership shall be received by the Membership Secretary in the form of a
completed Membership Application Form. Applications for membership shall be accepted or
declined by the Membership Secretary in accordance with the membership definitions
contained within Clause 6 of the Constitution. Resignations from membership shall be received
by the Membership Secretary by way of written notice.

In the case of Affiliated Organisations, applications shall be received by the Steering Group in
the form of a letter on headed paper, signed by an official of the potential Affiliated Organisation,
nominating a representative to attend Forum meetings and speak on their behalf. Applications
for membership shall be accepted or declined by the Steering Group at its discretion.
Resignations from membership shall be received by the Steering Group by way of written
notice.

Election procedures

Forum Officers and Steering Group Members shall be subject to re-election after a maximum
term of 18 months. There is no limit to the number of terms an officer may serve.

Where a vacancy arises for a Forum Officer / Steering Group Member position:
a. Theremaining Forum Officers / Steering Group Members shall divide the responsibilities
of the vacant position until the vacancy is filled;
b. The vacancy shall be publicised and nominations invited ahead of elections;
c. Any nominations shall be seconded by a Forum Member other than the nominee, and;
d. Nominations shall be validated by the Membership Secretary in accordance with the
Constitution and its annex(es).

No more than one Forum Officer / Steering Group Member shall be elected from any one
household or immediate family (parent; sibling; child by blood, adoption, or marriage; spouse;
grandparent or grandchild). Serving Forum Officers shall not stand for election as a Steering
Group Member, and vice versa.

The Steering Group shall maintain and make publicly available a document setting out the
Election Procedures for the Forum, which shall be in accordance with this Constitution and its
annex(es).

Formal meetings

Full Forum meetings

Full Forum meetings shall be held within two calendar months of formal designation of the
Forum by Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils, and at least every four calendar months
thereafter. The Chair of the Forum shall publicise the date, time and location of Full Forum
Meetings to all those on the Register of Members no less than 21 days prior (other than to
comply with the law).

All Forum Members may attend Full Forum Meetings. The Chair of the Forum may invite, at
their discretion, non-Forum Members to attend Full Forum meetings as a non-voting observer.
Forum Meetings shall be otherwise closed to other attendees. Full Forum Meetings may be
attended by means of such communication methods as permit all persons participating in the
meeting to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting.

The Chair of the Forum shall appoint a minute taker at the beginning of each Full Forum

meeting. Key notes and actions from the meeting shall be published to all Forum Members no
later than 21 days before the next Full Forum meeting.

Page 5 of 8



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 202

The Chair of the Forum may order a Forum Member to withdraw from the meeting for causing
persistent disruption, and/or adjourn meeting where conduct of Forum Members is persistently
disorderly.

Steering Group Meetings

Steering Group meetings shall be held within two calendar months of the initial election of
Steering Group Members by the Forum, and at least every three calendar months thereon. The
Head of the Steering Group shall distribute the date, time and location of Steering Group
meetings to all Steering Group Members no less than 14 days prior (other than to comply with
the law).

All Steering Group Members may attend Steering Group Meetings, unless their membership
has been suspended. The Head of the Steering Group may, at their discretion, invite one or
more Forum Officers or Heads of Temporary Subgroups to attend part or whole of a Steering
Group meeting as a non-voting Observer. Steering Group Meetings shall be otherwise closed
to other attendees. Steering Group Meetings may be attended by means of such
communication methods as permit all persons participating in the meeting to communicate
adequately with each other during the meeting.

The Steering Group shall appoint a minute taker at the beginning of each Steering Group
meeting. Key notes and actions from the meeting will be published to all Forum Members no
later than 14 days before the next Full Forum meeting. In rare circumstances where there is a
requirement for confidentiality, a confidential section of the minutes may be recorded, available
to members of the Steering Group only.

Finance

Any money acquired by the Forum, including donations, contributions and bequests, shall be
paid into the Forum bank account at the earliest opportunity.

Any deeds, cheques etc. relating to the Forum's bank account shall be signed by the Treasurer
and at least one other Forum Officer or the Head of the Steering Group. Records must be kept
of any petty cash transactions.

Upon request by a Forum Member, the Treasurer shall make the full accounts available for
inspection.

At least annually, the Steering Group shall invite an appropriate person to inspect the accounts
and report their findings to the Forum. This person shall not be a Forum Officer or Steering
Group Member. If the turnover of the Forum exceeds £5,000 in the year in question, this person
shall not be a Forum Member.

Forum Officers / Steering Group Members shall not receive any payment from the Forum
except for bona fide expenses as approved by the Treasurer and submitted and recorded in
writing.

Exercising powers conferred by the Constitution

Publication of Emerging Draft versions of Neighbourhood Plan

The Steering Group may propose to the Forum that it make publicly available an Emerging
Draft version of the Neighbourhood Plan, with the approval of the Steering Group.

Proposals to make publicly available an Emerging Draft version of Neighbourhood Plan shall
be approved for publication or rejected by the Forum.

Submission of Final Draft version of Neighbourhood Plan

Page 6 of 8



21.

22.

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Page 203

The Steering Group may propose to the Forum that it submit a Final Draft version of the
Neighbourhood Plan to the three local authorities, with the approval of the Steering Group.

Proposals to submit a Final Draft version of the Neighbourhood Plan to the three local
authorities shall be approved or rejected by the Forum.

Expressing views on planning applications

Until the Neighbourhood Plan is adopted by Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils, the
Forum shall only express views on any planning application (other than those it makes itself) in
compliance with the latest published Emerging Draft Neighbourhood Plan. Any such
representations shall be made by the Steering Group on behalf of the Forum. Individual Forum
Members may comment on planning applications, but not in the name of the Forum.

Dissolution of the Neighbourhood Forum

The Steering Group may propose to the Forum that it be dissolved before its duration, with the
approval of the Steering Group. Any proposal by the Steering Group to dissolve the Forum
before its duration shall be accompanied by the accounts of the Forum and a proposed
distribution of any remaining funds / assets held by the Forum to its Affiliated Organisations.

Proposals to dissolve the Forum shall be approved or rejected by the Forum, and be carried
out in accordance with Section 12 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.

General provisions

Conflict of terms

In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between this annex and the Constitution, the
Constitution shall prevail.

Conflicts of interest

All Forum Officers and Steering Group Members of shall strive to avoid any conflict of interest
between the interests of the Forum on the one hand, and personal, professional, and business
interests on the other. This includes avoiding actual conflicts of interest as well as the
perception of conflicts of interest.

Each Forum Officer and Steering Group Member shall make a full, written disclosure of
interests, such as relationships, and posts held, that could potentially result in a conflict of
interest. This written disclosure shall be updated as appropriate, and made available to all
Forum Officers and Steering Group Members.

In the course of meetings or activities, Forum Officers and Steering Group Members will
disclose any interests in a transaction or decision where there may be a conflict between the
Forum'’s best interests and the Forum Officer’s and Steering Group Member’s best interests, or
a conflict between the best interests of two organisations that the Forum Officers or Steering
Group Member is involved with. In such instances, Forum Officers or Steering Group Members
shall excuse themselves from any reporting, discussions and vote on the matter that gave rise
to the potential conflict of interest and, if necessary, from the meeting, or applicable part thereof.

The Steering Group shall maintain and make publicly available a document providing further

guidance on Conflicts of Interest, which shall be in accordance with this Constitution and its
annex(es).

Page 7 of 8



31.

32.

33.

34.

Page 204

Equalities monitoring data

After a change in the composition of the Steering Group, the Membership Secretary shall invite
Steering Group Members to provide equalities monitoring data, to be made publicly available
on an aggregated and anonymised basis whereby no individual Steering Group Member can
be identified.

Complaints against Forum Members

The Chair of the Forum, Membership Secretary, and Head of the Steering Group shall together
consider complaints made by any person that a Forum Member:
a. has refused or neglected to comply with a provision or provisions of this Constitution or
its annex(es), or;
b. has wilfully acted in a manner prejudicial to the interests of the Forum

In the event of a complaint about a Forum Member, the member concerned shall be informed,
and given an opportunity to be heard. If the complaint is upheld, the forum member will be
unable to participate in any active work of the forum for a fixed period of no longer than six
months, during which time the forum member will retain voting rights at Full Forum Meetings.

If the complaint concerns the Chair of the Forum, Membership Secretary, or Head of the

Steering Group themselves, then that person shall be excluded from the decision whether to
suspend them.

Page 8 of 8



Page 205

Appendix 5



Page 206

FINSBURY PARK
STROUD GREEN

Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity Statement

Equality

We recognise the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations between different people when carrying out our activities.

The constitution for the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Forum states the following
objectives (amongst others):
e Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the
Neighbourhood Area, and,;
¢ Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to explore delivery
models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase community assets, and/or
increase not for profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood Area.

In making decisions, the Neighbourhood Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to meet the
needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes within the Neighbourhood Area,
as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan.

The vision, policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. Without prejudice to this, we
anticipate that the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will focus on (amongst other areas of focus):

o Ensuring the delivery of community facilities in line with growth: Our local area has a
diverse population, each with different needs — and newcomers will increase demands on
existing services. Planning policy can highlight need for community facilities, and outline
expectations for developers to contribute towards meeting these.

e Ensuring that change benefits everyone: Finsbury Park’s convenient transport links and
vibrant amenities have attracted new investment and development. But rising rents and living
costs have meant that existing residents and businesspeople have sometimes lost out. A
Neighbourhood Plan can promote affordability and diversity in its housing policies, and the
creation of employment opportunities in line with housing growth.

Diversity
We recognise that our local area has a diverse population, each with different needs.

The constitution for the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Forum states the following
objectives (amongst others):
e Build and maintain a diverse Forum Membership, and;
e Ascertain, co-ordinate and reflect the views of the community that it represents, to liaise with
other community groups within the Neighbourhood Area, and to fairly express the diversity of
opinions and outlooks of the people.

In making decisions, the Neighbourhood Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to understand
how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their particular circumstances.

Throughout the preparation of the Neighbourhood Plan, we will continuously engage with the local
community — including non-members of the Forum, and those outside of the Neighbourhood Area. This
engagement will be via a variety of methods — including but not limited to street stalls and surveys, door
knocking, attending community events, online Discussion Board, posters and newsletters, as well as
hosting our own meetings, workshops, socials and themed events. We will use techniques to engage
those who do not typically take part in planning policy development, such as incorporating consultation
into cultural, sports and leisure activities. We will ensure that meetings and events are held in
accessible venues, and key information is provided in a variety of formats.



Page 207

Inclusivity

We recognise the importance of community engagement in terms of: empowerment and capacity
building; increasing understanding of the Neighbourhood Area, leading to better outcomes from
policies, masterplans and projects; avoiding unconstructive conflict, and; ensuring legitimacy.

The constitution for the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Forum states the following
objectives (amongst others):
e Promote and improve joint working between Hackney, Haringey and lIslington Councils and
residents and workers within the Neighbourhood Area, and;
o Remain independent of any party political, religious, trade or campaign organisation.

In making decisions, the Neighbourhood Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to consider the
role of the Neighbourhood Area within London as a whole.

We will continue to make considerable efforts to ensure that membership is drawn from all places of
our Neighbourhood Area and sections of our community. The Neighbourhood Forum shall elect from
its Resident, Worker and Elected Official members a Steering Group with an equal number of positions
from each Borough.



Page 208

Appendix 6



Page 209

APPENDIX 3 - Equalities Assessment Form for an Application for a Neighbourhood
Forum —to be filled out and submitted by the proposed Forum

& Hackney

London Borough of Hackney
Application for a Proposed Neighbourhood Forum

Purpose of Assessment

The proposed forum must include a statement in their application explaining how the proposed
forum meets the conditions as outlined in section 61F (5) of the 1990 Act. The following will be
used as an assessment checklist by Council Officers when making their assessment to
designate a Neighbourhood Forum.

The following is to be completed by the proposed Neighbourhood Forum. Guidance notes
where applicable are included in italics within the comments boxes provided. These outline
minimum requirements.

Responsible group: (to be completed by the report author)

Name: Contact:
Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Ben Myring, Co-Chair
Neighbourhood Plan Working Group (finsburyparkstroudgreen@gmail.com)

Website:
www.finsburyparkstroudgreen.com

Date of Assessment:
April 2018

1. Does the Forum have a minimum of 21 members?

Yes No
v

la. is membership of the Forum open to (v orx):

Individuals who live in the neighbourhood area?

Individuals who work in the neighbourhood area?

AN

Individuals who are elected members of a London Borough Council, any of whose
area falls within the neighbourhood area?

2. Does the Forum have a Constitution? Please attach a copy to this Form. NB: the
constitution should be clear and concise in outlining how the Forum will be run and
managed, and address any issues raised in this assessment.

Yes No
v

3. Understanding the proposed Neighbourhood Forum. Describe the key objectives
and outcomes you expect.

Outline the purpose and objectives of the Neighbourhood Forum including desired outcomes,
including its aims, objectives and purpose. Also demonstrate how these aims and objectives
and the Forum constitution address identified need/issues prevalent in the related
Neighbourhood Area.



http://www.finsburyparkstroudgreen.com/

Page 210

The proposed constitution for the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Forum
states the following objectives:

a. Promote or improve the social, economic and environmental well-being of the
Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area, through the preparation and
implementation of a Neighbourhood Plan, in accordance with the Localism Act
2011;

b. Build and maintain a diverse Forum Membership;

c. Ascertain, co-ordinate and reflect the views of the community that it represents, to
liaise with other community groups within the Neighbourhood Area, and to fairly
express the diversity of opinions and outlooks of the people;

d. Remain independent of any party political, religious, trade or campaign
organisation;

e. Promote and improve joint working between Hackney, Haringey and Islington
Councils and residents and workers within the Neighbourhood Area,;

f. Direct development towards areas identified in the Neighbourhood Plan as being
most appropriate for regeneration, and promote the preservation and restoration of
areas identified in the Neighbourhood Plan as justifying conservation;

g. Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within
the Neighbourhood Area;

h. Ensure that development is appropriate to the character of its surrounding area, as
defined in the Neighbourhood Plan, and;

i. Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to
explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital,
increase community assets, and/or increase not for profit enterprise within the
Neighbourhood Area

As set out in our application letter, in due course, we will conduct a Scoping Review and gather
a robust evidence base to inform our vision, policies and projects; however, based on
engagement with the local community to date, we expect these to focus on the following:

Creating a coherent vision for the future: Finsbury Park spans multiple
administrative boundaries. Whilst an accord was signed by the three local councils in
June 2012, there are opportunities to make coordination more effective. A
Neighbourhood Plan will provide a single set of coherent planning policies for the area.
Bringing together community champions: Enthusiasm for a Neighbourhood Plan
was first revealed at an event in February 2015. Since then, a working group has
emerged, with increasing interest and support from local residents and other
stakeholders. The new relationships formed whilst, and skills gained from, preparing a
Neighbourhood Plan may also help the community in other ways in future.

Designating areas for regeneration and conservation: Neighbourhood Plans can
help to focus new development in the most appropriate locations, whilst protecting
assets such as local green spaces and buildings with heritage value.

Improving the environment: Finsbury Park itself is a great asset to the area, but
heavy traffic flows detract from the local environment. Planning policies can directly and
indirectly affect public realm and landscape, green infrastructure (such as street trees,
parks, and water courses), car parking, drainage, air quality, energy and water
consumption, and noise.

Transport and connectivity: Despite excellent public transport links, areas of Finsbury
Park are dominated by motor vehicles. The railway lines and roads with heavier traffic
disconnect parts of the community from one another. A Neighbourhood Plan can set
out a vision for land use, public realm, and transport infrastructure. This could include
proposals to improve accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists — although some
elements of this vision may not form planning policy.

Delivering community facilities in line with growth: Our local area has a diverse
population, each with different needs — and newcomers will increase demands on
existing services. Planning policy can highlight need for community facilities, and
outline expectations for developers to contribute towards meeting these.

Ensuring that change benefits everyone: Finsbury Park’s convenient transport links
and vibrant amenities have attracted new investment and development. But rising rents

2




Page 211

and living costs have meant that existing residents and businesspeople have
sometimes lost out. A Neighbourhood Plan can promote affordability and diversity in its
housing policies, and the creation of employment opportunities in line with housing
growth.

Directing funding for local projects: Neighbourhood Forums have powers to direct
the investment of the neighbourhood element of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
funding.

How will your forum deal with equalities issues?

The Neighbourhood Forum will assist the three councils in meeting their duties under the
Equality Act 2010.

The proposed constitution for the Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Forum
provides several mechanisms for dealing with equalities issues:

Objectives include, amongst others:

o Promote or improve the social, economic and environmental well-being of the
Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area, through the preparation
and implementation of a Neighbourhood Plan, in accordance with the Localism
Act 2011;

o Build and maintain a diverse Forum Membership;

o Ascertain, co-ordinate and reflect the views of the community that it represents,
to liaise with other community groups within the Neighbourhood Area, and to
fairly express the diversity of opinions and outlooks of the people;

o Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality
within the Neighbourhood Area;

o Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to
explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital,
increase community assets, and/or increase not-for-profit enterprise within the
Neighbourhood Area

The Forum shall consist of four types of member drawn from different places in the
Neighbourhood Area and different sections of its community: Resident Member — a
person whose usual residence is within the Neighbourhood Area; Worker Member — an
employee / self-employed person whose usual workplace is within the Neighbourhood
Area; Elected Official Member — a ward councillor, Member of Parliament, or London
Assembly Member whose constituency forms part of the Neighbourhood Area, and,;
Affiliated Organisation — a formally constituted community group that has an interest in
the Neighbourhood area. The Forum shall elect from its Resident, Worker and Elected
Official members a Steering Group of ho more than 15 Members (no more than five
from each Borough).

Resident and Worker Forum Members may volunteer to join a Residents and Workers
Panel, by providing equalities monitoring data to the Membership Secretary. The
Membership Secretary shall be responsible for maintaining equalities monitoring data of
the Residents and Workers Panel, in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.
Forum Officers shall be jointly responsible for ensuring that the Residents and Workers
Panel includes people from across the nine protected characteristics of the Equality Act
2010.

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst
other principles):

o Meet the needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes
within the Neighbourhood Area, as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan;

o Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and;

o Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out
their activities.




Page 212

Our application letter proposes a process towards adoption of the Neighbourhood Plan by the
three local councils. With regards to equalities issues:

e We recognise the importance of community engagement in terms of empowerment and
capacity building; increasing understanding of the Neighbourhood Area, leading to
better outcomes from policies, masterplans and projects; avoiding unconstructive
conflict, and; ensuring legitimacy. As such, we will engage continuously with the
community throughout the process, to ensure that all voices are heard.

o We will prepare a Scoping Review document, upon which we will consult informally.

e We will gather a robust evidence base to inform our vision, policies and projects. This
will include the preparation of a socioeconomic baseline, drawing upon publicly
available datasets and needs assessments prepared by public bodies.

e The Consultation Version of our Neighbourhood Plan will enable community, voluntary
and charity organisations to make formal representations on the document.

e The Submission Version of our Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an
Equalities Impact Assessment.

4. Determining Membership of the Forum

Outline the process undertaken to date of establishing membership of the Forum including area
analysis, consultation and advertising.

At the Finsbury Park Regeneration Conference in 2015, a group of local residents and workers
were enthused by the idea that a Neighbourhood Plan for Finsbury Park could help secure a
more coherent and prosperous future for the area. Since that time, a comprehensive
programme of activity has been undertaken to establish the membership of the Forum across
the four types of member: Residents, Workers, Elected Officials and Affiliated Organisations.

Area analysis and consultation

e Conducted a Boundary Survey carried out between 26 November 2016 and 28 August
2017, via two methods:
o Online survey — generating 490 valid responses, and,;
o Face to face surveys at nine street stalls; when hosting and attending community
events; and through targeted door knocking — generating 607 valid responses.
e Held the first two in a series of themed events, with speakers including Transport for
London and the Park Theatre
e Organised two boundary walkarounds
Prepared a Neighbourhood Area study, including high level review of social
infrastructure and local amenities
e Prepared a Protected Characteristics Study (see Appendix 4)
e Held a Neighbourhood Planning workshop at the Finsbury Park Regeneration
Conference 2017
e Held two briefing sessions with relevant ward councillors
e Invited local community, voluntary and faith organisations to become Affiliated
Organisations — including Residents’ and Traders’ Associations
Discussed key issues relating to the Neighbourhood Plan at open meetings throughout
e Held a two-week informal consultation on final drafts of the proposed Neighbourhood
Forum Constitution and Neighbourhood Area Study

Advertising

e Sent email bulletins and newsletters to a mailing list, which now comprises over 400
subscribers

e Handed out leaflets at local community meetings and events such as Manor Gardens
Centre Wellbeing Service summer street stall and Muslim Welfare House
Neighbourhood Open Day

o Created a dedicated website in March 2016, which has been expanded to include an

4




Page 213

online Discussion Board
e Created a Facebook Page in June 2016, which now has 170 followers
e Engaged in online forums such as StroudGreen.org and HarringayOnline and Streetlife
e Held and attended community events

4a. Inclusivity

How inclusive is your proposed Forum? What measures are you taking to make
Your Forum inclusive? ldentify the make up of residents, community and
Business in the Neighbourhood Area

Please also consider whether the proposed Forum will affect good relations and
cohesion - people from different backgrounds living and working together comfortably?
For example, might it:

e Dbring people from different backgrounds together;
support residents to get involved in their local community or area;
build trust and confidence in local organisations and services; or
Risk tension or conflict between different groups of people.

Please also consider whether there are other specific groups in the community who may
be affected.

Before an assessment can be made that the Forum is representative of the
Neighbourhood Area community, its make-up needs to be identified and analysed. One
preferred way for this analysis to be presented is outlined in Appendix 4.

Inclusivity of the Neighbourhood Forum — Measures taken to date

The process carried out in establishing the Neighbourhood Area boundary was designed to
ensure inclusivity. The boundary was defined in consultation with the community, including
engagement with over one thousand residents — through both online and face to face methods.
The Neighbourhood Area Study submitted as part of our application includes a high-level
analysis of social infrastructure, transport interchanges and local amenities.

As outlined in our response to Question 4, a comprehensive programme of activity has been
undertaken to establish the membership of the Forum across the four types of member:
Residents, Workers, Elected Officials and Affiliated Organisations.

As outlined in our response to Question 1, the constitution for the Neighbourhood Forum and
our proposed process towards adoption of the Neighbourhood Plan by the three local councils
both contain various mechanisms to ensure inclusivity in membership and decision making.
For example:

e The following objective requires us to bring people from different backgrounds together:
“Ascertain, co-ordinate and reflect the views of the community that it represents, to
liaise with other community groups within the Neighbourhood Area, and to fairly express
the diversity of opinions and outlooks of the people”.

e The following objective will build trust and confidence in local organisations and
services: “Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations
to explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase
community assets, and/or increase not-for-profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood
Area”.

e In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall “actively seek to understand
how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their particular
circumstances” and “have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying
out their activities”.




Page 214

Inclusivity of the Neighbourhood Forum — Proposed measures

The proposed constitution states that “Forum Officers shall be jointly responsible for [...]
Ensuring that the Residents and Workers Panel includes people from across the nine protected
characteristics of the Equality Act 2010.” This, in turn, will widen participation in the
Neighbourhood Forum.

Once the Neighbourhood Forum is approved by the three local councils, and a Treasurer
appointed, we will secure funding to support residents to get involved in their local community
and area. Resources will be focused on proactive engagement with those who do not typically
take part in planning policy development.

Once the Neighbourhood Area is approved by the three local councils, and the Neighbourhood
Forum is registered as a Data Controller with the Information Commissioner’s Office, we will
ask members to voluntarily provide equalities monitoring data. This data will allow us to assess
how the makeup of the Neighbourhood Forum compares to the makeup of the Neighbourhood
Area, and inform the deployment of resources to engage under-represented groups.

Throughout the preparation of the Neighbourhood Plan, we will continuously engage with the
local community — including non-members of the Forum, and those outside of the
Neighbourhood Area. This engagement will be via a variety of methods — including but not
limited to street stalls and surveys, door knocking, attending community events, online
Discussion Board, posters and newsletters, as well as hosting our own meetings, workshops,
socials and themed events. We will use techniques to engage those who do not typically take
part in planning policy development, such as incorporating consultation into cultural, sports and
leisure activities.

We will ensure that meetings and events are held in accessible venues, and key information is
provided in a variety of formats.

Makeup of residents, community organisations and businesses in the Neighbourhood
Area

Please see Appendix 4 for analysis of the makeup of residents in the Neighbourhood Area,
across each of the nine characteristics protected by the Equalities Act 2010.

The Neighbourhood Area Study submitted as part of our application includes a high-level
analysis of social infrastructure and clusters of businesses.

Further analysis will be undertaken as part of the evidence base for the Neighbourhood Plan;
the proposed constitution requires the Forum to identify “those who have the poorest health
and wellbeing outcomes within the Neighbourhood Area”.

4b. Monitoring Forum Membership — What systems do you have in place to find out who
attends the Forum meetings, what they think and any monitoring you have in place with
regards to equality and cohesion issues. How will you ensure that your Forum does not
discriminate against protected groups, as outlined below?

Equalities monitoring

Once the Neighbourhood Area is approved by the three local councils, and the Neighbourhood
Forum is registered as a Data Controller with the Information Commissioner’s Office, we will ask
members to voluntarily provide equalities monitoring data. This data will allow us to assess how
the makeup of the Neighbourhood Forum compares to the makeup of the Neighbourhood Area,
and inform the deployment of resources to engage under-represented groups. The provision of
equalities monitoring data will be optional, rather than a pre-requisite to membership.

Names of attendees at Full Forum Meetings will be recorded, and can be cross-referenced

6




Page 215

against equalities monitoring data where this has been provided. Again, this data will allow us to
inform the deployment of resources to engage under-represented groups.

Consultation

As outlined in our response to Question 4a, throughout the preparation of the Neighbourhood
Plan, we will continuously engage with the local community to understand their needs and
preferences.

Discrimination of protected groups

Rather than negatively discriminating against protected groups, the proposed constitution of the
Neighbourhood Forum ensures positive discrimination in their favour. For example:

The following objective requires us to bring people from different backgrounds together:
“Ascertain, co-ordinate and reflect the views of the community that it represents, to liaise
with other community groups within the Neighbourhood Area, and to fairly express the
diversity of opinions and outlooks of the people”.

The following objective will build trust and confidence in local organisations and services:
“Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to explore
delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase community
assets, and/or increase not-for-profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood Area”.

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall “have due regard to the need
to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations
between different people when carrying out their activities”.

Our response to Question 4a outlines our proposed measures to ensure inclusivity of the
Neighbourhood Forum.

4c. what is the overall impact of the Forum on the following equality strands NB:
Equality Impacts

Initiatives will have different impacts on different equality groups. You must consider the
ways in which the initiative may positively or negatively affect each of the different
protected groups, using evidence (such as consultation data, monitoring reports and
research information) to support your analysis.

The protected characteristics you must consider are:
e age
disability, includes those associated with disability i.e. careers
gender reassignment
pregnancy and maternity, includes those who are pregnant or have been on
maternity leave during the last 2 years
race
religion/belief
sex
Sexual orientation.

Please also consider whether there are other specific groups in the community who may
be affected (indicate Low/Medium/High):

Age Disability | Gender Race Religion/ | Pregnancy/ | Sexual
reassignment Belief maternity Orientation
Medium | Medium Low Medium | Low Medium Low




Page 216

4d. Identifying the Impact. Where you have indicated a medium or high impact on an
equality strand, please outline below the positive and negative impacts you
envisage

Age Equality — does the Forum impact upon any of the following:

1. Eliminating unlawful discrimination and harassment | Yes No v
based on someone’s age

2. Promoting equality of opportunity between different age | Yes v No

groups

Please provide an explanation of the impact below:

Positive Impact

As outlined in our response to Question 3, the Neighbourhood Forum shall:
e Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the
Neighbourhood Area
e Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to
explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase
community assets, and/or increase not for profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood
Area

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst other
principles):
o Meet the needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes within
the Neighbourhood Area, as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan;
e Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and;
e Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities.

Policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. The Neighbourhood Plan
must also be compliant with strategic policies within the Local Plans of the three councils, and
our Neighbourhood Area Study outlines the current planning policy framework for the area.
Without prejudice to this, we anticipate that the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will:

e Bring together community champions

¢ Improve the local environment in terms of air quality, energy and water consumption,
and noise levels
Improve transport and connectivity
Ensure delivery of community facilities in line with growth
Ensure that change benefits everyone, promoting affordability and diversity
Direct funding for local projects

We foresee that these outcomes, if achieved, would have a Medium positive impact on
promoting equality of opportunity between different age groups.

Negative Impact

The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an Equalities
Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated by adapting
and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to the three
local councils.

Disability Equality — does the Forum impact upon any of the following:




Page 217

1. Promoting equality of opportunity between disabled | YES 4 NO
persons and other persons

2. Eliminating disability discrimination that is unlawful | YES NO v
under the Disability Discrimination Act

3. Eliminating harassment of disabled persons that is | YES NO v

related to their disability

4. Promoting positive attitudes towards disabled persons | YES v NO
5. Encouraging participation by disabled persons in public | YES v NO
life

6. Taking steps to take account of disabled persons | YES v NO

disabilities, even where that involves treating disabled
persons more favourably than other persons

Please provide an explanation of the impact below:

Positive impact:

As outlined in our response to Question 3, the Neighbourhood Forum shall:
e Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the
Neighbourhood Area
e Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to
explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase
community assets, and/or increase not for profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood
Area

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst other
principles):
o Meet the needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes within
the Neighbourhood Area, as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan;
e Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and;
e Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities.

Policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. However, we anticipate that
the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will:

e Bring together community champions

e Improve the local environment in terms of air quality, energy and water consumption,
and noise levels
Improve transport and connectivity
Ensure delivery of community facilities in line with growth
Ensure that change benefits everyone, promoting affordability and diversity
Direct funding for local projects

Several of the above aspects may result in widened accessibility of public buildings and
spaces, private dwellings and non-residential floorspace.

We foresee that these outcomes, if achieved, would have a Medium positive impact on
promoting quality of opportunity between disabled persons and other persons, promoting
positive attitudes towards disabled persons, encouraging participation by disabled persons in
public life, and taking steps to take account of disabled persons’ disabilities, even where that
involves treating disabled persons more favourably than other persons.

Negative impact:

The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an Equalities
Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated by adapting
and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to the three

9




Page 218

local councils.

Gender Equality — does the Forum impact upon any of the following:

1. Eliminating unlawful discrimination and harassment | YES NO v
based on someone’s gender

2. Promoting equality of opportunity between men and | YES v NO

women

Please provide an explanation of the impact below:

Positive impact:

As outlined in our response to Question 3, the Neighbourhood Forum shall:
e Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the
Neighbourhood Area
e Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to
explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase
community assets, and/or increase not for profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood
Area

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst other
principles):
¢ Meet the needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes within
the Neighbourhood Area, as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan;
e Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and;
e Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities.

Policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. However, we anticipate that
the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will:
e Bring together community champions
Improve transport and connectivity
Ensure delivery of community facilities in line with growth
Ensure that change benefits everyone, promoting affordability and diversity
Direct funding for local projects

We foresee that these outcomes, if achieved, would have a Medium positive impact on
promoting equality of opportunity between men and women.

Negative impact:

The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an Equalities
Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated by adapting
and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to the three
local councils.

Race Equality — does the Forum impact upon any of the following:

1. Eliminating racial discrimination YES NO v
2. Promoting equality of opportunity YES v NO
3. Promoting good race relations YES v NO

Please provide an explanation of the impact below:

Positive impact:

10




Page 219

As outlined in our response to Question 3, the Neighbourhood Forum shall:
e Ensure that development contributes towards reducing economic inequality within the
Neighbourhood Area
e Work with Hackney, Haringey and Islington Councils and other organisations to
explore delivery models that reward patient capital, increase human capital, increase
community assets, and/or increase not for profit enterprise within the Neighbourhood
Area

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst other
principles):
¢ Meet the needs of those who have the poorest health and wellbeing outcomes within
the Neighbourhood Area, as identified in the Neighbourhood Plan;
e Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and,;
e Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities.

Policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. However, we anticipate that
the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will:
e Bring together community champions
Improve transport and connectivity
Ensure delivery of community facilities in line with growth
Ensure that change benefits everyone, promoting affordability and diversity
Direct funding for local projects

We foresee that these outcomes, if achieved, would have a Medium positive impact on
promoting equality of opportunity between different races, and promoting good relations.

Negative impact:

The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an Equalities
Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated by adapting
and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to the three
local councils.

Religion and/or Belief Equality — does the Forum impact upon any of the following:

1. Eliminating unlawful discrimination and harassment | YES NO v
based on someone’s actual or perceived religion

2. Promoting equality of opportunity between | YES v NO
religious/belief groups

Please provide an explanation of the impact below:

Positive impact:

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst other
principles):
e Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and,;
e Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities.

11




Page 220

Policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. However, we anticipate that
the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will:
e Bring together community champions
Improve transport and connectivity
Ensure delivery of community facilities in line with growth
Ensure that change benefits everyone, promoting affordability and diversity
Direct funding for local projects

We foresee that these outcomes, if achieved, would have a Low positive impact on promoting
equality of opportunity between different races, and promote good relations.

Negative impact:

The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an Equalities
Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated by adapting
and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to the three
local councils.

Sexual Orientation Equality - does the Forum impact upon any of the following:

1. Eliminating unlawful discrimination and harassment | YES NO v
based on someone’s actual or perceived sexual

orientation

2. Promoting equality of opportunity between people with | YES v NO

different sexual orientation

Please provide an explanation of the impact below:

Positive impact:

In making decisions, the Forum and Steering Group shall actively seek to (amongst other
principles):
e Understand how changes may affect people in different ways depending on their
particular circumstances, and;
e Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities.

Policies, masterplans and projects in the Neighbourhood Plan will be drafted based upon a
robust evidence base and engagement with the local community. However, we anticipate that
the Neighbourhood Plan initiative will:

Bring together community champions

Improve transport and connectivity

Ensure that change benefits everyone, promoting affordability and diversity

Direct funding for local projects

We foresee that these outcomes, if achieved, would have a Low positive impact on promoting
equality of opportunity between people with different sexual orientation.

Negative impact:

The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by an Equalities
Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated by adapting
and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to the three
local councils.

12




Page 221
4e. Addressing any negative impacts identified above. Where you have indicated
negative impacts on an equality strand, please outline your action plan including
any strategies or systems to address these equality or cohesion issues within
your Forum. Include any outcomes you expect

No negative impacts are currently anticipated in relation to any of the protected
characteristics. The Submission Version of the Neighbourhood Plan will be accompanied by
an Equalities Impact Assessment, with any identified negative impacts having been mitigated
by adapting and changing the vision, policies, masterplans and projects before submission to

the three local councils.

13



Appendix 4: Inclusivity Matrix based on Ward Characteristics (Ward profiles to be sent out with application forms)

In determining an application for a Neighbourhood Forum, the Council must have regard to the desirability of designating that

organisation or body:

0] Whose membership is drawn from different places in the neighbourhood area concerned
(i) Whose membership is drawn from different sections of the community
@ii)  Which has taken reasonable steps to ensure its membership is inclusive

Characteristics of Neighbourhood Area

A Protected Characteristics Study is appended to this Equalities Assessment.

Targeted groups for membership of Forum and future targeted consultation

Identify groups to be
targeted for Forum based
on % outlined above:

Engagement to date

Proposed engagement

Tenants and Residents
Associations

We will engage with representatives from relevant organisations,
including:

e Stroud Green Residents Association

e Andover Estate Tenants and Residents Association

Community and
Voluntary Groups/
Organisations

The following organisations have applied to become
Affiliated Organisation Forum Members:
e Crouch End Neighbourhood Forum
e Hermitage New River Association
e Stroud Green Conservation Area Advisory
Committee

We have engaged with representatives from:
e Emerging Crouch Hill and Hornsey Rise

We will continue to engage with representatives from relevant
organisations, including:
e Arab Advice Bureau
Arsenal in the Community
Caris Islington
Edible Landscapes
Elizabeth House Community Centre
Finsbury Park Community Hub
Hackney Council for Voluntary Service
Hanley Crouch Community Association (The Laundry)

14

2ee abed



Neighbourhood Plan group

e Finsbury Park Town Centre Management
Group

e Finsbury Park Trust

e Friends of Finsbury Park

e Friends of Gillespie Park

e Highbury Community Association

e Ladder Community Safety Partnership

Help on Your Doorstep (HOYD)
Holloway Neighbourhood Group
Islington Citizens

Islington Giving/Cripplegate Foundation
Islington Law Centre

Local Transition Network members
Safer Neighbourhoods Team

Stephens Ink Community Centre
Voluntary Action Islington

WoodCo

Traders Associations
and other business
groups

We have engaged with representatives from:
e Manor House Development Trust /
¢ Redmond Community Centre Stroud Green
Traders’ Association

We will continue to engage with representatives from relevant
organisations, including:

Blackstock Road Traders Association
Bright Sparks

Fonthill Road Traders Association
Hornsey Road Traders Association
Stroud Green Market

Health centres

We have engaged with representatives from:
e Torrance Dental Care

We will continue to engage with representatives from relevant
organisations, including:

BPAS Finsbury Park

Hanley Primary Care Centre
Hornsey Dental Centre

Smile and Shine Dental Practice
Stroud Green Clinic

Stroud Green Medical Centre
Village Practice

Age

We will engage with representatives from relevant organisations,

including:
e Alsen Day Centre for the Elderly
e Ambler primary school
e Arts & Media School Islington (IAMS)
e City and Islington College

15

gge abed



Christ the King primary school
Lennox House Care Home
Parkside Youth Club
Parkwood primary school
Pooles Park primary school
Pure Student Living

Sketch House

Sotheby Mews Day Centre

St Aidan's primary school

St Anne's Care Home

St Mark’s Church

Stroud Green primary school
Younger People (Platform Youth Hub)

Ethnicity We will continue to engage with representatives from relevant
organisations, including:
e Caribbean Community Centre
e Community Language Support Services (CLSS)
e Islington Chinese Association
e One True Voice (Somali women's organisation)
e Turkish, Kurdish and Cypriot Women's Welfare Group
Religion We have engaged with representatives from: We will continue to engage with representatives from relevant
e Islington Faiths Forum organisations, including:
e Muslim Welfare House e Places of worship
e St Thomas the Apostle, Finsbury Park e Inter-faith / multi-faith organisations
Sex We will engage with representatives from relevant organisations,

including:
e Relevant Safer Neighbourhoods Teams

16

yze abed



Disability

We have engaged with representatives from:

e Pedal Power Cycling Club
e Transport for London

We will engage with representatives from relevant organisations,
including:

Mind

Sexual Orientation

We will engage with representatives from relevant organisations,
including:

Circle / Stonewall Housing

Cultural, leisure and
sporting organisations

We have engaged with representatives from:

e Friends of Finsbury Park
e Park Theatre
e Silver Bullet

Forum Members include workers from:
e Furtherfield Gallery and Commons

We will continue to engage with representatives from relevant
organisations, including:

Blackstock Triangle Gardeners

Blighty Coffee

British Military Fitness

Finsbury Park Boats

Finsbury Park Parkrun

Finsbury Park Sports Partnership
Friends of Grenville Gardens

Friends of the Parkland Walk

Live music venues, including The World’s End, Zelman
Drinks, Orleans Wine Bar, and WB Yeats
Live Nation (Wireless Festival)

Live Nation (music event promoters)
Rowans Tenpin Bowl

Sobell Leisure Centre

Wilberforce Gardeners

17

Gee abed



2222222

Appendix 7



Page 227

Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area

Rl

R
Education
Facility

&
VE

Education : a L
Facility Education _

Facility

TOPSFIEL
RITCHES RCA
%0 A

D“Th SRO

Al e

=3

BRAMPTUN RCAD

Hospital
I

=

Education
Facility

Education
= Facility
<L B voN _——
R ’

S

F9on a1313H

Education
Facility

)
Education

Education Facility

Facility

"é' ili I N P > T -
'E_&“% : s
HORNG <> - C .
RINSEY ! . : ‘/!'
FARDENS Y b Or Education
> \ Sy Facility g
> 20 ;
Education
Education ) . o Facility
: i e o East Reservair

5 Facility

] -
/X

g Education

G:ua tjr.:llfI
ff

Facility

Medical
Care
Wesi
RHesarvair

Educatian
Education ) Eam:i!itx.r %
Facility

[

Education Y (o Finshuer' Facility

Facility : _ .
oK Brownswood ark\ \_ G0 : S

Facility

ducation

v tation

g 5
Education 5 % 2 /_\ »d

Facility " o Fi "5" "
Station

-

&~ Facility

QUILL STREET

STOCK ROAD

Education
 Facility &

RARK

HISHEURY MEWY
H WALK

CHLURC

Medical ﬂ

Care

I

AHDILAUN

T

= ~ Education
Cg Facility

MY LURE

o
=

Education
Facility

EDEN GROVE

HIGHABURY GRANGE

WINSTON RDAD

Highbury

CALEDOMIAN ROAD
_____\_;'

/ REFLE_LGH
ABERDEEN ROAD

r-.

o
(]
&

Facility

DUEE qsxﬂ,w

g d-HOLHIHA3d

I L—nv e e oy (,)
Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2013

—ERAMF I A

200 0 200 400 600 3800 1000 m




This page is intentionally left blank



Islington /

Name Consulte Date Summary of Representation In Favour [Against Hac_kney/ Council Response
e Type Haringey /
General
Supports the Neighbourhood Area and Forum. A Neighbourhood Plan would benefit Support 's noted. The kgy
: L ’ . issues to be addressed in the
the area and provide greater community involvement in the area. Key issues to be . )
- i ) ) Neighbourhood Plan will be
. Individual/ addressed through the NP would be: development of Finsbury Park station and x forum and . .
Sonja Rose 16/05/18 . ) . : . : General borne out of forum discussions
worker surrounding commerce; traffic flow at the junction of Seven Sisters Road, Stroud area .
] . . : and community engagement to
Green Road and Blackstock Road; commercial cleaning; access and security to . . -
Finsbury Park; ongoing help for homeless people firstly establish visions and
’ ' objectives of the plan.
Highways . : .
Andree Gregory England 16/05/18 Having examined the consultation documents there are no comments to make. n/a n/a General Noted.
National Grid have five underground cables within the proposed Neighbourhood Area.
Hannah Lorna  |National 16/05/18 Whilst there is no implications for National Grid Gas Distribution Intermediate/High n/a n/a General Information regarding National
Bevins Grid Pressure aparatus there may be Low Pressure/Medium Pressure Gas Distribution Grid infrastrucure is noted.
pipes present within proposed development sites.
Objects tq the inclusion on Flnst_)qry Park park in the proposed neighbourhood area Noted - it is recomended that
because it would mean people living almost a kilometre away on Hornsey Road would ) . .
. , . the inclusion of a Regional Park
have a greater influence over the park's development than those living closer on o
) . . : : within the proposed Forum Area
Michael Individual/ Endymion Road or Rowley Gardens Estate. The proposal goes against neighbourhood x for . :
: 20/05/18 . o . : . ; . Haringey could be to the detriment of
Anderson resident planning principles of not cutting up neighbourhood or administrative areas. Finsbury area . e
. o . . : other neighbourhoods within the
Park is wholly within Haringey which is not part of the proposed forum. It is . :
: L . vicinity of the Park and so this
unacceptable that an unelected and unrepresentative organisation is calling the shots .
o : area should be omited.
when defining the geographical extent of the proposed forum.
Supports the Neighbourhood Forum. Consultation exercises carried out by the group in
residential areas was good and the opinions qf peo_ple living to the n_orth a_nd east of Noted - it is recomended that
the park were listened to. However, peoples views in respect to the inclusion of the ) . .
. . . . the inclusion of a Regional Park
park itself were not taken into account. Strongly objects to the Neighbourhood Area as o
. . . within the proposed Forum Area
Hugh Flouch Individual/ 23/05/18 a clear majority of those living to the north and east of the park do not feel part of the « for forum ¥ for Haringe could be to the detriment of
g resident Finsbury Park area but identify strongly with the park itself. The Neighbourhood Plan area gey

will have an explicit role in the development of Haringey's Local Plan. If the park is
included in the boundary it would give residents on one side of the park undue
influence over it. The current proposal does not reflect democratic principles and the
Council is urged to ask the group to reconsider the boundary and exclude the park.

other neighbourhoods within the
vicinity of the Park and so this
area should be omited.

6¢¢ 9bed

Z Xipuaddy



Objects to the inclusion on Finsbury Park park in the proposed neighbourhood area.
The park is a resource for many people across the three boroughs and residents to the
east of the park, outside the neighbourhood area will have less influence over the park
than people on the west. Concerned about an unbalanced policy position where
Stroud Green residents priorities are placed above those of Haringey and Manor
House. There is a higher population density forecast for the east of the park and while

Noted - it is recomended that
the inclusion of a Regional Park
within the proposed Forum Area

Gavin Ball Ind!wduall 24/05/18 the polltlc.al orgqnlsatlon might not bg as sophisticated the utility thg park offers to x for Haringey could be to the detriment of
resident those residents is greater that those in Stroud Green. It would be similarly area other neiahbourhoods within the
inappropriate to include the park in any future Haringey or Manor House vicinit ofgthe Park and so this
Neighbourhood Area and it is recommended the park remains under Local Authority area syhould be omited
control as befits its role as a local and sub-regional open space. Reference should be '
made to the Open Space Accessibility Study carried out by LB Haringey and the
Haringey Site Allocation: SA29 Arena Retail Park which seeks to ensure as part of any
redevelopment of that site an improved access to the Park from the north-east.
Policy proposals should be in line with the National Planning Policy Framework and the
key principles in concerning the natural and local environment in paragraph 109. . -
Consideration of natural environment policies in the Local Plan should be made and ﬂh;ﬁg\]/zogh;rgdtfIr?;igﬁg?es
there may be potential to provide more detail as to how policies are applied. . 9
. Natural 2 . . . . . : . policy and be in general
Sharon Jenkins 25/05/18 Information is provided in the consultation submission relating to things to consider n/a n/a General N
England . : . : _ : conformity with the Local Plan.
when making a neighbourhood plan such as information sources; environmental This includes national and local
designations such as AONB's and Local Wildlife Sites; natural environment issues to environmental policies
consider such as habitats and protected species; ways to improve the natural P '
environment such as greening roofs and creating ponds.
Was not aware of previous consultations which included agreeing to the NOt?d . |t_|s recomend_ed that
. . . the inclusion of a Regional Park
neighbourhood area and boundary. Respondent lives on Alroy Road adjacent to the within the proposed Forum Area
. Individual/ boundary. Would like to have been included in the boundary along with all streets x for , prop .
Colin Barron ) 25/05/18 . . . . : . Haringey could be to the detriment of
resident surrounnding Finsbury Park itself. Residential streets would benefit from a area other neiahbourhoods within the
neighbourhood plan, for example conservation area status. A natural boundary might vicinit ofgthe Park and so this
have included the whole of the N4 postcode. area syhould be omited
Noted - it is recomended that
Lives in Haringey ward and does not like the inclusion of Finsbury Park in the I/Ciihli:Ctlrl::IO?oOfoas:jelg(I)OrE?r: Z?(;l;
Individual/ boundary. There was no consultation with residents in Haringey about including the x for , prop :
Ant Elder ) 25/05/18 : ) . ) : : Haringey could be to the detriment of
resident park. The working group asked if Haringey residents wanted to be included which most area

people responded no. Respondent likes and uses Finsbury Park a lot.

other neighbourhoods within the
vicinity of the Park and so this
area should be omited.

0g¢ abed



Tessa Craig

Canal and
River
Trust

17/05/18

Confirms that the Canal and River Trust have no land or waterspace in the
Neighbourhood Plan area, therefore have no comments to make

n/a

n/a

General

Noted.

Richard Parish

Historic
England

31/05/18

Generally advise that boundaries reflect or encompass the conservation area
boundary to help ensure conservation area policies can be applied in a consistent
manner. The proposed boundary fully encompasses the Stroud Green CA (both
Haringey and Islington) and the Tollington Park CA (Islington) and has been clearly
drawn to follow existing boundaries. The proposed area also includes the Finsbury
Park, a Grade Il Registered Park and Garden. Given that one of the principle
motivations of the plan is to address cross borough boundary issues, the inclusion of
these heritage assets in their entirety is beneficial. In the event of developing the
neighbourhood plan: the Tollington Park CA is currently identified as 'at risk' on the
annual Register of Designated Heritage Assets at Risk. Islington has one of the
highest number of conservation areas in London identified as 'at risk' and the current
Tollington Park Design Guidelines 2002 would benefit from review. Haringey does not
appear to have an up to date and adopted conservation area appraisal for Stroud
Green CA. The neighbourhood plan process could improve understanding of the
historic environment and identify opportunities to enhance it. There may also be
opportunities to work with the local authorities to address those issues contributing to
at risk heritage assets and update the evidence bases. The extent of 'risk’ is
increasingly used as a performance indicator in environmental assessment and the
need for an up to date evidence base and a psoitve strategy for the conservation of the
historic environment is key as set out in policy 126 of the NPPF. The proposed area
also includes listed heritage assets including three Grade Il listed churches,
Woodstock Road School, Grade II* listed former Rainbow Theatre as well as a number
of residential and commercial properties. The area also falls in an area of the
protected viewing corridor from Alexandra Palace to St Paul's Cathedral. Planning
officers should be the first point of call for heritage advice but Historic England can
also provide advice.

n/a

n/a

General

Noted.

Claire Robinson

Individual/
resident

04/06/18

Has been a resident for 18 years and fully supports the application. The intersection of
three boroughs, TfL and Netowrk Rail at the core of the area has led to a lack of
coherence which a neighbourhood plan would help to address.

X area and
forum

General

Support is noted

Cecil George

Openreac
h

08/06/18

Openreach records indicate that no apparatus exists within the area of proposed
works. A site survey has not been carried out at this stage, and therefore if any
Openreach apparatus is affected by your works, contact should be made to provide
the necessary Estimate of Costs for alteration/diversion. The Openreach network is
unhanced on a daily basis. Therefore, to make certain no apparatus exists, it is
recommended on site advice is obtained.

n/a

n/a

General

Noted.

Tee abed



Respondent would like to be kept informed of the next stages of the Finsbury Park and

Anna Gavriel Deloitte  [14/06/18 Stroud Green Neighbourhood Plan n/a n/a General Noted.
Views from strategic transport perspective - not property arm.
Proposed area - TfL has no specific comments to make on the proposed area;
however, it is noted that TfL has a number of assets and landholdings within this area.
These include parts of the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN), London
Underground infrastructure and bus stops. Although not immediately within the area,
Transport part of one of the six new cycle routes announced by the Mayor in January 2018,
for includes a proposed cycle route from Camden to Tottenham Hale.
Fatime Moreno {London  |21/06/18 n/a n/a General Noted.
(strategic Consultation - TfL would wish to be involved in the neighbourhood planning process
arm) when it impacts or could affect our transport operations and infrastructure or when
significant transport policy issues are raised. We would therefore be grateful if you
could continue to consult us as neighbourhood planning for Finsbury Park and Stroud
Green is progressed. In addition TfL may have property interests in the neighbourhood
area and thus we should involved separately in this circumstance by contacting
propertyconsultation@tfl.gov.uk
Residents who live on Hermitage, Eade and Vale Road and indeed other surrounding "
) : ) : Noted - it is recomended that
roads which are not included in the proposed forum are expressing concern about the . : )
Labour . ) . . . the inclusion of a Regional Park
. appropriateness of the boundary. Finsbury Park is their local park and they are/will be -
Councillor . . ) . : . within the proposed Forum Area
affected by the decisions made in the future without necessarily having a voice. x for : :
Cllr Barbara Blakd Seven 21/06/18 ) : ) Haringey could be to the detriment of
. Residents are concerned that there will not be the avenue for the consultation on area . -
Sisters issues which may affect them. The Neighbourhood Area appears to cover mainl other neighbourhoods within the
Ward y ' g PP y vicinity of the Park and so this

Finsbury Park — could it be clarified what other areas it will cover. Will there be a
budget for the forum. Where will this come from and how much will it be?

area should be omited.

z2se abed



Sarah Barron

NHS

22/06/18

We welcome the designation of Finsbury Park and Stroud Green as a Neighbourhood
Area as the opportunity to identify community assets and to reuse or share premises.
We also believe it has the potential to improve the local environment and make a
positive contribution to health and wellbeing. It is also hoped it will improve transport
and connectivity which in turn could improve the physical access to local services,
including healthcare services. We also appreciate the opportunity to explore cross
boundary issues across Hackney, Haringey and Islington and it is hoped that the final
plan will help prioritise local projects and help with the allocation of neighbourhood
Community Infrastructure Levy across three boroughs, which could include
improvements to GP premises to provide additional capacity, where needed.
However, it is important for us to stress that healthcare is commissioned by borough of
GP practice registration. Therefore whilst we welcome joint working to ensure
integrated services for residents, we need to be mindful about how we work across
borough boundaries and the funding flows that this entails. We also feel that the
EForum oriorities and subseauent nlan should take into account the imnact of the

x forum and
area

General

Noted.

Tristan Appleby

Indivudual
[resident

24/06/18

Respondent strongly objects to the inclusion of Finsbury Park itslef within the proposed
Neighbourhood Area boundary. The park is used by a number of local neighbourhoods
which share this amenity equally, therefore it would be unacceptable for residnets in
one of these areas to gain a significantly greater degree of control over it. The
proposed Neighbourhood Forum's own consultation appears to be thorough when
defining which residential streets to include according to the wishes of residents asked.
However, the inclusion of the park does not seem to have been subject to the same
level of diligence with strong objections from Haringey residents appearing to be
disregarded. The inclusion of the park seems to be done at the behest of the Friends
of Finsbury Park who were apparently unsure about supporting the proposal unless the
whole park was included. There do not appear to be any existing adminisrative or
physical boundaries which justify the attachment of any part of the park exclusively to
the Stroud Green area. There are a number of existing mechanisms which afford
protection to the interests of residents and park users. This includes an active
Stakeholder Group which includes representation on behalf of local residents (in the
form of local councillors, resident associations and the Friends of Finsbury Park) wich
a Neighbourhood Forum would presumably also be invited to join.

x for
area

Haringey

Noted - it is recomended that
the inclusion of a Regional Park
within the proposed Forum Area
could be to the detriment of
other neighbourhoods within the
vicinity of the Park and so this
area should be omited.

cee abed



This page is intentionally left blank






This page is intentionally left blank



Page 237 Agenda ltem 13

Report for: Cabinet 11" September 2018

Title: Hornsey Library Refurbishment - Budget Virement

Report

Authorised by: Richard Grice, Director of Customers, Transformation and
Resources

Lead Officer: Judith Walker, Head of Customer Services and Libraries

Ward(s) affected: Crouch End and Hornsey

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Key decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1. To seek approval from the Cabinet to increase the scope of the original £1m
Hornsey Library refurbishment project to include critical maintenance, Health &
Safety issues and improve carbon management. This will increase the total
cost of the combined project to £3,277,000. The cost of this will be contained
within Corporate Landlord’s and carbon management budgets and will be split
over two financial years.

1.2. To seek Cabinet approval to vire £2,266,000 over a two year period (18/19 &
19/20) from the Corporate Landlord’s capital and carbon management budgets
to the Hornsey Library refurbishment project. This is to deal with critical
maintenance, and building fabric improvements for the Hornsey Library
project.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Hornsey Library is a grade Il listed, Council-owned property. It is one of our
three main libraries and as such is an important civic building. This additional
capital investment is vital in ensuring the building is in sound structural
condition. The capital funds complement the investment in internal
refurbishment, and together the whole project should result in a revived library
inside and out.

2.2 Hornsey Library is extremely well-used and provides key services to our
communities in Crouch End, Hornsey and much further afield. These services
undoubtedly contribute to the Council’s corporate priorities. As well as a fine
book stock, the library includes an exhibition gallery; café area; internal
garden and a lovely children’s library. In addition it provides a home for an
amazing collection of musical scores used by orchestras and musicians from
around the country.

2.3 The library is in a very prominent position, adjacent to Hornsey Town Hall.
Renovation of the library will assure its status as a civic institution and will be

Haringey



Page 238

complemented by the new arts centre being developed as part of the Town
Hall renovations.

3 Recommendations
It is recommended that Cabinet

3.1 Approves the virement of £2,266,000 from the Corporate Landlord and Carbon
Management budgets over a two year period. This will allow for critical
maintenance; health and safety works and structural and building fabric
improvements within Hornsey Library as set out in section 9.1.2 of the report.

4 Reasons for decision

4.1 Hornsey Library is a 55 year old, grade Il listed building. It was designed as a
purpose-built working library. The library currently requires a significant
amount of maintenance, as it still has many of its original fittings such as the
heating system, building fabric (windows, roof and wall cladding), and
electrical systems etc. The majority of these are now failing and causing
operational and safety issues. There are also accessibility issues to some
elements of the building.

4.2 The proposed budget increase and associated virement will enable the
refurbishment project to proceed, reducing the risk of re-work which could be
required with resulting delays if the maintenance is carried out at a later date.
It will allow the library to continue to provide modern, fit-for-purpose and fully
accessible services, meeting the needs of the local community in the future.
The works are due to start on site in January 2019 and take approximately 7-8
months to complete.

4.3 The investment into Hornsey Library will mirror the commercial investment into
the town hall development and will represent the Council’s commitment to
investment into its libraries and infrastructure, retaining a significant well-loved
landmark building as a Council asset. The structural works will enable an
already well used facility to continue to function properly into the future.

4.4 It is anticipated that investment in new energy equipment and insulation, will
reduce operational running costs for the Council through energy consumption
and ongoing routine maintenance. The inclusion of solar PV panels will
promote the Zero Carbon ambition of the Council to the wider community.

5 Alternative options considered

5.1 A ‘do nothing’ option is not considered appropriate as it would see the
building continue to deteriorate and continue to fail the public through building
closures from faults such as no heating or leaking roofs/windows, to safety
issues from failing masonry panels.

5.2 Only carry out internal modifications to improve the service, the original
scheme. This was discounted as it does not address the building condition

Haringey



Page 239

issues such as the leaking roof and windows, the boiler which is constantly
breaking down; and the external cement wall panels which are crumbling; or
the uneven pavements which are health and safety risks. If these works were
carried out separately at a later date then there would be a significant amount
of rework to the newly installed fixtures and finishes, as well as the potential
risk of adhoc library closures.

5.3 Carry out all maintenance within the building. This option was discounted
as it would mean an additional cost of £1,000,000 above this proposal, and it
IS recognised that there are limited funds within the Council. The building and
operational maintenance requirements can be met by the virement funds
requested. It is also expected that the remaining works will be carried out over
the longer term period and will not have any impact on the proposed scheme.
6 Background information
6.1 In 2015 the Council approved a capital programme of works to improve and
modernise Haringey Library Services. This included all six branch libraries,
Wood Green and Hornsey main libraries. (Marcus Garvey library was not
included as it had been recently refurbished). Details of the overall library
programme budget is shown below, all costs are indicative and a thorough
tender process will be undertaken to ensure value for money.
£k
Hornsey Library Internal 1000
Modifications
All other Libraries in Haringey Council
Wood Green 450
Muswell Hill 85
Alexandra Pk 110
Highgate 87
Stroud Green 87
Coombes Croft 42
St Ann’s 139
IT 500
Misc 300
Total 1800
Overall total 2800
6.2 The Hornsey Library project was the single largest investment within the
programme at an estimated £1,000,000. The original scope for this money
was to improve the internal spaces so that they could provide a modern, fit for-
purpose library and assumed that the building was in good condition with no
urgent maintenance issues.
6.3 The Hornsey Library project started to be developed in 2017/18. The original

project assumptions were that Hornsey Library was in a good state of repair

Haringey



Page 240

and would only require internal adaptations. However, the project, in
conjunction with the corporate landlord, has identified that the 55 year old
building is in a poor state of repair and requires significant building
improvements to ensure it is operationally fit for purpose and complies with
building regulations. From the initial feasibility study the following additional
high level costs have been identified:

Base case to improve service £1011k | Already approved with works to improve
operational layout,
internal finishes etc.

End of Life Maintenance £1545k | Heating replacement, repairs to fabric roof,
glazing, drainage, lift etc.

Health and Safety building- £105k | Unsafe decorative concrete panels. Paving,
related issues W/C ventilation

Building efficiency £616k | Improved glazing, wall and roof insulation and
improvements Photo Voltaic Panels

Total £ 3277k of which £1011K is already approved and

funded this request is for an additional £2,266Kk.

7 Position from Corporate Landlord

7.1 The corporate landlord has agreed that the end of life maintenance and health
and safety issues are required and supports the need for them to be carried
out, but wishes to note the impact on their capital budget of £1650k. The
corporate landlord has already agreed to carry out urgent boiler replacement
works this summer at a cost of between £300k-£400k from the corporate
landlord budget which is to be approved under a delegated authority. The
replacement boiler will be more energy efficient and should also reduce
ongoing maintenance costs essential to maintaining the service during the
winter months.

7.2 The corporate landlord is considering the overall maintenance requirements
for Haringey’'s corporate estate and is developing a strategic forward
maintenance plan for these corporate buildings. The overall capital budget for
works to all corporate buildings is £2.5m per annum until 2019/20. The
proposed Corporate Landlord works to Hornsey Library equates to 27.9%
(£696,000) of the total Corporate Landlord capital budget for 18/19 (before the
2017/18 capital carry forward) and 51% (£1,283,00) in 19/20 . It is recognised
that these works need to be done at the same time as the main library
scheme. If they are carried out later then there would be a significant level of
rework required on fixtures and finishes etc.

7.3 Whilst the Corporate Landlord is supportive of the Hornsey Library project
with this capital funding, it needs to be recognised that this will impact on their
ability to deliver other capital schemes across the wider corporate estate. It is

Haringey




7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 241

recommended that the decision to allocate this level of funds to one site is
made corporately. There may need to be an increase in the corporate
landlords budget in 19/20 to cover the reduced budget from carrying out the
works at Hornsey Library. Should this be necessary then a bid will be made as
part of the Council’s budget setting process for 2019/20 and beyond. The
corporate landlord will be fully involved in the scoping and tendering process
for these works.

A further £616k is also required for the building efficiency improvements. This
is to be part funded by the carbon management teams budget for energy
reduction c.£75k and it has been agreed to use the income from carbon-
offsetting funds raised from the adjacent town hall development £212k. The
remaining £329k is to be funded by the corporate landlord.

Energy running costs for the library are £49k/yr these are set to increase to
£116/yr within the next 10yrs. By doing these works energy costs will reduce
to £66k/yr this gives a straight-line payback of 7 years. The council will also
reduce its carbon footprint by 51 t/CO2/yr.

A separate Cabinet report is to be submitted for the award for the main
contract in November 2018. Works are due to start on site in January 2019
and complete in early August 2019.

Contribution to strategic outcomes

The Hornsey Library project looks to improve the service offering within the
library. The projects aims are to improve Customer Perception and
Operational Efficiency. These proposals are primarily aligned with the
Corporate Priority X but are also aligned with the Corporate Plan priorities
1,2,4 & 5. Works under the scheme include providing a modern operational
layout through the use of new and refurbished furniture, fixtures and fittings,
and redecoration as well as improved IT and connectivity.

The work proposed will improve the energy performance of the building. This
will reduce the buildings current energy cost of £49,000 to £28,000 per year.
With the Council’s energy prices expected to rise significantly each year over
the next few years, this investment will reduce future financial risk to the
Council. Alongside this the refurbishment will offer maintenance savings: both
of these demonstrate value for money to the Council.

The library is a well-used public and civic building. The inclusion of solar
panels on the roof, signage on energy generation and usage, and new energy
efficient lighting systems will demonstrate leadership in carbon reduction and
promote the Council’'s Zero Carbon by 2050 commitment.

Haringey



Page 242

8.4 The refurbishment of the library offers the Council the opportunity to improve
accessibility of the building to ensure that it can be used by all sections of the
community.

9. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

9.1 The report is recommending revising the scope of the original Hornsey Library
scheme to incorporate health & safety improvements and essential building
fabric repairs. The existing budget of £1.011m needs to be increased by
£2.266 to £3.277m.

9.1.2 It is proposed that the corporate landlord budget will contribute £0.696m in
2018/19 & £1.283m in 2019/20, and the carbon management team budget will
contribute £0.123m in 2018/19 and £0.164m in 2019/20. If approved, the
budgets will be amended accordingly. The proposed virements are within the
overall agreed capital programme budgets.

9.1.3 The scheme also produces lower running costs for the building. These will
contribute to the achievement of the Council’'s MTFS.

9.2 Strategic Procurement

9.2.1 SP acknowledges the requirement to seek approval from the Cabinet to
increase the scope of the original £1m Hornsey Library Service refurbishment
project to include critical maintenance, address health and safety issues and
improve carbon management.

9.2.2 SP notes that the original systems and fittings, such as the heating system,
building fabric (windows, roof wall cladding) and electrical systems, are now
starting to fail, and cause related operational and safety problems.

9.2.3 SP has no objection to the approvals sought in this report.

9.3 Legal
9.3.1 The Assistant Director, Corporate Governance has been consulted in the
preparation of this report, and makes the following comments.

9.3.2 Confirmation can be given of the fact that Cabinet has the Constitutional
authority to agree the Recommendations contained in this report. Reliance is
placed on Cabinet’s Financial management and resources powers under Part
Three, Section C of the Constitution in relation to Recommendation 3.1
(increased budget) and Part 4, Section 1 of the Financial Regulations in
relation to Recommendation 3.2 (virement above £250,000).

9.4 Equality

9.4.1 The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to
have due regard to the need to:

Haringey



Page 243

a) tackle discrimination, harassment and victimisation based upon the
protected characteristics;

b) advance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not;

c) foster good relations between people who share those characteristics
and people who do not.

The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex, sexual orientation. Marriage and
civil partnership status applies to the first part of the duty.

9.4.2 An equality impact assessment (EqlIA) is to be completed for the main contract
to be let.

9.4.3 The potential to provide improved accessibility to the mezzanine level of the
library by way of a lift has been identified through Stage 2 design. This will be
confirmed during the next stage contract award.

9 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
N/A

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 245 Agenda Iltem 14

Report for: Cabinet — 11 September 2018

Title: The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) — use of
legislation and updated procedures

Report
Authorised by : Bernie Ryan
AD Corporate Governance

Lead Officer: Minesh Jani
Head of Audit and Risk Management
Ext: 5973
Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

Report for Key/
Non-Key Decision: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Toinform Cabinet about issues relevant to the use of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000; and provide a refreshed policy for
approval.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (“RIPA”) provides a statutory
framework for public authorities to use covert investigatory techniques such as
surveillance, where necessary and proportionate, for the purpose of preventing
or detecting crime.

2.2  The Council uses RIPA infrequently, but needs to comply with legislation and
report the use of directed surveillance to members. | am satisfied that the
Council uses the powers afforded to it under the RIPA legislation appropriately,
as signified by the approval of the requested directed surveillance applications
and the feedback from the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (now called
the Investigatory Powers Commissioner).

2.3  The changes to the policy contained in this report correspond with guidance
issued by the Home Office and the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner in
2016. On that basis | recommend that Cabinet approve the policy.

3. Recommendations
3.1  The Cabinet notes the use of RIPA by the Council; and

3.2 The Cabinet approves the amended RIPA policy at Appendix 1.

4. Reasons for decision

4.1  The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 requires members to be advised about
the use of powers under RIPA and to approve the Council’s policy for the use of
directed surveillance.

Haringey


mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Page 246

Alternative options considered
Not applicable.

Background information

On 25 September 2000 the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) was
brought into effect in England and Wales. The purpose of the Act was to ensure
that all public authorities were able to carry out directed (covert) surveillance on
a statutory basis without breaching The Human Rights Act 1998, Article 8, the
right to privacy. RIPA enables local authorities to carry out certain types of
surveillance activity as long as specified procedures are followed, for the
purpose of pregventing and detecting crime. The information obtained as a
result of surveillance operations can be relied upon in court proceedings,
provided RIPA is complied with. The Home Office issues Codes of Parctice for
exercise of local authority powers.

Surveillance includes; monitoring, observing or listening to persons, monitoring
or observing their movements, conversations or their other activities or
communications, and the recording of anything monitored, observed or listened
to in the course or surveillance. It also includes surveillance by or with the
assistance of a surveillance device.

The acquisition and use by Local Authorities of certain telephone and other
communications data (ACD) (not including content) is also regulated by the Act.
The authority uses the services of the National Anti Fraud Network (NAFN) for
this purpose.

The Act also regulates the use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS).

Local authorities must obtain judicial approval before RIPA can be used. All
applications must also be authorised by a Justice of the Peace before they can
take effect and the Council has to apply to the Magistrates Court to grant an
order approving the authorisation. This requirement applies to all areas of RIPA,
including directed surveillance, and acquisition of communications data.

Local authority use of RIPA is restricted to offences that carry a maximum
sentence impreisonment for six months or more, with some exceptions relating
to the sale of alcohol and tobacco to children.

The use and application of RIPA legislation is monitored by the Investigatory
Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO). Visits are made to local authorities to
monitor compliance with RIPA legislation by IPCO and they require annual
returns and performance information to be made.

The Codes of Practice state that elected members should review the authority’s
use of RIPA annually and approve its policy.

Operational Procedures in Haringey

The Home Office Code of Practice recommends that a member of the
organisation’s corporate leadership team should be the Senior Responsible
Officer for oversight of RIPA. Within Haringey, the Senior Responsible Officer

Haringey



Page 247

(SRO) is the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, who has been
provided with guidance on the SRO role and its responsibilities.

7.2 ltis proposed that the officers listed in the appendix to Appendix 1 approve
RIPA forms prior to seeking judicial approval. These officers have been trained
in the use and application of RIPA. Refresher training is provided on a regular
basis to ensure all officers are kept up to date with their roles and
responsibilities.

7.3 Haringey has produced its own local guidance notes for RIPA, which are in
accordance with the Home Office’s requirements; and these are circulated to all
officers involved in RIPA when updates to the legislation or standard forms are
issued. These operational guidance notes are also published on the Council’s
intranet site.

7.4  Haringey makes very limited use of RIPA legislation and the Council has always
complied fully with the legislative requirements. A summary of the total number
of applications to use RIPA (including ACD) from 2014/15 to 2017/18 is detailed
in Table 1 below.

Table 1
Year 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
applications | applications | applications | applications

Service area

Community 1 1 0 0

Safety &

Regulatory

Services

Total 1 1 0 0

7.5 Table 2 below provides details of the use made of RIPA during 2014/15 to
2017/18.

Table 2

Application

Service area Use applied for authorised

Covert surveillance to capture evidence of Yes

Community Safety & | serious anti-social behaviour, including

Regulatory Services | alleged drug dealing, within housing blocks

2014/15

Community Safety & | Covert surveillance to capture evidence of Yes

Regulatory Services | the trade of illegally slaughtered

2015/16 sheep/goat carcasses.

7.6  The Council was last subject to an inspection visit from the Office of the
Surveillance Commissioner during November 2016. The main points reported
by the inspector were:

e The single recommendation made in the previous inspection (2013) — to
ensure necessity and proportionality were appropriately considered by
authorising officers — was confirmed as being implemented;

e The Council makes infrequent use of the statutory powers;

Page 3 of 5

Haringey




7.7

7.8

7.9

9.1
9.1.1

9.2
9.21

Page 248

e There is a well structured training arrangement in place to ensure
knowledge of the legislation and continuity for authorising officers;

e The Council’s policy and procedures comply with relevant legislation and
guidance;

e The review of the two applications in 2014/15 and 2015/16 for directed
surveillance completed since the previous inspection were both approved.
Some minor procedural points were raised in relation to ensuring that dates
of approval, expiry and cancellation were correctly stated;

e Although the Council’s policy referenced the use of social media by staff
and the consideration of whether this needed a RIPA authorisation in
accordance with guidance issued, the inspector recommended that further
training and guidance should be considered for those services who may use
social media as part of their routine processes to ensure that there is a full
understanding of the circumstances of the use. This was the only
recommendation made.

The recommendation made by the inspector has been accepted by the SRO.
The Chief Surveillance Commissioner has been advised of the Council’s
acceptance and implementation of the recommendation by the SRO.

On 16 November 2017, the Home Office launched a public consultation on
three revised codes of practice; Covert surveillance and property interference
code, Protected electronic information code and CHIS (Covert Human
Intelligence Sources) code. The consultation closed on 28 December 2017, and
the Home Office has now considered the representations made regarding the
revised codes of practice.

The revised codes were published on 15 August 2018, these will be considered
by the RIPA Co-ordinator and where required, the Council’s policy and
procedures updated. The SRO and the officers able to authorise directed
surveillance and the use of covert intelligencewill be updated of the changes
and provided training as appropriate.

Contribution to strategic outcomes
The Council needs to comply with relevant legislation to ensure that directed
surveillance is undertaken lawfully.

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Chief Finance Officer

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
within Audit & Risk Management and other services to undertake and manage
RIPA in accordance with statutory requirements is contained and managed
within the relevant services’ revenue budgets.

Legal

The Assistant Director, Corporate Governance has been consulted in the
preparation of this report, and in noting that the RIPA procedures follow
legislative requirements / industry guidance and best practice, has no
comments.

Haringey



Page 249

9.3 Equality
9.3.1 The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equalities Act (2010) to
have due regard to:

eTackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
(formerly gender) and sexual orientation;

eAdvance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not; and

eFoster good relations between people who share those characteristics
and people who do not.

9.3.2 The Council’s RIPA policy actively seeks to promote transparency in decision-
making. The Council ensures that requests for authorisation to use RIPA
consider any potential impact on individuals and groups who share protected
characteristics.

9.3.3 The report notes that the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 strengthens existing
Human Rights legislation, safeguarding individuals from inappropriate levels of
covert surveillance.

10. Use of Appendices
Appendix 1 — RIPA Policy July 2018.

11. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
N/A

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Page 251 Hﬁmﬁgﬁf
LONDON

REGULATION OF
INVESTIGATORY
POWERS ACT 2000

HARINGEY POLICY

www.haringey.gov.uk



OFFICIAL Page 252

H

arin

LONDON

gey

Policy History

Version | Summary of Contact Implementation | Review EqlA
Change Date Date Date
10.1 * Updated use of Head of Audit & | November 2015 October June
open source Risk 2016 2014
material guidance | Management
+ Updated
Authorised
Officer list
10.2 * Updated Head of Audit & | March 2017 March 2018 | June
Authorised Risk 2014
Officer list Management
+ Updated
guidance on social
media
10.3 + Updated Head of Audit & | August 2018 August June
Authorised Risk 2019 2014
Officer list Management
Updated
reference para
8.2.
Links and Dependencies
RIPA — Procedure/Guidance Notes
Corporate Anti-fraud Policy and Fraud Response Plan
Whistleblowing Policy
Sanctions Policy
Anti-money Laundering Policy
Anti-bribery Policy
Employee Code of Conduct
Related Forms
RIPA Authorisation for Directed Surveillance
RIIPA Review of Directed Surveillance Authorisation
RIPA Renewal of Directed Surveillance Authorisation
RIPA Cancellation of Directed Surveillance Authorisation
RIPA Application for Communications Data
July 2018 2




OFFICIAL

1.
11

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Page 253 B
Haringey
LONDON
Policy Statement

Haringey Council will apply the principles of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
2000 (RIPA) to all activities where covert surveillance, covert human intelligence
sources, or communications data are used. In doing so, the Council will also take into
account its duties under other legislation, in particular the Protection of Freedoms Act
2012; Human Rights Act 1998; and Data Protection Act 1998, and its common law
obligations.

. Overview and Purpose of RIPA

RIPA came into force in England and Wales on 25 September 2000, and aims to
balance, in accordance with the European Convention of Human Rights, the rights of
individuals with the need for law enforcement and security agencies to have powers to
perform their roles effectively. The Human Rights Act 1998 requires that all actions
which may potentially breach an individual’s human rights are proportionate; necessary;
non discriminatory; and lawful. RIPA allows local authorities to collect evidence of
criminal activity lawfully where the investigation requires covert surveillance, even
where that may lead to them obtaining private information about individuals.

RIPA provides a statutory basis for local authorities to authorise the use of directed
surveillance and covert human intelligence sources (undercover officers, agents,
informants); and access communications data (postal, telecoms and internet operators’
data). The Home Office RIPA Codes of Practice provide further detailed guidance.

The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 (sections 37 and 38) applies to RIPA applications.
Any local authority who wishes to authorise the use of directed surveillance, acquire
communications data, and/or use a covert human intelligence source (CHIS) under
RIPA will need to obtain an order approving the grant (or renewal) of an authorisation or
notice from a Justice of the Peace (JP) before it can take effect. This is in addition to the
existing internal authorisation processes under the relevant parts of RIPA.

RIPA requires a Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) to be appointed to be responsible for
ensuring the Council’s compliance with RIPA and its Codes; and to oversee the
implementation of any post-inspection action plans recommended or approved by a
Commissioner. The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance is Haringey’s SRO.

Failure to comply with RIPA does not mean that an authority’s actions in relation to
surveillance will be unlawful; however it does mean that evidence obtained from
surveillance could be inadmissible in court proceedings and jeopardise a successful
outcome. Such action could also be open to challenge as a breach of the Human Rights
Act and a successful claim for damages could be made against the Council.

Further information on RIPA can be obtained from the Investigatory Powers
Commissioner's Office, the body responsible for overseeing the use of covert
surveillance, including the relevant RIPA Codes of Practice, together with examples of
frequently asked questions for local authorities.

July 2018 3


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes
https://ipco.org.uk/
https://ipco.org.uk/
https://osc.independent.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes

OFFICIAL Page 254 H

2.7

3.2

3.3

4.
4.1

4.2

4.3

dringey

LONDON

The Council’'s RIPA Procedure Notes provide guidance to investigating and authorising
officers when undertaking RIPA activities. Copies of all relevant application, review,
renewal and cancellation forms, together with the application for judicial review form are
held on the Council’s Intranet. The Business Manager for Corporate Governance should
be contacted in the first instance if covert surveillance, access to Communications Data,
or use of a Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS) is being considered.

Restrictions on the use of RIPA

From 1 November 2012 local authority use of RIPA has been restricted to conduct that
would constitute a criminal offence which is punishable by a maximum custodial
sentence of six months or longer. Low-level offences such as littering, dog fouling and
school admissions may not be undertaken using RIPA.

There are some limited exceptions to the rule on criminal threshold levels, relating to
specified criminal offences for the underage sale of alcohol (s146, s147 and s147A of
the Licensing Act 2003) and tobacco (s7 of the Children and Young Persons Act 1933).
The relevant RIPA tests of necessity and proportionality must still be applied and prior
JP approval obtained before any surveillance takes place.

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that:

» the proper procedures are in place in order to carry out covert surveillance;

« anindividual's right to privacy is not breached;

» the investigation is necessary and proportionate to the alleged offence;

* proper authorisation is obtained for covert surveillance;

» the proper procedures have been followed; and

» covert surveillance is considered as a last resort having exhausted all other
avenues.

Authorisation and Duration of RIPA Activities

Each covert surveillance operation involving directed surveillance, covert human
intelligence sources and the acquisition of communications data must be authorised
internally within the council in writing first. All applications must use the forms provided
on the Council’s intranet and, following internal approval, all applications must also be
externally authorised by a Justice of the Peace (JP). Annex A provides a summary flow
chart of the RIPA process. No investigation can commence until both internal and
external authorisations have been given.

The application form will only be considered by a JP if it is authorised by a relevant
authorising officer. Authorising officers are those listed at Annex B to this policy.
Authorising officers can only authorise the use of RIPA if they have completed the SRO
approved training. Guidance on completing the application and authorisation process is
included in the Council’s RIPA Procedure Notes and further advice can be obtained
from the Business Manager for Corporate Governance.

For any urgent applications, the Business Manager for Corporate Governance and
Legal Services should be contacted at the earliest opportunity in order to make urgent

July 2018 4


http://intranet/index/directorates/corporate-governance/audit_risk_management/regulation-of-investigatory-powers-act.htm
http://intranet/index/directorates/corporate-governance/audit_risk_management/regulation-of-investigatory-powers-act.htm

OFFICIAL Page 255 H

dringey

LONDON

arrangements to see a JP. The application form and internal authorisation will still be
needed but the time in which to get judicial approval may be reduced.

4.4 Authorisations only remain valid for specific periods and may require renewal or
cancellation. Written authorisations can only last for a maximum period of 3 months and
will expire after 3 months. Authorisations must be cancelled if the conditions are no
longer met. Authorisations do not expire when the conditions are no longer met and
therefore cancellations should be made at the earliest opportunity.

4.5 Authorisations should be kept under regular review, especially if the risk of obtaining
private information or of collateral intrusion is high, and in accordance with the
circumstances of the case. Internal reviews should be recorded on the relevant forms,
but do not need approval by a JP.

4.6 Authorisations can be renewed, but these will be subject to the same internal and
external authorisation processes to determine whether the grounds for authorisation still
exist. A renewal can be granted for a further 3 months from the date of expiry of the
original application. Any renewal application must take place prior to the expiry of the
original application. If this timeframe cannot be met, no further surveillance should be
carried out until a further application has been authorised.

4.7 If the conditions for surveillance being carried out are no longer satisfied, and the
authorisation period has not ended, a cancellation form must be completed and all
those involved in the surveillance should receive notification of the cancellation, which
must be confirmed in writing at the earliest opportunity. Cancellations do not need any
additional approval from a JP.

5. Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS)

5.1 If a CHIS is to be used, there are detailed requirements regarding management of their
activities which are set out in the Home Office code of Practice. The use of a CHIS who
is an adult and not a vulnerable person can authorised by any of the authorising officers
listed in Annex B. In a case where the proposed CHIS is a juvenile or a vulnerable
person, only the Chief Executive can grant an authorisation.

5.2 Before making any decisions about using a CHIS, the Assistant Director of Corporate
Governance and Business Manager for Corporate Governance must be consulted.
There are statutory risk assessment requirements specified in section 29 of the Act
which are designed for the safety of the individual acting as a CHIS and the protection
of the Human Rights of those who may be directly or indirectly involved in the operation.
Guidance on the use of a CHIS is contained in the Council’s RIPA Procedure Notes,
including the records which must be kept when using a CHIS.

6. Social Networking Sites and Internet Sites
6.1 Social networking and internet sites are easily accessible, but if they are going to be
used during the course of an investigation, the investigator must consider whether RIPA
authorisation should be obtained.

July 2018 5



OFFICIAL Page 256 H

6.2

6.3

7.2

8.
8.1

8.2

dringey

LONDON

In most cases, the Council will not seek to covertly breach a site’s access controls, but if
this is deemed necessary and proportionate, the minimum requirement is an
authorisation for directed surveillance. An authorisation for the use and conduct of a
CHIS is necessary if a relationship is established or maintained by the officer (i.e. the
activity is more than simply reading the site’s content). This could occur if an officer
covertly asks to become a ‘friend’ or ‘network contact’ of someone on a social
networking site and establishes a relationship or engages the individual in
communication in order to obtain information. An investigator should not attempt to set
up an account which adopts the identity of a person likely to be known to the subject of
the investigation without authorisation and the explicit consent of the person whose
identity is being used.

It is the responsibility of the individual to set privacy settings to protect unsolicited
access of private information. Where privacy settings are available, but not applied, the
data may be considered ‘open source’ and a RIPA authorisation is not usually required.
However, repeated viewing of open source sites may constitute directed surveillance
and whether authorisation is required should be considered on a case by case basis.
Officers should also take account of the guidance issued by the Investigator Powers
Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) in this respect.

. Requests to undertake Covert Surveillance using CCTV

The Council’'s CCTV Control Room staff may be requested to undertake covert
surveillance on behalf of other enforcement authorities, including the police. The
Council supports working with external enforcement agencies and organisations to
prevent and detect crime; but any requests must be supported by an appropriate RIPA
authorisation from the relevant enforcement authority and be provided to the CCTV
Manager before the covert surveillance is commenced.

Surveillance that is unforeseen and undertaken as an immediate response to a situation
falls outside the definition of directed surveillance and therefore authorisation is not
required.

Records and Inspections

RIPA requires the Council to maintain records, including details of all applications,
reviews, renewals and cancellations. The Business Manager for Corporate Governance
maintains the Central Record on behalf of the SRO, and retains hard and electronic
copies of all forms and JP approval records.

The documents in the Central Record are retained in accordance with Legal Service’s
records management policy which complies with relevant Data Protection legislation.
The original documents should be retained by the service area responsible for the
surveillance activity.

July 2018 6



OFFICIAL Page 257 H

dringey

LONDON

8.3 The Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) monitors compliance with
RIPA. Haringey’s SRO and Business Manager for Corporate Governance will act as the
first point of contact for the Inspectors, but all service areas that use RIPA should
expect to be involved in any inspection visits.

9. Monitoring and Reporting
9.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance is responsible for the maintenance and
operation of this policy, as the Council’s nominated SRO under RIPA. The Assistant
Director of Corporate Governance will liaise with the Business Manager for Corporate
Governance to review the policy on a regular basis.

9.2 Regular reports will be made to Members in accordance with the requirements of the
RIPA Codes of Practice.

July 2018 7



OFFICIAL Page 258

LONDON

dringey

ANNEX A

LOCAL AUTHORITY PROCEDURE: APPLICATION TO A JUSTICE OF THE PEACE SEEKING AN ORDER TO
APPROVE THE GRANT OF A RIPA AUTHORISATION OR NOTICE

Local authority investigator wants to use a RIPA technique (directed surveillance, CHIS (covert human intelligence source) or

Does investigator interx! 1o use
directad surveillance?
[

Yos

15 the local authority inve stigating

an offence and does that offence
attract a maximum custodial

sentence of 6 month or more?

Is the offence being Investigated
either:

-Saction 146/147/147A of the
Licensing Act 2003, or
-Section 7 of the Children and Young
Persons Act 1993.

communications data).

* Complete RIPA authorisation/
notice form, and seek approval
of authorising ofMcer/designated

~®  parson as per current arrangements.

= Complete application part of the
judicial application/order form for JP.

v

Within Offlce Hours
Local authority inve stigator to
contact Her Majesty’ s Courts
& Tribunals Service (HMCTS)
admenistration at the magistrates'
court to arrange a hearing.

v

Attend court with:

* counter-signed RIPA authorisation/
or notice (for CD authorisations/
notices the sighatures may be
electronic signatures).
= the accompanying Judicial
application/order form.

« any other relevant reference or

No

Supporting material,

Outside usual office hours:

A JP may consider an authorisation
out of hours In exceptional
circumstances. If the authorisation
Is urgent and cannot be handled the
next working day then you should:
* Phone the court's out of hours
HMCTS legal staff contact. You
will be asked about the basic facts
and urgency of the suthorisation.
If the police are involved in the
investigation you will need to
adiress why they cannet make a
RIPA authorisation.

* If urgency is agreed, then
arrangements will be made for
a suitable JP to consider the
application. You will be told where to
attend and glve evidencs,

« Attencl hearing as directed with
two coples of both the counter-
signed RIPA authorisation form or
notice and the accompanying judicial

application/order form.

B

Yes — {
Outconme
Inve stigator may not use Refuse to Refuse to Approve the
directed survelllance, The case approve approve the grant or re-
should be investigated by other the grant or grant or re- newal of an
means. Continue to assess renewal and newal of an authonsation
if threshold is met If further quash the authorisation or notice,
offences come to light as the authonsation or notice.
case progresses, or notice,

This may be appropriate if the JP
considers that an application is
fundamentally flawed. The local
authority nwist be given at least
2 business days in which to
make representations before the
authorisation is quashed, In these
circumstances a local authority
cannot use the technique and will
need to seak fresh authorisation
Internally before reapplying.

;

\

The grant or renewal of the RIPA
authorisation or notice will not take
effect and the local authority may
not use the covert technique,
Local authority may wish to
address, for example, a technical
error and reapply.

Technigue may be used In this case.
Investigator to resubmit 1o the
JP any renewal or suthonisation
for the use of a different technigue
in this case.

Obtain signed order and retain onginal RIPA authorisation/notice.
For CD authorisations or notices, local authority investigator to provide additional copy of judicial order 1o the SPoC,
If out of hours, a copy of the signed order to be provided to the court the next working day.

17

July 2018




OFFICIAL Page 259 o
Haringey
LONDON

Annex B

Haringey Council - Authorising Officers for RIPA

Job Title

Chief Executive

(confidential information and juvenile or vulnerable adult CHIS can only be authorised by the Chief
Executive)

Director of Finance

Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods

Head of Community Safety and Regulatory Services

July 2018 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 261 Agenda Iltem 15

Report for Cabinet

Title: Contract Award for the provision of Water, Wastewater & Ancillary
Services under the Council's Contract Standing Order( CSO )
9.07.1(d)

Report

authorised by : Helen Fisher, Director of Housing, Regeneration, and Planning

Lead Officer: Kamar Zaman, Energy Manager. x2178

Ward(s) affected: All

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Key decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report sets out a proposal to enter into a contract for the provision of Water,
Wastewater & Ancillary Services following a collaborative procurement exercise
conducted on behalf of members of the London Energy Project (LEP) and NHS
London Procurement Partnership and to award the contract to Anglian Water
Business (National) Ltd trading as “Wave” for a period of two years with an option to
extend for a further 2 years as permitted under CSO 7.01(b) (power to select a
contractor from a Framework) in accordance with CSO 9.07.1(d) (Cabinet’'s power
to award contract of £500,000 and above) for a total contract value over 4 years of
£3.1m.

1.2 This contract has been awarded following a competition carried out using Lot 3 of
the Crown Commercial Service Framework RM3790. With the winner chosen on
the basis of quality, price, financial standing, and terms and conditions, which was
conducted collaboratively by a panel of staff from 15 authorities.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction (Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and
Insourcing)

2.1 It is clearly essential that the Council, and the services it provides, can depend on
uninterrupted, high quality and value-for money water services. As set out in this
report, changes in the water market have forced us to tender the contract for these
services, and this is a timely prompt to make sure we getting both the right price
and the right service for our Council services and schools. I'm particularly pleased
that we have taken the opportunity to collaborate with other boroughs to get the
best possible deal for Haringey, and am happy to endorse these recommendations
to Cabinet.

3. Recommendations

3.1 For Cabinet to award the contract for the Provision of Water, Wastewater and
Ancillary Services to Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd trading as “Wave” (on

Haringey



3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 262

the basis that it represents best overall value for money, following a thorough
evaluation of quality and price) as permitted under CSO 7.01(b) in accordance with
CSO0 9.07.1(d) for a total sum of £3.1m. The contract is for two years with an option
to extend for another two years if needed.

To delegate authority to the Director of Housing, Regeneration, and Planning to
undertake all necessary actions to enable the contract to be awarded to Anglian
Water Business (National) Ltd trading as “Wave” under Lot 3 of the Crown
Commercial Service (CCS) Framework Agreement RM3790. These actions are
detailed within Appendix 2.

Reasons for decision

Under the Water Act 2014, Haringey Council are required to appoint a contractor for
a Water Retailer and to do so in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PRC 2015). This contract is required to deliver Water Supply and
management of Waste Water.

The successful tenderer (Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd trading as “Wave”)
submitted a bid that offered the best value to the Council. Together the LEP with
the Council, are confident that this retailer has the capability to deliver the services
to the required standard.

The successful tenderer showed a good understanding of the services required by
the Council. The contract value is £3.1m covering the supply of water and
wastewater and an ancillary service to reduce water demand. It covers a maximum
of four years. This will be delivered on an existing procurement framework managed
by the Crown Commercial Services (CCS) (Lot 3 RMO3790)

Alternative options considered to secure best value

Do Nothing
Castle Water are the default water and waste water company (retailer) responsible
for water billing and administration.

Even if the Council was minded to remain with Castle Water, the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015) dictates that authorities are required to conduct a
competitive process to select a retailer for water and waste water services.

For the Council to run its own full tender and appoint its own supplier

The option of an individual authority conducting its own tender or mini-competition
was not recommended because the risks and costs of running this tender exercise,
including the use of staff resources to write a service specification and conduct a
tender excerise, are not commensurate with potential benefits of retailer service
efficiencies and savings.

Pan LEP route (Preferred and actioned)

The recommended option was to join the LEP Team who would manage (at no
additional cost) a pan-LEP mini competition for all LEP members to access a single
retailer through a Central Purchasing Body (CPB) framework. This would be run on
the basis that a CPB framework for water provides a reasonable route to market at

Haringey



6.

Page 263

an affordable price for service. All LEP authorities’ portfolios will be competed
together via a CPB framework, with each authority having its own call-off contract.

The key reasons for this were:

ethe pan-LEP aggregated customer base is both attractive and prestigious for
suppliers, meaning retailers responded with high quality, well priced bids;

e the resource any CPB can afford to dedicate to a large aggregated tender is
greater than Haringey Council could provide;

e a single retailer for water would not restrict market competition and will deliver
greater benefits than multiple retailers, for example a dedicated customer service
management function, technology deployment trials, flood and drought protection
support services;

eretailers have vastly differing capabilities in core business functions, such as
consolidated billing and online portfolio, account and query management platforms,
therefore these aspects must be tested as part of the mini-competition process and
the quality/price ratio must be appropriate for the competitive price differential vs
potential for savings through efficiency gains; and,

e LEP team managed the full tender process (the service specification, mini-
competition, evaluation process, oversee pre-contract set-up and manage the
strategic retailer relationship).

Background information

Reqguirement to procure a new supplier

6.1

6.2

6.3

Haringey Council purchases approximately £350k of water and waste water
ancillary services each year. In addition to this the Council buys the same service
on behalf of the borough schools at a cost of £300k. The Council has always
bought its water service through Thames Water, as they were the local water
supplier and in effect were a monopoly for London.

From April 2017, pursuant to regulations made under the Water Act 2014, business
customers in England are able to select who provides retail water and wastewater
services to their organisation as a result of water market deregulation. To comply
with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015), Haringey Council were
required to appoint a contractor for a Water Retailer and to do so in accordance with
PRC 2015.

As a consequence of the Water Act 2014, Thames Water took the business
decision of selling its commercial retail operations to Castle Water while holding
onto its residential operations. Thames Water retained the wholesale operations
which still manages water infrastructure works. The water and waste water billing
and administration activities were discharged to Castle Water.

The procurement process

6.4

To comply with the deregulation requirement (para 4.2) the Council had to run a
procurement exercise for a new water and waste water ancillary service. To do
this, the Council joined with the London Energy Project (LEP) which is a market
intelligence unit, that can run procurement exercises on behalf of its members and
worked with them to select and appoint a new water and waste water ancillary
service.

Haringey



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Page 264

The LEP membership includes public bodies in London with over 25 local
authorities as well as the London Fire Authority, the Metropolitan Police and
Transport for London. This membership of public organisations commands a
sizeable aggregated volume of water to purchase. For this procurement, the
membership was extended to NHS Trusts in the London area.

In 2017, the LEP Team conducted extensive market engagement to establish the
most appropriate route to market to get overall best value, affordable prices, quality
service, social value and innovation for London authorities in the newly deregulated
water market.

The findings of this market reseach were that a single Retailer could provide the two
key requirements which are:

e water and waste water retail services — primarily invoicing, payment, customer
services; and,

e ancillary services — tariff optimisation, leak detection, metering and water demand
services, to ensure the best potential to deliver efficiency, financial and

consumption savings, rather than solely for retail services.

The LEP Team also found that:

e Due to the size of the contracts and the public sector brand, a joint procurement
excerise would be prestigious and offer optimum value attracting maximum
competition and leverage.

¢ A Central Purchasing Body could deliver the procurement exercise at better value
than multiple independent bodies.

¢ A Central Purchasing Body could procure this through Lot 3 RM3790 of the Crown
Commerical Service Water Framework. This would still enable flexibility and quality
for the LEP members.

Following discussions with some Haringey schools they agreed that they would like
additional support from the new water supplier. Currently all Council and Schools
water accounts are with Castle Water. It is noted that some schools and Council
departments are concerned about the operational impact of migrating the accounts
from Castle Water to a new supplier. Currently debt levels at certain schools (due to
billing issues) are rising and it was recognised that there will be additional resources
to support this transition to the new supplier. A proposed project plan and risk
analysis was required from tenderers within the procurement process to mitigate
risk and detailing how the supplier would support schools.

6.10 During the industry negoiations the optimal contract duration was determined as two

years with the option to extend for a period of another two years. This is because a
contract of less than two years will not represent value for money, as the retailer
set-up costs and migration process will be priced into one year, rather than an up-
to-four-year deal. Additionally, the impact of the water industry price review will take
effect in 2020 and will need to be considered as part of any contract extension, as
the retailer margin could be increased and we need to ensure additional service or a
relative reduction in margin can be negotiated.

Evaluation of bids

Haringey



Page 265

6.11 Following the tendering process five compliant bids were received, demonstrating a
good level of interest from the water market. A thorough evaluation was conducted
across a wide range of mandatory and discretionary price and quality criteria.
Quality was evaluated separately by an authorities’ staff panel to ensure that price
did not alter the perception of quality; moderation meetings to discuss the relative
strengths and weaknesses of each tenderers’ submission and to agree a score
according to the tender criteria were facilitated by the LEP Team and held over a 5-
day period.

6.12 All the bids were assessed on two sections:
e Section A - water and waste water retail services — primarily invoicing, payment,
customer services; and,
e Section B - ancillary services — tariff optimisation, leak detection, metering and
water demand services, to ensure the best potential to deliver efficiency, financial
and consumption savings, rather than solely for retail services.

6.13 Both of these sections were then assessed on price and quality.

PRICE — Tenders were sought for retail margins based on wholesale Plus, the
fairest and most transparent pricing approach for tendering and comparison
purposes (applicable to all regions, site types) for different billed frequencies. Day
rates, schedules for works and various pricing options sought for ancillary services.

QUALITY — was evaluated across a detailed service specification relating account
management and customer service, with all necessary supplier activities ‘hard-
wired’ into the statement of requirements.

6.14 The final scores following assessment of the winning bid is as follows:

Section A - Water Supply and Sewerage Services
Approach to account and contract management; customer

Section A : . . ) .
Quality 16.0 relationship and pc.)rtfollo management; management of invoices,
payment and debt; data, management information and online
(20%) f : o .
unctionality; metering accuracy and AMR
Retail Margin - Monthly and Quarterly billed frequency: Metered
Section A Water Supply & Wastewater, Unmetered Water Supply &
Price 15.9 Wastewater and Trade Effluent Services, management of
(30%) schools/debt liability, addn. meter reads. Discount for prompt &
electronic payment, provision of own meter readings
ggtci:on A 31.9 (50% of total marks available)
Section B - Water Ancillary Services
Section B AMR roll-out; emergency planning; water audit, site surveys, leak
Quality 24.3 detection and repair; delivering cashable savings; reducing
(35%) London’s water footprint; financing and funding options
Section B AMR installation and provision of data, water footprint
Price 7.5 assessments, site surveys, leak detection and repair, contingency
(15%) planning, tariff optimisation, plus a number of other price

Haringey



Page 266

measures, maximum % for gainsharing over a maximum of 4 years

Total 0 :
Section B 31.8 (50% of total marks available)

6.15 The final score of the winning bid, and comparisions against other bidders is as
follows:

Tender Evaluation Summary

Average Quality Score
Total Score :
Rank Tenderers Total 18 guestions

(100%) (Sections A & B)
Anglian Water Business
1 (Ngtional) Ltd trading as “Wave” 63.7% 3.83 outof 5
2 Bidder B 59.6% 3.28 out of 5
3 Bidder C 51.8% 1.5 out of 5
4 Bidder D 49.3% 2.67 out of 5
5 Bidder E 45.6% 1.5 outof5

6.16 The successful tenderer (Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd trading as “Wave”)
scored 63.7%, the highest overall score; achieving the highest weighted score for
quality (40.3% out of a possible 55%) and also the highest average quality score of
3.8/5.

6.17 Whilst the successful tenderer’s overall price was not the lowest, being ranked mid-
range for both sections A & B (23.4% out of a possible 45%), it was determined that
a competitive price was submitted. This was reinforced when in particular discounts
for prompt and electronic payment and zero % uplifts for alternative invoice
frequencies were taken into consideration.

6.18 The successful tenderer showed a good understanding of the services required by
the Council. They provided a well laid out and comprehensive response, which was
tailored to explain how services would be developed and delivered to meet the LEP
Statement of Requirements, demonstrating a realistic understanding of the services
expected and the specified standards. The response provided evidence of capable
people, systems, processes and methodologies with relevant case studies and
example materials. Their response provided clear explanations on how the
successful tenderer intends to implement previous experience and lessons learned
in their approach to managing this portfolio and the needs of the various customers
within this group.

Features and implications of the proposed contract

6.19 The successful tenderer showed a good understanding of the services required by
the Council. They provided a well laid out and comprehensive response, which was
tailored to explain how services would be developed and delivered to meet the LEP
Statement of Requirements, demonstrating a realistic understanding of the services
expected and the specified standards. The response provided evidence of capable

Haringey



Page 267

people, systems, processes and methodologies with relevant case studies and
example materials. Their response provided clear explanations on how the
successful tenderer intends to implement previous experience and lessons learned
in their approach to managing this portfolio and the needs of the various customers
within this group.

6.20 Haringey Council is currently not in a contract and is on a deemed rate with Castle
Water and does not have transparent pricing. It is assumed that the deemed rate is
close to the Average National Retail Margin (7%) of the total water bill for the
provision of retail services, which covers providing bills, reading meters, dealing
with queries, taking payments, etc. It is NOT for the provision of water or
wastewater, mandatory infrastructure or metering, which remains a Wholesaler
responsibility. In this new pan-LEP contract this price will be a transparent pass
through percentage. Because the retail margin is low, collectively authorities took
the decision to focus on quality of service and opportunity to save water. It was
recognised that to focus on margin only will not deliver overall value for money. A
cost per litre or site would not be an appropriate measurement, as this a Wholesaler
responsibility and set by the Regulator.

6.21 Comparing this to our current cost is not an option, as our Authority cannot stay with
its incumbent Retailer(s) unless a procurement exercise is conducted; and the cost
of doing so, could outweigh the potential of a bigger cashable saving through a
further reduction to retail margin, e.g. a drop from 4.5 to 2.5% (see below).

Example Contract Value Avg. National Retail | Example Tendered Retail Margin
Margin
£200,000 7.0% 4.5% 2.5%
£14,000 £9,000 £5,000

All figures are nominal and for illustrative purpose only, and do not represent actual margins submitted
during the tender. LEP cannot disclose the tendered price for publication in reports, but a
cashable saving of approx. 2.5% is possible, and authorities will get a better and more
comprehensive service, with enhanced terms and conditions.

7o date, the aggregated tendered volume is showing a saving of around £270,000

6.22 All costs for services, including retail margin, were submitted as part of the tender,
along with prices for meter reading, AMR, day rates for services. A full schedule of
pricing/rates will be provided to our Authority as part of the Customer Order Form
and as part of the data cleansing/Onboarding process, and as such we will not need
to tender or obtain quotes for any additional services.

6.23 The water industry database (shared by all water retailer wholesalers and retailers)
is not fully populated and information contained within it may not be comprehensive
or detailed. As a consequence the suppliers did not base their quotation or savings
statements solely on real world account data (consumption and tariffs). Therefore
they presented an assessment model to calculate and demonstrate benefits.

6.24 As referenced in point 4.1, given the Council’s annual cost of water and wastewater
of about £350k , savings in the first two years are likely to be in the range of £3.5k
to £7k. Schools may join the contract and their total contract value will be no more
than £300k per annum.

dringey

LONDON



Page 268

6.25 However, as a result of this tender process a saving of between 2.5 to 3.5% against

the national average retail margin may be achieved across the portfolio and against
the estimated Retail Default Price.

6.26 The Council provided the tenderers basic data based on water meter and historic

bills, which were checked against our SAP account records of water payments over
the past three years. The estimated default price was calculated using the source
data and values as above against published Retail Default Tariff(s). It is worth
noting that an additional 1% of the Retailer's costs are payable as commission to
CCS/YPO for the procurement, i.e. if the retailer fee is £10,000, the fee payable is
£100. LEP are paid directly by the London public sector organisations that they
manage for the energy and water support services LEP manage. As sucht there is
no LEP commission costs.

6.27 Alongside direct water payments, the supplier’s ancillary services can be bought by

the Council and bring cost savings. These will be discussed with the supplier within
the first three to six months of the contract. Potential saving opportunities will be
reviewed based on no, low, or medium cost option and the values of the savings.

6.28 The supplier has several financial options available to deliver the savings measures

7.1

7.2

including a gains-share or invest to save routes. They also have opportunities to
have no financial investment up front by adding as a surcharge on the bill. The
supplier has experience in billing in this way for tariff optimisation or meter resizing
projects. These projects are referenced in Appendix 1, Section B.

Contribution to Haringey’s Strategic Outcomes

The recommendations set out in this report contribute to a number of objectives as
set out in the Council’'s Corporate Plan 2015-18, Building a Stronger Haringey
Together:

eLow Carbon and Sustainability (Priority 4, Objective 4). The successful retailer
will support Haringey in achieving a low carbon future. Through its supply it will
work to improve air quality, and address water scarcity and a stressed sewerage
system, reducing environmental impact, water consumption alongside cost and to
improve efficiency. (in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-18)

eLocal Economic Development (Priority 4, Objective 3). The retailer has agreed
to look to build in opportunities for local employment and small businesses, support
the community, business, voluntary groups and schools to better manage water
consumption and cost and to reduce their impacts on local pollution and stressed
sewerage.

The approach proposed is also aligned with the relevant cross-cutting themes from
the Corporate Plan:

eWorking in Partnership. This procurement enables schools to join the
arrangement as part of their local authority contract, and secure a cheaper contract
price, ensuring the Council has no management or liability for these bodies. The
LEP network is able to support public bodies and provide advice on utilities
management to address issues including disputes.

Haringey



Page 269

eValue for Money. The contract is with a single provider that will also supply
ancillary services when required. This offers the Council a quick route to undertake
actions and works through a procured value for money exercise.

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer, Head of Procurement),
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

8.1 Corporate Governance
8.1.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance notes the contents of the report.

8.1.2The contract which this report relates to was procured through the Crown
Commercial Service Framework Agreement RM3790.

8.1.3The Crown Commercial Service Framework Agreement RM3790 was established in
accordance with EU procurement legislation.

8.1.4Pursuant to CSO 7.01(b) and pursuant to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015,
the Council may select one or more Contractors from a Framework established by a
public body where the Council has been identified in the OJEU Contract Notice as
an approved user.

8.1.51t is confirmed that the Council is idenfied as an approved user of this framework
Agreement in the OJEU Contract Notice.

8.1.6 Pursuant to CSO 9.07.1(d), Cabinet may approve a contract if the value of the
contract is valued at £500,000 or more and as such the Cabinet has the power to
approve the award of the contract in this Report.

8.1.7 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance sees no legal reasons preventing
the approval of the recommendations in the report.

8.2 Equalities

8.2.1The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have
due regard to the need to:
e Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Act
e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected
characteristics and people who do not
¢ Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and people
who do not.

8.2.2The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics:
age,disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex
and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part
of the duty.

8.2.3The contract is for the supply of water and waste water services. Although the
award of this contract has no direct impact on groups with protected characteristics,

Haringey



Page 270

the contract will enable the Council to ensure water supply to services and facilities
disproportionately used by individuals and groups with protected characteristics.
These include sheltered accommodation, day centres, care homes, and schools.

8.2.4The tender evaluation process took equalities considerations into account by
including the sites above as sensitive sites in the operation of the contract and by
evaluating bidders on their capacity to make additional alternations and thereby
eliminate any adverse impacts on groups with protected characteristics.

8.2.5The award of this contract will support the Council to minimise its environmental
impact. It can be reasonably expected that this will have a positive impact on local
residents with protected characteristics. In particular, BAME residents, minority
religious communities, and those with disabilities are overrepresented among those
living in flood-risk areas. High quality water management will help to mitigate this
risk.

8.2.6 The award of this contract will provide opportunities for local employment.
Individuals with protected characteristics are overrepresented among those who are
not in employment, and so there may be opportunities to advance equality of
opportunity in terms of employment.

8.2.7The award of this contract will enable support for small businesses, voluntary
groups, and schools to better manage water consumption and cost. As many small
businesses are owned and operated by members of BAME communities, many
voluntary groups deliver services to individuals and groups with protected
characteristics, and schools primarily benefit younger people, this element of the
contract can be expected to help advance equality of opportunity.

8.3 Finance

8.3.1This report seeks Cabinet approval for the award of contract for the Provision of
Water, Wastewater and Ancillary Services to Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd.

8.3.2 Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd was chosen after receiving bids from five
providers and were carefully evaluated in accordance with the council’s
procurement rules.

8.3.3The table in paragraph 6.15 above shows that Anglian Water Business (National)
Ltd had the highest score through the evaluation process centred on price and
quality.

8.3.4The proposed annual spend on this contract, as outlined in Appendix 2, is in line
with expenditure incurred in previous years and budgets exist to cover the forecast
spend.

8.4 Strategic Procurement

8.4.1 The contract was awarded on a Most Economically Advantageous Basis, through a
Further Competition for Water, Wastewater & Ancillary Services, issued under Lot 3
of the Crown Commercial Service Framework Agreement RM3790 Water,
Wastewater & Ancillary Services. The further competition for a single supplier was
conducted by YPO (a Central Purchasing body) on behalf of The London Energy

Haringey



Page 271

Project, its Participating Authorities (present and future) and collaborative partners,
(which were named in the further competition).

8.4.2CSO 7.01 b) allows for the Council to procure using a Framework or similar

arrangement.

8.4.3The procurement process is compliant with both CSOs and Public Procurement

Regulations.

8.4.47To reduce the risk of challenge and to create a robust procedure, a decision was

taken to invoke a voluntary ten day standstill period following notification of award to
suppliers. No challenge was received during this period and the Contract can then
be formally awarded with a commencement date of 1st October 2018.

8.4.6 The Supplier has now entered into a Call Off Contract with YPO (on behalf of the

LEP Participating Authorities) to provide the Contract Services. By placing an order,
Authorities can enter into a contract with the successful Retailer for a minimum of 2
years with the option to extend for a further period of up to 2 years, or for the full
four year term (so long as the contract ends on or before 30th April 2022).

8.4.6 The Contract has already been awarded, therefore authorities will not be required to

10.

conduct their own procurement for the provision of any water, wastewater or any
ancillary services, due to this being a single supplier, comprehensive service
arrangement and there being no financial limit as to the amount of orders that can
be placed during the term of the Contract.

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 - The LEP Contract requirements, Framework references and
Companies in the Framework that could bid for this tender

Appendix 2 — Authorisation route to procurement

Appendix 3 - Details on the bidders for the Water, Wastewater and Ancillary
Services Contract

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Haringey



Page 272

Appendix 1 - The Crown Commercial Services (CCS) for Water, Wastewater and
Ancillary Services Framework

Water, Wastewater and Ancillary Services (Contract ID: RM3790), let by:
Crown Commercial Services in collaboration with YPO, TEC, ESPO, NEPO,
West Mercia Energy & the MoD

Framework Start Date: 15/03/2017 Framework End Date:  15/03/2020
Contract Start Date: 01/05/2018 Contract End Date: 30/04/2022
Responsibilities: LEP Team - procurement project YPO - managed the CCS - Contracting
executive, manage the strategic procurement Authority,
supplier relationship and process and operates
contract performance contracting the
activities framewor

k

Lot 3 — One Stop Shop, combination of Lot 1 (Section A) and Lot 2 (Section B)

Section A - Water Supply and Sewerage Services

Associated services in connection with the supply of water and sewerage services, designed specifically to
meet the business requirements of London authorities’ complex multi-site portfolios and
expectations for quality and value for money

. Account Management including customer service;

. Billing & Data Management;

. Metering including, Meter Reading (Including acceptance of AMR reads), Management of sites and
meters (including new connections and switching);

. Meter installation/removal/resizing/accuracy tests;

. Roads and Property Drainage;

. Sewerage services including Trade Effluent;

. Emergency Contingency Planning & 24/7 Emergency support; and

° Guaranteed standards of Service (as defined in the RM3790 Framework, water Market Codes and to

meet the detailed service description of the London Energy Project Statement of Requirements)
Section B - Ancillary Services

To provide data, products and services for management, conservation, reduction of water consumption in
order to deliver environmental improvement, efficiency, financial and consumption savings.
Authorities can select all or none of the following ancillary services based on their individual
business requirements and available budget(s), and the Retailer is able to offer their own or third
party financing option

. Automated Meter Reading;

Contingency planning;

Leak detection and repair;

° Water audit site surveys;

° Water Footprint assessment;

. Tariff optimisation and benchmarking;

. Legionella Risk Assessments; and

° may include Bill Validation and Cost Recovery and other ancillary services at a later date

Suppliers on CCS Lot 3
Advanced Demand Side Management Ltd

Pennon Water Services Ltd

. Affinity for Business (Retail) Ltd . Scottish Water Business Stream Ltd
° Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd t/a Wave e Three Sixty

° Castle Water Ltd . Water Plus Ltd

° Northumbrian Water Group Business Ltd

Haringey



Page 273

Appendix 2 — Authorisation route to procurement

These are the formal activities that the Director of Housing, Regeneration and Planning
will undertake on behalf of the Cabinet to deliver the Council’s new Water Contract.

a. To enter into an Access Agreement with Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO),
to enter into a contract for Water, Wastewater & Ancillary Services, following a
Further Competition, conducted on behalf of The London Energy Project, Issued
under Lot 3 of the Crown Commercial Service (CCS) Framework Agreement
RM3790.

b. To approve the award of contract for the Provision of Water, Wastewater and
Ancillary Services to Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd trading as Wave the
value of £350k per annum for Council interests; £300k for Schools per annum, and
for up to £500k being spent on ancillary services, total contract value of £3.1m.

c. To approve the award of contract for the Provision of Water, Wastewater and
Ancillary Services to Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd trading as Wave, for the
period of 1st May 2018 to 30th April 2020 (minimum two years), with the option to
extend for a further two years, but not beyond 30th April 2022.

d. To finalise any specific terms of the contract and do all things necessary to facilitate
the execution, implementation and operation of the contract, including the use of
ancillary services available under the contract.

e. To authorise in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and
Insourcing to enter into any extension agreement for a period of up to a further two
years, but not beyond 30th April 2022, in accordance with CSO 9.07.1c (the
Authority’s procurement extension CSO provision).

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 275 Appendix 1

Appendix 3- Details on the bidders for the Water, Wastewater and Ancillary
Services Contract

On 8" February 2018, Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO), on behalf of London Energy

Project (LEP) Contracting Authorities, took the requirements for Water and Wastewater

Services to market. This was undertaken by the Crown Commercial Services framework for

the Supply of Water, Wastewater and Ancillary Services RM3790 (LOT 3), in order to secure

the most economically advantageous contractor.

The Authority received a total of 5 tenders in response to this procurement, 3 of which were

SMEs and all of which were received electronically via the Authority's e-Sourcing Suite. In

alphabetical order these are:

Advanced Demand Side Management Limited (ADSM), UK SME;
Affinity For Business (Retail) Limited, UK SME;

Anglian Water Business (National) Ltd t/a Wave, UK;

Castle Water Limited, UK SME; and

Water Plus Limited, UK.

No bids were disqualified

A voluntary standstill period was applied to the Further Competition ending at midnight on
Thursday 26 April 2018,



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 277 Agenda Iltem 16

Report for: Cabinet 11" September 2018

Title: Acquisition of properties at Woodside Avenue

Report

authorised by: Helen Fisher, Director of Housing, Regeneration and Planning
Lead Officer: Alan Benson, Head of Housing Strategy and Commissioning

Ward(s) affected: Muswell Hill

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Key decision

Describe the issue under consideration
1.1. This report seeks authority to acquire properties (“the Properties”) on Woodside
Avenue. The properties are part of the Cranwood Site. The two Properties are
known as 104 Woodside Avenue, London N10 3JA and 106 Woodside Avenue,
London N10 3JA.

1.2. The Council is progressing with plans for developing new Council-owned
housing following July 2018 Cabinet. It is specifically progressing with feasibility
and site investigation work for a new housing development on the Cranwood
site in Muswell Hill.

Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1. The Council is progressing its ambitions for housing development. Acquiring
these properties will enable the Council to continue with its plans for a housing
scheme which will deliver new social rented housing in the west of the borough,
where there is currently a severe shortage of social rented homes.

Recommendations

3.1 Cabinet agrees to:

The acquisition of the property known as 104 Woodside Avenue, London,
N10 3JA;

Gives delegated authority to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and
Planning after consultation with the Director of Finance to agree the
purchase and the terms of the acquisition for 104 Woodside Avenue. The
acquisition is to be for planning purposes;

The acquisition of the property known as 106 Woodside Avenue, London,
N10 3JA for planning purposes;

iv.  Gives delegated authority to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and
Planning after consultation with the Director of Finance to agree the final
contract for the acquisition of 106 Woodside Avenue;

Page 1 of 3

Haringey



Page 278

v. To fund the acquisitions and transaction costs from the Strategic
Acquisitions budget of the agreed capital programme.

4. Reasons for decision

4.1 The Council is progressing with plans for developing new Council-owned
housing. It is specifically progressing with potential proposals for a new housing
development on the Cranwood site in Muswell Hill. [The rest of this section is
exempt].

Alternative options considered

5.1. An alternative option is not to acquire the properties. [Further information is
contained in the exempt part of the report]

6. Background information

6.1 The Council is looking at potential redevelopment of the Cranwood site, in
Muswell Hill. The Council owns part of the site.

6.2 As yet, only initial work has been undertaken on the Cranwood site, which needs
to be tested with site investigation, due diligence and further feasibility
assessments before the potential housing capacity, viability and tenure mix can
be determined. [The rest of this section is contained in the exempt part of the
report]

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes

7.1. This decision supports priority 5 of the Corporate Plan - to create homes and
communities where people choose to live and are able to thrive.

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including procurement),
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement

[This information is set out in the exempt part of the report]

Legal

8.1. The Council has the power under section 227 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 to acquire each of the Properties by agreement if the
acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of development, re-development or
improvement on or in relation to the land. The Property is being acquired for
planning purposes in order to facilitate the development of the Cranwood site.

8.2  Any acquisition must be subject to the Council obtaining absolute title for the
Properties.

Haringey



Page 279

Equality

The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have
due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited under the Act

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not

e Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics
and people who do not.

The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and
sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the
duty.[ The remainder of this section is contained in the exempt report]

9. Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 — site map — contained in exempt part of the report
Appendix 2 — contained in the exempt part of the report
Appendix 3 — contained in the exempt part of the report

There is an exempt Part B report which contains information under section 12a
paragraphs 3 and 5 of the Local government Act 1972 relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information). Also Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege
could be maintained in legal proceedings.

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 281 Agenda ltem 18

Report for: Cabinet 11 September 2018
Title: Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions
Report

authorised by : Zina Etheridge, Chief Executive
Bernie Ryan AD Corporate Governance
[ *Crme
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek
Ward(s) affected: Non applicable

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by
Directors.

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under
delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more
than £100,000) taken during the same period are also detailed.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

Not applicable

3. Recommendations
That the report be noted.
4. Reasons for decision

Part Three, Section E of the Constitution — Responsibility for Functions,
Scheme of Delegations to Officers - contains an obligation on officers to keep
Members properly informed of activity arising within the scope of these
delegations, and to ensure a proper record of such activity is kept and
available to Members and the public in accordance with legislation. Therefore,
each Director must ensure that there is a system in place within his/her
business unit which records any decisions made under delegated powers.

Paragraph 3.03 of the scheme requires that Regular reports (monthly or as
near as possible) shall be presented to the Cabinet Meeting, in the case of
executive functions, and to the responsible Member body, in the case of non
executive functions, recording the number and type of all decisions taken
under officers’ delegated powers. Decisions of particular significance shall be
reported individually.

Paragraph 3.04 of the scheme goes on to state that a decision of “particular
significance”, to be reported individually by officers, shall mean a matter not

Haringey



Page 282

within the scope of a decision previously agreed at Member level which falls
within one or both of the following:

(a) It is a spending or saving of £100,000 or more, or
(b) It is significant or sensitive for any other reason and the Director and
Cabinet Member have agreed to report it.
5. Alternative options considered
Not applicable

6. Background information

To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by
Directors.

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under
delegated powers. Significant actions) decisions involving expenditure of more
than £100,000) taken during the same period are also detailed.

Officer Delegated decisions are published on the following web
pagehttg://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.asgx?bcr=1

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes

Apart from being a constitutional requirement, the recording and publishing of
executive and non executive officer delegated decisions is in line with the
Council’s transparency agenda.

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.

9. Use of Appendices

The appendices to the report set out by number and type decisions taken by
Directors under delegated powers. Significant actions

(Decisions involving expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same
period are also detailed.

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;
Delegated Decisions and Significant Action Forms

Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for
public inspection.

Page 2 of 3 arinagf

LONDON



Page 283

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road,
Wood Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Ayshe Simsek
on 020 8489 2929.

Page 3 of 3

Haringey

LONDON



Page 284



-

8102 Jlequieydsg ¢ :8jeq ainmeubig s oj0a11q

Page 285

JSqUNN adA)
uonoy pajebsjaq
CELITNETS
000'8.3 Aq papua)xs aq 0} s90IAlaS uolelBiwwy Jo uoisiaoid Joy Joenuod Bunsixy uolelBiuw) Jo UoISiAOLd gL'L'LE A
peoy
panosdde 9z'G83F JO SIS0 |eUOlIPPE J9A0D 0} JOpI0 aseydlnd ul 8sealou| puepaquing Jo JuawysiqiIniay gL'Ls g
10308410
uojs}oeq spul | Aq peaoidde ejeq ON

1dwax3 ate siaded punoibyoeq sejousp ¢
Q10zZ Joqueldeg || uo Jauiqe) o} Buioday 104 - uonoy pajebsjeq - suolsioap juesyiubig

SdAD



Page 286



Page 287

YleoH Pue SYNpy Jo 1033811q — Bxe L Aeieneg
8102 isnbny sLe :ejeQg X § .m N :Aq pesuoyine uojssjugng
"

'00°000°021 3 @nfeA Joeuo) "HNSO 8ledyjeeH SJ1 Hodoy JONEM Si10PeNq 028081

'00°000°S93 8njeA Joeu0] "|9POYN 8WOH 8Jed YNPY J8pi0 TON SoRAleUY ai1ed) J8A0)) Hodey ALouiny pajebejeqg 0z8081

"00'000'0G13
SnjeA yenuod 'spequod Jspioid Bululen @97 X G 91°20°6 B (esioiex3 @ uonelond) £0°8 OSD 4O uonejuswaldw| 90808k
JOQuINN

uonoy pajebajaq

SeJIMIBE [BI00S JNPY U} Sjuswpuawe [einjonys - Auoyiny pejebejeq 718081 iC

uonesnbyuodey Gulpienbajes pue Juswssessy - Ajuoyiny pejebejeq 01808} ‘L

40135410

uosideg enuL | Aq peaosdde ejeg ON

dwex3 ase sieded punoibyoeq sejousp ¢
8102 isnbny — uopoy pejebsje( - suoisioep Jueayiubig

HLTV3H ANV S1TNAV 40 ¥0.L93MIa



Page 288



Page 289 Agenda ltem 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 297 Appendix 1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 299 Appendix 2

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 313 Appendix 3

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 315 Agenda ltem 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	Minutes

	9 Budget Monitoring
	10 Review of plans to establish a Youth Zone in Haringey
	11 Creation of a Single Homelessness Hub
	APPENDIX 1 - EqIA - Creation of a Single Homeless Hub (final)

	12 Designation of Finsbury Park and Stroud Green Neighbourhood Area and Forum
	Appedices 1-7 FPSG neighbourhood area-forum application
	FP+SG AREA-FORUM APPLICATION appendix 1
	FP+SG NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA BOUNDARY STUDY appendix 2
	FPNP - Neighbourhood Area study - v25.0
	FPSG - Addresses atlas - v14.0 (lo res)

	FP+SG PROTECTED CHARACTERISTICS STUDY appendix 3
	FP+SG CONSTITUTION appendix 4
	FP+SG EQUALITY, DIVERSITY, INCLUSIVITY STATEMENT appendix 5
	FP+SG EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT appendix 6
	FP+SG AREA MAP appendix 7
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Appendix 8 FP+SG consultation log. END OF CONSULTATION (00000003)
	Appendix 9 Amended Area Boundary

	13 Hornsey Library refurbishment and Essential Maintenance
	14 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000: Use Within the Council 2018/19 and Updates to the Council's Policy
	ripa_policy_July2018

	15 Water, Wastewater & Ancillary Services for Haringey Buildings consisting of the Corporate, Housing and Schools Estates
	Appendix 3 - Water Contract

	16 Woodside Avenue
	18 Significant and Delegated Actions
	21 Woodside Avenue
	appendix 1
	Exempt appendix 2
	Exempt appendix 3

	22 Exempt Minutes



